
WOODMEN HEIGHTS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 1, 2 and 3 
Regular Board Meeting 

Wednesday, June 5, 2024 – 1:00 p.m. 
119 N. Wahsatch Avenue 

Colorado Springs, Colorado 80903 
- and -

https://video.cloudoffice.avaya.com/join/048510349 
United States: +1 (213) 463-4500  

Access Code: 048-510-349  

Woodmen Heights Metropolitan District No. 1 & No. 3 
Board of Director Title Term 
Les Krohnfeldt 
Randle W Case II 
Jim Morley 
Kyle Geditz 
Jack Amberg 

President 
Vice-President/ Treasurer 
Secretary 
Assistant Secretary 
Assistant Secretary 

May 2025 
May 2027 
May 2027 (appointment to May 2025) 
May 2025 
May 2027 (appointment to May 2025) 

Woodmen Heights Metropolitan District No. 2 
Board of Director Title Term 
Les Krohnfeldt 
Randle W Case II 
Kyle Geditz 
Jack Amberg 
Jim Morley 

President 
Vice-President/ Treasurer 
Secretary 
Assistant Secretary 
Assistant Secretary 

May 2025 
May 2027 
May 2027 (appointment to May 2025) 
May 2025 
May 2027 (appointment to May 2025) 

AGENDA 
1. Call to order

2. Declaration of Quorum/ Director Qualifications/ Disclosure Matters

3. Approval of Agenda

4. Approval of the April 3, 2024, Joint Meeting Minutes (enclosure)

5. Financial Matters
a. Consider Approval of Unaudited Financial Statements as of April 30, 2024 

(enclosure)
b. Ratify and consider Approval of Payables through June 4, 2024 (enclosure)
c. District Nos 2 and 3, 2023 Audit Review Meeting Schedule

6. District Manager Report
a. Authentix at Wolf Ranch Opt-Out
b. D-20 School site discussion
c. Update on Underdrain Maintenance
d. Review and Consider approval for Banyan Park re-seeding proposal (enclosed)
e. Review and ratify approval for Concrete Fence Repairs in Cumbre Vista 
f. Update on Mailbox Kiosk concern

7. Aspen Meadows Park Update and Review
a. Award bid and contract to Fisk Landscaping
b. Review Budget and consider authorization of Additional Funds

https://video.cloudoffice.avaya.com/join/048510349
tel:+14086503123,,726448573


 
 

8. Development Updates  
a. 11 pending commercial projects, 2 pending commercial plans (changes), 5 pending 

multifamily, 3 pending single-family plat, 1 pending mixed-use, and 1 pending annexation 

9. Public Comment (for items not already on the agenda) 

10. Legal Matters 
a. Discuss and ratify approval of Agreement for Payment of Marksheffel Bridge Contribution 

(enclosed) 
b. Review and consider adoption of Amended and Restated Resolution Concerning the $500 

Bridge Fee(enclosed) 
c. Review and consider the adoption of Amended and Restated Resolution Concerning the 

$1,700 Aspen Meadow Park (enclosed) 
d. Review and consider the adoption of Third Amended and Restated Resolution Concerning 

the Facility Platting Fee $5,500 (enclosed) 
e. Discussion and update for District No. 1 dissolution and City consent 
f. Discussion of Website ADA Compliance Status 

11. Adjourn:  
a. Next Meeting Date – July 3, 2024, at 1:00 pm. 

 
 
 
  



 
 

 
NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETINGS 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN That the Boards of Directors of WOODMEN HEIGHTS METROPOLITAN 

DISTRICT NOS. 1, 2 and 3, City of Colorado Springs, County of El Paso, State of Colorado, will hold a regular 

meeting at 1:00 p.m. on Wednesday, the 5th day of June 2024 at 119 N. Wahsatch Ave, in Colorado Springs, Colorado, 

and via tele/videoconference https://video.cloudoffice.avaya.com/join/048510349 or dial +1 (213) 463-4500 

Access Code: 048-510-349 for the purpose of conducting such business as may come before the Boards including 

the business on the attached agenda.  Regular joint meetings for 2024 are on the first Wednesday of every month at 

119 N. Wahsatch Ave, in Colorado Springs, Colorado, and via televideo conference so long as there is business to 

conduct.  The regular meetings may be canceled.  Please call (719) 447-1777 for meeting confirmation and 

information. The meeting is open to the public. 

 BY ORDER OF THE BOARDS OF DIRECTORS: WOODMEN HEIGHTS METROPOLITAN 
DISTRICT NOS. 1, 2 AND 3 

https://video.cloudoffice.avaya.com/join/048510349
tel:+14086503123,,726448573


 



 

WSDM District Managers 
614 N. Tejon St., Colorado Springs, CO 80903 
(719) 447-1777                    www.wsdistricts.co 

1 of 3 

  
MINUTES OF A JOINT REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARDS OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

WOODMEN HEIGHTS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 1, 2 AND 3 
APRIL 3, 2024 AT 1:00 P.M. 

 
Pursuant to posted notice, the joint regular meeting of the Boards of Directors of the Woodmen 
Heights Metropolitan District Nos. 1, 2 and 3 was held on Wednesday, April 3, 2024, at 1:00 
p.m., at 119 Wahsatch Avenue, Colorado Springs, Colorado 80903, and via video 
teleconference.  

 
 In attendance were Directors:                           

Les Krohnfeldt, President 
James Morley, Secretary (arrived late) 
Randle W. Case II, Vice President/Treasurer 
Jack Amberg, Asst. Secretary 
Kyle Geditz, Asst. Secretary (Absent) 

 
Also in attendance were: 
Rebecca Harris, WSDM 
Kevin Walker, WSDM 
Rylee DeLong, WSDM 
K. Sean Allen, Esq., White Bear Ankele Tanaka & Waldron 

   
Combined Meeting:    
The Boards of Directors of the Districts have determined to hold a joint meeting of the Districts 
and to prepare joint minutes of actions taken by the Districts in such meetings.  Unless 
otherwise noted herein, all official action reflected in these minutes shall be deemed to be the 
action of all Districts. Where necessary, action taken by an individual District will be so 
reflected in these minutes. 

 
1. Call to Order: The meeting was called to order at 1:00 p.m. by President Krohnfeldt. 

 
2. Declaration of Quorum/Director Qualifications/Disclosure Matters: President Krohnfeldt 

indicated that a quorum of the Boards was present and stated that each Director has been 
qualified as an eligible elector of the Districts pursuant to Colorado law. The Directors 
confirmed their qualification. Mr. Allen advised the Boards that, pursuant to Colorado law, 
certain disclosures might be required prior to taking official action at the meeting. Mr. Walker 
reported that disclosures for those directors with potential or existing conflicts of interest were 
filed with the Secretary of State’s Office and the Boards 72 hours prior to the meeting, in 
accordance with Colorado law, and those disclosures were acknowledged by the Board. Mr. 
Allen inquired into whether members of the Boards had any additional disclosures of potential 
or existing conflicts of interest with regard to any matters scheduled for discussion at the 



 

WSDM District Managers 
614 N. Tejon St., Colorado Springs, CO 80903 
(719) 447-1777                    www.wsdistricts.co 

2 of 3 

meeting. No additional disclosures were noted. The Boards determined that the participation of 
the members present was necessary to obtain a quorum or to otherwise enable the Boards to 
act. 

 
3. Approval of the Agenda: Director Amberg moved to approve the Agenda as presented; 

seconded by Director Case II. Motion passed unanimously.  
 

4. Approval of the March 6, 2024 Joint Meeting Minutes: After review, Director Amberg moved 
to approve the March 6, 2024 Joint Meeting Minutes; seconded by Director Case II. Motion 
passed unanimously.  
 

5. Financial Matters 
a. Consider Approval of Unaudited Financial Statements as of March 31, 2024: Ms. Harris 

presented the Unaudited Financial Statements as of March 31, 2024. After review, Director 
Amberg moved to accept the Unaudited Financial Statements as presented; seconded by 
Director Case II. Motion passed unanimously. Director Morley joined the meeting. 

b. Ratify and Consider Approval of Payables through April 3, 2024: After review, Director 
Case II moved to ratify the payables through April 3, 2024; seconded by Director Amberg. 
Motion passed unanimously.  

c. Discuss 2023 Audits and Exemption Status: Mrs. Harris informed the Board District No. 1 
Exemption was filed with the state and the Audit process has began for District No. 2 and 
No. 3 
 

6. District Manager Report 
a. Authentix at Wolf Ranch Opt-Out: Ms. Harris reported that they have not heard back from 

Authentix at Wolf Ranch since the proposed opt-out cost was sent.  
Ms. Harris, reviewed the new GIS mapping system that WSDM is no implementing for 
Managing the various items within the Metropolitan District.  The Board asked for some 
PDF prints of the various maps be sent to the board. 

b. Aspen Meadows Park Update and Review: Mr. Walker provided an update on the new 
Aspen Meadows park. BIDs open April 16th and we have received 6 companies interested 
in the BID package. 

c. D-20 School site discussion: Mr. Walker update the Board that him and Director Amberg 
did have discussion with D20 Rep and they are continuing to push back on the Metro Board 
to continue to maintain based on agreement. Director Amberg gave some ideas to D20.  

d. Review Park Inspection Memo and consider approval of recommended repairs: Mrs. Harris 
reviewed the Park inspection results and recommended repairs. After discussion Director 
Amber motioned to move forward with the recommended repairs; seconded by Director 
Morley.  Motion passed unanimously.  

e. Review Underdrain Memo and consider acceptance of Shiloh Mesa Filing No. 5: Ms. 
Harris reviewed the Underdrain Memo to the board.  The Board discussed the process they 
would consider moving forward. 
 

7. Development Updates: The Board discussed development updates. Ms. Harris reviewed a 
summary of current pending projects for both residents and commercial items.  
 



 

WSDM District Managers 
614 N. Tejon St., Colorado Springs, CO 80903 
(719) 447-1777                    www.wsdistricts.co 

3 of 3 

8. Public Comment: There was no public comment.  
 

9. Legal Matters 
a. Discussion and update for District No. 1 dissolution and City consent: Mr. Walker gave an 

update on the City’s position on requiring a Service Plan Amendment and his continued 
efforts to simplify that process.  

10. Adjourn: Director Amberg moved to adjourn the meeting at 2:05 p.m.; seconded by Director 
Case II. Motion passed unanimously.  

 
Mr. Walker wanted to inform the board that we are working through several Detention Ponds 
and the turn over.  Ms. Harris gave an update on where she is on moving forward with the 
Mailbox concerns.  
a. Next Meeting Date: May 1, 2024 at 1:00 p.m.  

 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
________________________________ 
 
By: Recording Secretary 



 



May 29, 24

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
Eastern Colorado Bank Checking 1,303,059.66

Total Checking/Savings 1,303,059.66

Total Current Assets 1,303,059.66

Fixed Assets
1300 · Construction in Progress

1329 · 51-29 Black Forest Park 428,567.04
1337 · 51-37 Landscape/Fence/Park 5.6 1,386,773.17
1340 · 51-40 Landscape/Fence/StreetW 910,647.47
1341 · 51-41 Landscape/Pocket Parks 165,522.00

Total 1300 · Construction in Progress 2,891,509.68

1540 · Accumulated Depreciation -2,043,478.00

Total Fixed Assets 848,031.68

TOTAL ASSETS 2,151,091.34

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

2010 · Accounts Payable 3,171.88

Total Accounts Payable 3,171.88

Total Current Liabilities 3,171.88

Long Term Liabilities
Due to Other Governments 289,547.00

Total Long Term Liabilities 289,547.00

Total Liabilities 292,718.88

Equity
3000 · Opening Balance Equity 712,448.11
3910 · Retained Earnings 1,429,224.03
Net Income -283,299.68

Total Equity 1,858,372.46

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 2,151,091.34

2:29 PM Woodmen Heights Metropolitan District #1
05/29/24 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of May 29, 2024

Page 1



 2:20 PM
 05/29/24
 Accrual Basis

 Woodmen Heights Metropolitan District #1

 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
 January 1 through May 29, 2024

TOTAL

May 1 - 29, 24 Jan 1 - May 29, 24 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Expense

Copies & Postage 0.00 66.60 0.00 66.60 100.0%

Fees Due

Bridge Fees 269,609.50 269,609.50 0.00 269,609.50 100.0%

Total Fees Due 269,609.50 269,609.50 0.00 269,609.50 100.0%

6160 · Dues and Subscriptions 0.00 250.50 500.00 -249.50 50.1%

6180 · Insurance 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 -1,500.00 0.0%

6570 · Professional Fees

District Management 0.00 5,009.16 0.00 5,009.16 100.0%

6572 · Legal Fees 0.00 8,363.92 15,000.00 -6,636.08 55.76%

Total 6570 · Professional Fees 0.00 13,373.08 15,000.00 -1,626.92 89.15%

Total Expense 269,609.50 283,299.68 17,000.00 266,299.68 1,666.47%

Net Ordinary Income -269,609.50 -283,299.68 -17,000.00 -266,299.68 1,666.47%

Net Income -269,609.50 -283,299.68 -17,000.00 -266,299.68 1,666.47%

 Page 1 of 1



Income and Expense by Month
January 1 through May 29, 2024

Expense

0

50

100

150

200

250

300
$ in 1,000's

Jan24 Feb24 Mar24 Apr24 May1-29,24

Expense Summary
January 1 through May 29, 2024

By Account

95.17%Fees Due
4.726570 · Professional Fees
0.096160 · Dues and Subscriptions
0.02Copies & Postage

$283,299.68Total



May 29, 24

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
ECB - Operating 1,821,064.21
1112 · PNC Bank Reserve 9339 1,180,240.53
1111 · PNC Bank Loan 9048 1,726,366.25
UMB 2020B-1 Bond 394.1 591,277.62
UMB 2020B-1 Reserve 394.2 743,746.27
UMB 2020B-1 Surplus 394.3 731,000.00

Total Checking/Savings 6,793,694.88

Accounts Receivable
1210 · Accounts Receivable 88,538.33
1230 · Property Taxes Receivable 3,257,029.42

Total Accounts Receivable 3,345,567.75

Other Current Assets
Due From District No. 3 464.58

Total Other Current Assets 464.58

Total Current Assets 10,139,727.21

Other Assets
1921 · AA - Def Bal On Adv Ref Bonds -357,486.00
1920 · Def Bal om Adv Refunding Bonds 2,503,308.00

Total Other Assets 2,145,822.00

TOTAL ASSETS 12,285,549.21

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

2010 · Accounts Payable -7,858.05

Total Accounts Payable -7,858.05

Other Current Liabilities
2022 · Deferred Property Tax Rev 3,257,029.42
2030 · Interest Payable - 2020 Loan 78,088.00
2031 · Interest Payable - 2020B1 18,737.00
2032 · Interest Payable - 2020B2 1,123,546.00

Total Other Current Liabilities 4,477,400.42

Total Current Liabilities 4,469,542.37

Long Term Liabilities
2650 · Series 2020A Loan 32,100,001.00
2640 · Series 2020B-2 Bond 6,714,000.00
2630 · Series 2020B-1 Bond 7,195,000.00

Total Long Term Liabilities 46,009,001.00

Total Liabilities 50,478,543.37

Equity
3000 · Opening Balance Equity 0.46
3910 · Retained Earnings -38,280,661.35
Net Income 87,666.73

Total Equity -38,192,994.16

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 12,285,549.21

2:57 PM Woodmen Heights Metropolitan District #2
05/29/24 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of May 29, 2024

Page 1



 2:51 PM
 05/29/24
 Accrual Basis

 Woodmen Heights Metropolitan District #2

 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
 January 1 through May 29, 2024

TOTAL

May 1 - 29, 24 Jan 1 - May 29, 24 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

Due From District 3 - Taxes 107,444.12 282,616.63 0.00 282,616.63 100.0%

Fees

Facility Fees

Bridge Fee 0.00 10,910.18 5,000.00 5,910.18 218.2%

East Park Fee 0.00 37,094.61 20,000.00 17,094.61 185.47%

Multi Family 8,251.29 46,757.31 0.00 46,757.31 100.0%

Single Family 32,088.28 82,512.72 0.00 82,512.72 100.0%

Total Facility Fees 40,339.57 177,274.82 25,000.00 152,274.82 709.1%

Impact Fees

Impact Fees Res Multi 0.00 0.00 137,522.00 -137,522.00 0.0%

Impact Fees Resiential 0.00 0.00 229,202.00 -229,202.00 0.0%

Total Impact Fees 0.00 0.00 366,724.00 -366,724.00 0.0%

Platting Fees

Rivers Park Fee 0.00 10,910.18 0.00 10,910.18 100.0%

Tiers Fee 0.00 109,101.80 0.00 109,101.80 100.0%

Total Platting Fees 0.00 120,011.98 0.00 120,011.98 100.0%

Taxes

Current Year - O&M 84,164.27 523,679.04 905,211.00 -381,531.96 57.85%

Spec Own Tax - O&M 6,738.10 27,341.35 63,365.00 -36,023.65 43.15%

Delinquent Int - O&M 5.96 7.39 0.00 7.39 100.0%

Current Year - Debt 233,789.63 1,454,664.03 2,514,475.00 -1,059,810.97 57.85%

Spec Own Tax - Debt 18,716.94 75,948.21 176,013.00 -100,064.79 43.15%

Delinquent Int - Debt 16.60 20.59 0.00 20.59 100.0%

Total Taxes 343,431.50 2,081,660.61 3,659,064.00 -1,577,403.39 56.89%

Total Fees 383,771.07 2,378,947.41 4,050,788.00 -1,671,840.59 58.73%

Reimbursements 2,719.15 2,719.15 0.00 2,719.15 100.0%

Total Income 493,934.34 2,664,283.19 4,050,788.00 -1,386,504.81 65.77%

Gross Profit 493,934.34 2,664,283.19 4,050,788.00 -1,386,504.81 65.77%

Expense

Directors Fees 0.00 0.00 6,000.00 -6,000.00 0.0%

Contingency 0.00 0.00 50,000.00 -50,000.00 0.0%

Dues and Subscriptions 0.00 1,237.50 1,500.00 -262.50 82.5%

Fees Due

Facility Fee 2,418,138.51 2,418,138.51 0.00 2,418,138.51 100.0%

Storm Water 2,073.15 16,818.53 45,000.00 -28,181.47 37.38%

Total Fees Due 2,420,211.66 2,434,957.04 45,000.00 2,389,957.04 5,411.02%

Insurance 0.00 0.00 22,000.00 -22,000.00 0.0%

Interest Expense 0.00 0.00 1,958,479.00 -1,958,479.00 0.0%

Parks 0.00 20,980.48 2,135,000.00 -2,114,019.52 0.98%

 Page 1 of 2



 2:51 PM
 05/29/24
 Accrual Basis

 Woodmen Heights Metropolitan District #2

 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
 January 1 through May 29, 2024

TOTAL

May 1 - 29, 24 Jan 1 - May 29, 24 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Professional Fees

Audit 0.00 0.00 9,605.00 -9,605.00 0.0%

District Management 0.00 44,000.00 132,000.00 -88,000.00 33.33%

Landscaping Maintenance 7,649.67 73,883.77 450,000.00 -376,116.23 16.42%

Legal Fees 0.00 6,795.78 25,000.00 -18,204.22 27.18%

Total Professional Fees 7,649.67 124,679.55 616,605.00 -491,925.45 20.22%

Postage and Delivery 0.00 0.00 250.00 -250.00 0.0%

Repairs 0.00 850.00 50,000.00 -49,150.00 1.7%

Treasurer Collection Fee Debt 3,507.14 21,825.69 37,717.00 -15,891.31 57.87%

Treasurer Collection Fee O&M 1,262.57 7,857.25 13,578.00 -5,720.75 57.87%

Total Expense 2,432,631.04 2,612,387.51 4,936,129.00 -2,323,741.49 52.92%

Net Ordinary Income -1,938,696.70 51,895.68 -885,341.00 937,236.68 -5.86%

Other Income/Expense

Other Income

Interest Income 0.00 35,771.05 0.00 35,771.05 100.0%

Total Other Income 0.00 35,771.05 0.00 35,771.05 100.0%

Net Other Income 0.00 35,771.05 0.00 35,771.05 100.0%

Net Income -1,938,696.70 87,666.73 -885,341.00 973,007.73 -9.9%

 Page 2 of 2



Income and Expense by Month
January 1 through May 29, 2024

Income
Expense

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500
$ in 1,000's

Jan24 Feb24 Mar24 Apr24 May1-29,24

Income Summary
January 1 through May 29, 2024

By Account

88.11%Fees
10.47Due From District 3 - Taxes

1.32Interest Income
0.10Reimbursements

$2,700,054.24Total



Income and Expense by Month
January 1 through May 29, 2024

Income
Expense

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500
$ in 1,000's

Jan24 Feb24 Mar24 Apr24 May1-29,24

Expense Summary
January 1 through May 29, 2024

By Account

93.21%Fees Due
4.77Professional Fees
0.84Treasurer Collection Fee Debt
0.80Parks
0.30Treasurer Collection Fee O&M
0.05Dues and Subscriptions
0.03Repairs

$2,612,387.51Total



May 29, 24

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
ECB - Operating 138,543.45

Total Checking/Savings 138,543.45

Accounts Receivable
1235 · Property Taxes Receivable 263,963.42

Total Accounts Receivable 263,963.42

Total Current Assets 402,506.87

TOTAL ASSETS 402,506.87

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

2010 · Accounts Payable 4,388.43

Total Accounts Payable 4,388.43

Other Current Liabilities
Due to Discrict No. 2 464.58
2025 · Deferred Property Tax Rev 263,963.42

Total Other Current Liabilities 264,428.00

Total Current Liabilities 268,816.43

Total Liabilities 268,816.43

Equity
3910 · Retained Earnings 93,335.18
Net Income 40,355.26

Total Equity 133,690.44

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 402,506.87

3:09 PM Woodmen Heights Metropolitan District #3
05/29/24 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of May 29, 2024

Page 1



 3:06 PM
 05/29/24
 Accrual Basis

 Woodmen Heights Metropolitan District #3

 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
 January 1 through May 29, 2024

TOTAL

May 1 - 29, 24 Jan 1 - May 29, 24 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

Fees

Facility Fees

Bridge Fee 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0%

East Park Fee 0.00 0.00 30,000.00 -30,000.00 0.0%

Facility Fees - Other 0.00 0.00 58,000.00 -58,000.00 0.0%

Total Facility Fees 0.00 0.00 93,000.00 -93,000.00 0.0%

Taxes

Delinquent Int 28.22 28.22 0.00 28.22 100.0%

Current Year - O&M 21,637.65 56,152.50 70,607.00 -14,454.50 79.53%

Spec Own Tax - O&M 525.58 2,132.66 4,943.00 -2,810.34 43.15%

Current Year - Debt 106,457.21 276,270.29 347,389.00 -71,118.71 79.53%

Spec Own Tax - Debt 2,585.86 10,492.70 24,317.00 -13,824.30 43.15%

Delinquent Interest - DS 138.85 138.85 0.00 138.85 100.0%

Total Taxes 131,373.37 345,215.22 447,256.00 -102,040.78 77.19%

Total Fees 131,373.37 345,215.22 540,256.00 -195,040.78 63.9%

Total Income 131,373.37 345,215.22 540,256.00 -195,040.78 63.9%

Gross Profit 131,373.37 345,215.22 540,256.00 -195,040.78 63.9%

Expense

Audit 0.00 0.00 9,347.00 -9,347.00 0.0%

Contingency 0.00 0.00 20,000.00 -20,000.00 0.0%

Dues and Subscriptions 0.00 367.65 500.00 -132.35 73.53%

Due to District 2 - Taxes 107,444.12 282,616.63 0.00 282,616.63 100.0%

Insurance 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0%

Professional Fees

District Management 0.00 12,000.00 36,000.00 -24,000.00 33.33%

Legal Fees 0.00 4,918.57 15,000.00 -10,081.43 32.79%

Total Professional Fees 0.00 16,918.57 51,000.00 -34,081.43 33.17%

Postage and Delivery 0.00 0.00 250.00 -250.00 0.0%

Stormwateer & Facilities Maint 0.00 0.00 35,000.00 -35,000.00 0.0%

Treasurer's Collection Fee-O&M 324.99 842.75 1,059.00 -216.25 79.58%

Treasurers Collection Fee-Debt 1,598.95 4,146.36 5,211.00 -1,064.64 79.57%

Total Expense 109,368.06 304,891.96 127,367.00 177,524.96 239.38%

Net Ordinary Income 22,005.31 40,323.26 412,889.00 -372,565.74 9.77%

Other Income/Expense

Other Income

Other Income 0.00 32.00 0.00 32.00 100.0%

Total Other Income 0.00 32.00 0.00 32.00 100.0%

Net Other Income 0.00 32.00 0.00 32.00 100.0%

Net Income 22,005.31 40,355.26 412,889.00 -372,533.74 9.77%

 Page 1 of 1



Income and Expense by Month
January 1 through May 29, 2024

Income
Expense

0

50

100

150

200
$ in 1,000's

Jan24 Feb24 Mar24 Apr24 May1-29,24

Expense Summary
January 1 through May 29, 2024

By Account

92.69%Due to District 2 - Taxes
5.55Professional Fees
1.36Treasurers Collection Fee-Debt
0.28Treasurer's Collection Fee-O&M
0.12Dues and Subscriptions

$304,891.96Total



Income and Expense by Month
January 1 through May 29, 2024

Income
Expense

0

50

100

150

200
$ in 1,000's

Jan24 Feb24 Mar24 Apr24 May1-29,24

Income Summary
January 1 through May 29, 2024

By Account

99.99%Fees
0.01Other Income

$345,247.22Total



 



Company Invoice Date Amount Comments
White Bear Ankele Tanka Waldron 33951 3/31/2024 871.26$                  
WSDM District Managers 7966 3/31/2024 1,271.60$               

2,142.86$               

Woodmen Heights Metropolitan District, Director

Eastern Colorado Before Payables 1,574,812.02$           
Payables for this month (2,142.86)$                  
Easter Colorado After Payables 1,572,669.16$           

Woodmen Heights Metropolitan District #1
GENERAL FUND ACCOUNT

4/17/2024



Company Invoice Date Amount Comments
White Bear Ankele Tanka Waldron 34839 4/30/2024 1,921.88$                
WSDM District Managers 8006 4/30/2024 1,250.00$                

3,171.88$                

Woodmen Heights Metropolitan District, Director

Eastern Colorado Before Payables 1,303,059.66$           
Payables for this month (3,171.88)$                  
Easter Colorado After Payables 1,299,887.78$           

Woodmen Heights Metropolitan District #1
GENERAL FUND ACCOUNT

5/15/2024



Company Invoice Date Amount Comments

CCSVarious 40124 4/1/2024 5,170.14$               
CCS SWENT0077 2/13/2024 53.00$                    

Colorado Springs Utilities 9103089066 4/5/2024 2,062.53$               Set Up for Autopay
Hammers Construction 2024-SW-023.1 3/25/2024 300.00$                  
Hammers Construction 2024-SW-076.1 3/25/2024 300.00$                  
Hammers Construction 2024-SW-077.1 3/25/2024 300.00$                  
Hammers Construction 2024-SW-078.1 3/25/2024 300.00$                  
Peak Fencing 32724 3/27/2024 700.00$                  

Rocky Mountain Playground 1117 3/24/2024 1,850.00$               

Weisburg Landscape Maintenance 55010 4/30/2024 9,321.00$               

Weisburg Landscape Maintenance 55011 4/30/2024 2,010.00$               
White Bear Ankele Tanka Waldron 33984 3/31/2024 1,146.47$               
WSDM District Managers 7967 3/31/2024 11,000.00$             

TOTAL 34,513.14$             

Company Date Amount Comments

PNC

El Paso County Taxes: DISTRICT 2 3/10/2024 134,947.12$         

TOTAL 134,947.12$         

169,460.26$           

Woodmen Heights Metropolitan District, Director

Eastern Colorado Before Payable 4,202,171.73$                   
Payables (169,460.26)$                     

Eastern Colorado After Payable 4,032,711.47$                   

Woodmen Heights Metropolitan District #2
GENERAL FUND ACCOUNT

4/18/2024

BOND FUND ACCOUNT



Company Invoice Date Amount Comments

CCSVarious 50124 5/1/2024 1,493.10$                
Colorado Springs Utilities 9103089066 5/7/2024 5,095.53$                Set Up for Autopay

Monster Fence Company 1860 4/25/2024 150.00$                   

Rocky Mountain Playground 1153 4/26/2024 13,338.48$              

Weisburg Landscape Maintenance 55146 4/29/2024 1,037.50$                

Weisburg Landscape Maintenance 55175 5/2/2024 997.50$                   
Weisburg Landscape Maintenance 55215 5/13/2024 103.00$                   
Weisburg Landscape Maintenance 55225 5/13/2024 140.00$                   
Weisburg Landscape Maintenance 55278 5/31/2024 9,321.00$                
Weisburg Landscape Maintenance 55279 5/31/2024 2,010.00$                
Weisburg Landscape Maintenance 55374 5/15/2024 440.00$                   
White Bear Ankele Tanka Waldron 34871 4/30/2024 2,019.26$                
WSDM District Managers 8007 4/30/2024 11,000.00$              

TOTAL 47,145.37$              

Company Date Amount Comments

PNC
El Paso County Taxes: DISTRICT 2 5/10/2024 248,999.43$          April Pledged Rev

El Paso County Taxes: DISTRICT 3 5/10/2024 107,444.12$          April Pledged Rev

UMB 5/15/2024 2,418,138.51$       2021-2023 Permit Fees-Pd with Ck

TOTAL 356,443.55$          

403,588.92$            

Woodmen Heights Metropolitan District, Director

Eastern Colorado Before Payable 1,863,833.56$                   
Payables (403,588.92)$                     

Eastern Colorado After Payable 1,460,244.64$                  

Woodmen Heights Metropolitan District #2
GENERAL FUND ACCOUNT

5/15/2024

BOND FUND ACCOUNT



Company Invoice Date Amount Comments
White Bear Ankele Tanka Waldron 33985 3/31/2024 830.77$                  

WSDM District Managers 7968 3/31/2024 3,000.00$               

TOTAL 3,830.77$               

Woodmen Heights Metropolitan District, Director

3,830.77$                    

The Eastern Colorado Bank 8,767.87$                   
Payable (3,830.77)$                  
The Eastern Colorado Bank After Payable 4,937.10$                   

Woodmen Heights Metropolitan District #3
GENERAL FUND ACCOUNT

4/17/2024



Company Invoice Date Amount Comments
White Bear Ankele Tanka Waldron 34872 4/30/2024 1,388.43$                

WSDM District Managers 8008 4/30/2024 3,000.00$                

TOTAL 4,388.43$                

Woodmen Heights Metropolitan District, Director

4,388.43$                     

The Eastern Colorado Bank 138,543.45$               
Payable (4,388.43)$                  
The Eastern Colorado Bank After Payable 134,155.02$              

Woodmen Heights Metropolitan District #3
GENERAL FUND ACCOUNT

5/15/2024



 



qty unit  price  subtotal hours  subtotal  qty  rate 

Aerate, Seed, Topdress 10750 sqft 0.575$         6,181.25$         1 195.00$         6,376.25$         

Irrigation Programming Visits 2.0 160.00$                      160.00$           

Clean Up - Brooms & Blowers 2 130.00$                      130.00$           

Total: 6,666.25$      Notes: This area has winter kill and heavy foot traffic. Time to aerate, seed and topdress. 10.75 Cu Yds of soil needed at .33" depth. 

Need to cone/stake area off.

Forest Meadows Community Park  

Bid Date: 4/24/2024  *Pricing is good for 90 days

Aerate, Seed & Topdress

Description

Materials Labor & Equipment Haul, Dump, Delivery

Total



 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1A3E-4FD 1-41 98-8D41 -AF3B1 6C479BF

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF COLORADO
SPRINGS AND THE WOODMEN HEIGHTS METROPOLITAN

DISTRICT NOS. 1-3
REGARDING FUNDING

OF THE MARKSHEFFEL ROAD SAND CREEK CROSSING

Effective as of May i3_. 2024, the City of Colorado Springs (the “City”) and the Woodmen
Heights Metropolitan Districts Nos. 1 — 3 (together the “Districts”) (collectively the “Parties”)
hereby enter this Agreement regarding funding of the Marksheffel Road Sand Creek Crossing
(“Agreement”).

Recita1s1Backround

1. The Woodmcn Heights development was annexed into the City of Colorado Springs in
2004 based on the approval of the Woodmen Heights Annexation Agreements Nos. 1 —4
(“Annexation Agreements’t) (Attached hereto as Exhibits 1 through 4);

o The Annexation Agreements, Sections V.B., required the Owners to construct the
Marksheffel bridge or box culvert at their own expense. The Owners would then be
eligible for 50% reimbursement for the construction cost of the bridge or box
culvert.

2. The Woodmen Heights Metropolitan Districts I — 3 were formed in July 2004 and are
governed by a Consolidated Service Plan approved by the City of Colorado Springs. The
Consolidated Service Plan was subsequently amended by the City in July 2007.

3. The Districts issued bonds in 2005, refinanced those bonds in 2012 after being in default
due to the Great Recession impacts on development and resulting tax revenues, and
refunded all bonds in 2020.

o The developer’s intent was to fund the Markshcffel Road construction, including
the Marksheffel Road Sand Creek Crossing, with proceeds from the bonds issued
by the Districts.

4. The Pikes Peak Rural Transportation Authority (“PPRTA”) was formed by vote in 2004
and included an A-list project for the Marksheffel Road Widening and Extension —

Peterson AFB East Gate to Black Forest Rd (includes the Woodmen Heights development
area) improvements.

5. Starting in 2012 the developers and the Districts worked collaboratively with the City of
Colorado Springs to adopt an intergovernmental agreement (“IGA”) that addressed funding
for various infrastructure projects required by the annexation agreements, including the
Districts’ contribution payment for the Marksheffel Road Sand Creek Crossing (also
referred to herein as the “Marksheffel Bridge”).

o Although the IGA was never finalized, the Districts, adhering to the intent and spirit
of the collaboration with the City, implement the City’s recommendations with
respect to Districts’ cost share allocation for the Markshcffcl Bridge by establishing
and collecting public improvement development fees for the costs related to the
Marksheffel Bridge (“Fee”).

Page 1 of4



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2QFD1 A3E-4FD 1-41 98-8D41 -AF3BI6C479BF

6. From 2013 — 2017, the developers and the Districts were in discussions with the City
relating to the development standards and funding sources for the Marksheffel Road Sand
Creek Crossing.

7. The City constructed the Marksheffel Road Sand Creek Crossing using PPRTA and other
funding sources in 2021 and requested that the PPRTA be reimbursed for a portion of the
Marksheffel Bridge cost.

8. In 2021, the Districts’ Boards authorized reimbursement payment to the City of all funds
collected from the Fee which would constitute full and complete satisfaction of the
contribution required by the annexation agreements with respect to the Marksheffel Bridge
and the Districts would be released from any further obligations related to the Marksheffel
Bridge.

9. As of April 9,2024, the Districts have collected Fees in the amount of $269,609.50 since
2013.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises herein and other good
and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the
Parties hereby agree as follows:

1 .lncorporation of Recitals. The foregoing recitals are incorporated into and made a part of
this Agreement.

2. Immediately upon mutual execution hereof, the Districts agree to make payment of all o
funds collected from the Fee in the amount of $269,609.50 to the City as the reimbursement
payment for the Marksheffel Road Sand Creek Crossing costs.

3. The City acknowledges and agrees that such payment of $269,609.50 constitutes full and
complete satisfaction of the cost contribution requirements of the Woodmen Heights
Annexation Agreements Nos. 1 — 4 for the Marksheffel Road Sand Creek Crossing.

[remainder of page left intentionally blanki

Page 2 of 4



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1 A3E-4FD 1-41 98-8D41 -AF3B1 6C479BF

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused their duly authorized officials
to place their hands upon this Agreement effective the day and year first above written.

WOODMEN HEIGHTS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 1,2 AND 3
DocuSigned by:

(,L o41

By: Les Krohnfeldt

Its: Board President

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON

Attorneys at Law
(—DocuSigned by:

t’W
1CtJDO16OE7O18..

General Counsel to the Districts

CITY OF COLORADO SPRINGS

By: Jamie Fabos
Its: Chief of Staff

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Rebecca Greenberg
Senior Attorney, Office of the City
Attorney

Page 3 of 4



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused their duly authorized officials
to place their hands upon this Agreement effective the day and year first above written.

WOODMEN HEIGHTS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 1,2 AND 3

By:

______________________________

Its:

______________________________________________________

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON

Attorneys at Law

General Counsel to the Districts

CITY OF

By: Jamie Pabts , i
Its: GI ef.1f t&ff tk(cf ‘4

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Rebecca Gredi4berg
Senior Attorney, Office of the City
Attorney

Page 3 of 4



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1A3E-4F01 -41 98-8D41 -AF3B1 6C4798F

EXHIBITS 1-4

Page 4 of 4



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1A3E-4FD1-41 98-8D41-AF3B1 6C479BF 09123120@4 11: 1347 AM
ll

Rec $76.Ø 1 of 15 204160911
W000MEN HEIGHTS NO. I
ANNEXATION AGREEMENT ) O ‘ 3

THIS ANNEXATION AGREEMENT (this Agreement), dated this 73Wday of

_______

2004, is between
the City of Colorado Springs, a home ru!e city and Colorado municipal corporatiJ(the “City), and The
Robert W. Kinz!e Revocable Living Trut and The Eveyn M. Kmzler Revocable Living Trust (collectively
referred to as ‘Owners” or the Property Owners).

INTRODUCTION

The Owners own all of the real property located in El Paso County, Colorado, identified and
describea in the legal description attached hereto as Exhibit A (the Property).

The growth of the Colorado Springs metropolitan area makes it likely that the Property will
experience development in the future and the Property is identified in the City Annexation Plan as
recommended for annexation. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, both the City and the
Owners wish to annex the Property into the City to ensure its orderly development. In consideration of
the mL’tual covenants contained in this Agreement, the receipt and sufficiency of which are acknowledged
by each of the parties, the City and the Owners agree as follows.

ANNEXATION

The Owners have pettioned the City for annexation of the Property as set forth in Exhibit A. The
annexation will become effective upon final approval by the City Council and the recording of the
annexation plat 2nd annexation ordinance with the El Paso County Clerk and Recorder.

All references to the Property or to the Owners’ Property are to the Property described in Exhibit
A except as otherwise indicated.

Ill.
LAND USE

A Master Plan for the Property, Woodmen Heights Master Plan, has been proposed and
siibmitted to the City for approval. Owners will comply with the approved Master Plan or an amended
Master Plan approved in accord with applicable provisions of the Code of the City of Colorado Springs
2001, as amended or recodified (“City Code”).

IV.
ZONING

A. Zoning. The City Planning and Community Development Department of the City agrees
to recommend that the initial zone for the Owners’ Property shall be Agricultural (A) upon annexation.
While zoned A, a development plan shall be required for any use requiring a building permit except for
agricultural uses. Owners acknowledge and understand that the City Council determines what is an
appropriate zone for the Property, and this recommendation does not bind the Planning Commission or
City Council to adopt an Agricultural zone for the Property.

B. Rezojjjpg. Rezonings shall conform to the Master Plan, as approved or as amended by
the City in the future. Rezoning n accord with the land uses reflected on the Master Plan will occur prior
to actual development of the site.

V.
PUBLIC FACILITIES

A. Streeraffic. The Owners agree to construct, at the Owners’ expense (unless provided
by the Woodmen Road Metropolitan District as defined bekw (V.1 .b.) those street and/or traffic

RITURN TO LYDIA-WILL PICK UP
MC 1378



DocuSign Envelope ID; 2OFD1 A3E-4FD1 -41 98-8D41 -AF3B1 6C479BF

improvements within the Property and those street and/or traffic improvements adjacent to or within the
Property that are more particuiariy desoribed below. AU street and/or traffic improvements shall be under
the provisions of the City Subdivision Ordinance, Chapter 7 of the City Code. These improvements shaii
aiso include mutually acceptable dedications of right-of-way and easements, and extension of streets and
right-of-way. The provisions of City Code § 7.7.705 (Reimbursements) are excluded. City participation
or reimbursement for Arterial Streets within the Property will not be allowed.

1. Woodmen Road.

a. General. Woodmen Road shall be designated, designed and
constructed to meet City of Colorado Springs Public Works design standards as identified and in accord
with the County Major Thoroughfare Plan and the City Intermodal Transportation Plan. In the future, it
may be necessary to improve Woodmen Road beyond the level contemplated by this Agreement at this
time. The specifications for future improvements for which Owners are ultimately responsible to the
extent they are not installed by the District will be determined at the time of development plan approval.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Owners’ responsibility is for the construction of Woodmen Road where it is
adjacent to the Property and related turning movement lanes and acceleration and deceleration lanes for
access into the Property in order to meet City standards for those Improvements.

b. Woogrn.n..oa tolitan District. The City has previously entered
into an Intergovernmental Agreement Concerning Woodmen Road with the Woodmen Road Metropolitan
District (the “District”) approved February 25, 2003 (the “IGA”). The IGA provides for construction by the
District of improvements required by the City. If the District does not complete all of the required
Improvements adjacent to the Property prior to the time that the Owners desire to commence construction
of Improvements on the Property, in order to satisfy the City that the additional Improvements where
adjacent to the Property will be constructed, Owners must either: (1) post reliable and approved surety
with the City in an amount and form approved by the City in order to assure the availability of funds to
construct said Improvements; or (2) arrange for a further or amended intergovernmental agreement
(“Amended IGA”) between the District and the City whereby the District agrees to finance and construct
all of said Improvements according to a schedule agreed to by the City, which Amended IGA
contemplates a review by the City of the financial plan and related bond documents of the District.

c. jgjfay. The Oistrict has previously acquired the necessary right-
of-way for Woodmen Road where adjacent to the Property (total right-of-way of two hundred ten feet
(210’)) and the Owners agree to dedicate any additional right-of-way as may be required for the approach
to Black Forest Road or Marksheffel Road and the other access locations to accommodate projected
turning movements to meet City standards, as determined by the Woodmen Corridor design. Further, it is
understood that all current and future street and/or traffic improvements shall be pursuant to the
provisions of the City Subdivision Ordinance, Chapter 7 of the City Code. The City has no objections to
the right-in, right-out accesses from Woodmen Road into the Property as shown on the Master Plan.

2. Marksheffel Road. The Owners shall be responsible for all costs, including
design, right-of-way dedication and construction, associated with Marksheffel Road, as a principal arterial
street with one hundred sixty feet (160’) of total right-of-way and with on-street bike lanes and a raised
median, from the north end of the property and continuing south crossing Woodmen Road until it
intersects with the existing City limits. The Owners shall plat and dedicate the full right-of-way for
Marksheffel Road when requested by the City. Owners will be entitled to cost recovery for the extension
of Marksheffel Road south of Woodmen Road in accord with Section 7.7.705.8. of the City Code
(Subdivision Regulations).

3. Vollmer Road. Owners, at Owners’ expense, will dedicate all necessary right-of-
way needed for and construct Vollmer Road connecting with Black Forest Road as shown on the
approved Master Plan for the Property. Owners will be responsible for upgrading Volimer Road to meet

City standards as a minor arterial road with a total of eighty feet (80’) to one hundred twenty feet (120’) of

right-of-way required to be dedicated by Owners. The reason for the varying right-of-way width is to
enable the proper transition of Vollmer Road from the jurisdiction of the City to El Paso County. The

parties acknowledge that El Paso County is currently studying Voilmer Road and may In the future

downgrade the classification of the road. Should that happen, the City agrees that the right-of-way for

2 RETURN TO LYDIA-WILL PICK UP
MC 1378



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1 A3E-4FDI -41 98-8D41 -AF3B1 6C479BF

Voilmer Road may be reduced to match the ultimate design of Volimer Road as determined by El Paso
County.

4. kad. The Owners will be responsible for dedicating one-half (1/2)
of the necessary right-of-way for, and constructing Biack Forest Road so that Black Forest Road has four
(4) lanes and meets City standards for a principal arterial road with a total right-of-way of one hundred
twenty feet (120’) from its intersection with Woodmen Road north to the northern boundary of the
Property. Owners or the District (as defined in Section XII of this Agreement) will be entitled to cost
recovery for the costs to construct and improve the west one-half (1/2) of Black Forest Road from owners
having frontage on said road in accord with Section 7.7.705.B. of the City Code (Subdivision
Regulations).

5. Black Forest Road Cottonwood Creek Crossing. Owners acknowledge that there
is a need to construct the Black Forest Road bridge or box culvert, as applicable, across Cottonwood
Creek. The Owners, either directly or through the Districts, shall construct the bridge or box culvert over
Cottonwood Creek prior to the expiration of the second phase of the development but in any case prior to
December 31, 2011. The City commits to acquire the necessary right-of-way and easements necessary
for the construction of the bridge through the development process and/or through its powers of eminent
domain, The owners will be eligible for reimbursement as applicable, per Section 7.7.1001-1006 (Arterial
Roadway Bridges) of the City Code. City participation or reimbursement for the costs of construction of
the bridge or box culvert for the Black Forest Road Cottonwood Creek crossing will not be allowed.

6. CoicJop_pfjnternal Public Street Network to Serve Property. It is recognized
that there may be a need for certain Owners to construct portions of the internal public street network, as
illustrated on the approved Woodmen Heights Master Plan, that are not adjacent to their property. In
order to accommodate this situation, Owners shall dedicate the full right-of-way for any internal public
streets, as illustrated on the approved Master Plan, and a temporary construction easement as
reasonably required to complete construction of those internal roads, at any time requested by the City or
by an Owner that intends to commence development. Additionally, Owners who incur costs associated
with the design and construction of internal public streets within the Property shall be eligible for Cost
Recovery from Owners having frontage on said street in accord with Section 7.7.705.B. of the City Code
(Subdivision Regulations).

B. Marksheffel Road Sand Creek Crossiç. The Owners shall construct the Marksheffel
Road bridge or box culvert, as applicable, across Sand Creek at their expense. The owners will be
eligible for fifty percent (50%) reimbursement for the construction cost of the bridge or box culvert, as
applicable, per section 7.7.1001-1 006 (Arterial Roadway Bridges) of the City Code.

C. Traffic Control Devices and Street Lig. As required herein, the Owners shall pay for
installation of traffic and street signs, striping, and traffic control devices, permanent barriers, and street
lights, together with all associated conduit for all streets within or contiguous to the Property as mutually
determined necessary by the parties, and in accord with uniformly applied criteria set forth by the City.
The City agrees that the traffic signal at the intersection of Woodmen Road and Marksheffel Road may be
installed by the Woodmen Road Metro District rather than by Owners, but Owners will remain responsible
for that traffic signal if the District does not fund it. Streetlights will be required on collector and larger
streets or at intersections for public safety as reasonably determined necessary by the City and Utilities.
Traffic signals will be installed only after the intersection warrants such signals, as outlined in the Manual
on Uniform Traffic Control Devices in use at the time or another nationally accepted standard. Once the
intersection meets the outlined criteria, the City will notify the Owners in writing and the Owners will install
the traffic signal within one hundred eighty (180) days after receipt of that notice. The Owners will be
responsible for all components of the traffic signal, except the City will supply the controller equipment
and cabinet (the reasonable costs therefor to be reimbursed by the Owners). If not provided by the
District, the Owners will be responsible for purchasing and installing Intelligent Transportation Systems
(ITS) for transit and smart bus stops in the development and along adjacent arterials to the development.
This includes Woodmen Road. The level of ITS infrastructure will be determined as the levei of transit
service develops in the area; however, after the initial installation of the ITS, the Owners shall have no
obligation for operating, maintaining, repairing or upgrading such systems. The City shall be solely
responsible for further operating, maintenance, repair and upgrading of the ITS.

RETURN TO LYDIA-WILL PICK UP
MC 1378



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1 A3E-4FD1 -41 98-8D41 -AF3B1 6C479BF

0. Dring. A Master Development Drainage Plan (“MDDP’) shall be prepared and
submitted by the Owners to the City and approved by the City Engineer, prior to recording the annexation
plat. Final Drainage Reports and Plans shail be prepared and submitted by the Owners to the City and
approved by the City Engineer, prior to recording subdivision plats. Owners shall comply with all drainage
criteria, standards, policies and ordinances in effect at the time, including but not limited to the payment of
any drainage, arterial bridge and detention pond fees and the reimbursement for drainage facilities
constructed. Owners may in the future desire to have this property treated as a “closed” drainage basin
which does not require payment of drainage, bridge, or detention pond fees and there is no
reimbursement for drainage facilities constructed. This property may be treated as a “closed” basin
subject to approval by the City Engineer, the Colorado Springs/El Paso County Drainage Board, and City
Council of an amendment to the Sand Creek Drainage Basin Planning Study (“SCDBPS”) that “closes”
this portion of the Sand Creek basin and demonstrates 1) no adverse impact on other properties in Sand
Creek and 2) no negative impact on the fiscal integrity of the Sand Creek Drainage Basin fee structure.
Owners shall be responsible for conformance with the SCDBPS except that no storm drainage flows shall
exit the property in excess of historic flow rates until the downstream drainage facilities on the main
channel of Sand Creek between Woodmen Road and Constitution Avenue (to include Detention Pond
No. 2 which is south of Barnes Road) are either in place in accord with the SODBPS or the facilities that
are in place are adequate to accept flows in excess of historic that Owners desire to release. In the
alternative and subject to approval by the City Engineer, the Owners may agree to participate on an
equitable basis in the construction of Detention Pond No. 2 In exchange for the approval to release storm
flows at the flow rates specified in the SCDBPS.

VI.
UTILITIES

A. Gas Service. The City agrees that it will extend gas service for annexed properties
substantially within the existing Gas Service Area of the Colorado Springs Utilities (Utilities), as
designated by the Colorado Public Utilities Commission. Annexation of any lands not in the currently
existing Gas Service Area of the Utilities shall be added to the Gas Service Area of the Utilities, and
proper certification by the Colorado Public Utilities Commission shall be obtained.

Utilities agrees that it will extend gas service to annexed properties under its tariffs, ordinances,
and rules and regulations in effect at the time of any specific gas service request. Availability will be
covered by tariffs, ordinances and rules and regulations in effect at the time of the request. Annexation
does not imply supply guarantee. Gas service is also contingent upon the availability of public right-of-
way or private right-of-way provided by the Owners which will allow the extension of gas mains from
existing facilities.

Owners agree to dedicate or otherwise convey to the Utilities at the Owners’ expense, necessary
easements as determined by Utilities for the installation of gas transmission and distribution facilities.
Conveyance shall be made at the time of platting or at such time prior to the development of the Property
as determined by Utilities.

Owners of annexed properties will agree to provide the appropriate number of gas regulation
sites. The number and location of these sites shall be determined by Utilities. These regulation sites are
not subject to reimbursement and will be deeded to Utilities.

B. Electric Service. Utilities agrees that it will extend electric service to the Property in
accord with the rules and regulations established by the ordinances, resolutions, policies and safety
codes of the Regional Building Department and Utilities in effect at the time of development. Availability of
electric service will be covered by tariffs, ordinances and regulations in effect at the time that service is
requested. Owners may be required to enter into a Revenue Guarantee Contract for the extension of
electric service as determined by Utilities at the time of development. Annexation does not imply supply
guarantee. Owners agree to dedicate or otherwise convey to the City, at the Owners’ expense,
necessary easements as determined by the City for the installation of electric transmission and
distribution facilities. Conveyance shall be made at the time of platting or at such time prior to the
development of the Property as determined by Utilities. Any costs incurred in the acquisition of electric
service territory as a result of C.R.S. § 31-15-707 or § 40-9.5-201, et seq., shall be borne by the Owners.

4 RETURJs TO LYDIA..WILL PICK UP
MC 1378



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1 A3E-4FD1 -41 98-8D41 -AF3B 1 6C479BF

C. Wastewater Service. Owners will extend wastewater main line or service lines to the
Property and upon the Property at its expense in accord with the City’s ordinances and Utility regulations
in effect at the time of each specific wastewater request for service. Capacity of the system or treatment
facility is not guaranteed by annexation, but by availability of service at the time of request.

Owners agree to dedicate or otherwise convey to Utilities at the Owners’ expense, necessary
easements as determined by Utilities for the installation of wastewater collection facilities. Conveyance
shall be made at the time of platting or at such time prior to the development of the Property as
determined by the Utilities.

Owners agree they will pay a pro rata share of the treatment plant facility costs through the
established wastewater system development charge. They will pay their pro rata share of existing trunk
sewer costs through established recovery agreement charges. Collection facilities required to serve the
Property must be designed and constructed at the Owners’ expense and will be required to be oversized
to serve adjacent undeveloped land within the basin planning area boundaries.

Owners agree they will be required to participate with other developments on a fair share pro rata
basis in the present and future off-site relief sewers. Owners will be entitled to enter into appropriate
recovery agreements and to recover in accord with ordinances and regulations then in effect by the City.

0. Wir..Ser’ce. Owners or Utilities will extend water service to the Property in accord with
the ordinances and regulations in effect at the time of the specific water request. The first-come, first-
served policy will govern availability of supply. No guarantee of service is made by annexation. Owners
agree to dedicate or otherwise convey to Utilities, at the Owners’ expense, necessary easements as
determined by the City for the installation of water transmission and distribution facilities. Conveyance
shall be made at the time of platting or at such time prior to the development of the Property as
determined by the Utilities.

E. CosRecovery. Utilities agrees to develop a map indicating the areas outside of the
Property that are serviced by utilities extended by the Property and develop a cost recovery agreement
and mechanism so that cost recovery to the Property or Special District is required of those benefited
areas.

F. Limitation of Applicability. The provisions of this Agreement set forth the requirements of
Utilities in effect at the time of the annexation of the Owners’ Property. These provisions shall not be
construed as a limitation upon the authority of the City or Utilities to adopt different ordinances, rules,
regulations, resolutions, policies or codes which change any of the provisions set forth in this Agreement
so long as these apply to the City generally.

VII.
GROUJDWATER CONSENT

A. Grant to the Cy. Owners grant in perpetuity to the City the sole and exclusive right to
use any and all groundwater underlying or appurtenant to and used upon the Property. Owners
irrevocably consent, sell and convey to the City, in perpetuity, on behalf of themselves and any and all
successors in title, pursuant to C.R.S. § 37-90-137(4), as now existing or later amended, all rights to the
withdrawal and use of all groundwater underlying the Property. The execution of this Agreement shall
constitute a conveyance of all groundwater rights to the Oity without the necessity of a separate deed.
However, if requested by the City, Owners agree to execute satisfactory deeds or other instruments
conveying ownership and the right to withdraw for beneficial use any and all groundwater underlying or
appurtenant to and used upon the Property. The City agrees that it shall obtain any and all easements
necessary before construction and operation of any well on the Property. Wells constructed by the City
outside the Property may withdraw groundwater under Owners’ Property without additional consent.

The City agrees that any existing domestic or agricultural wells and other sources of water can
continue to be utilized by the Owners until such time as water service is extended by the City to the
Property and those Owners. This provision will include the temporary well constructed by Woodmen
Valley Chapel to service its church and related facilities. Additionally, once City water service is extended
to the Property, the City agrees that the existing wells can continue to be used by the owners for irrigation

5
RETURN TO LYDIA-WILL PICK UP

MC 1378



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1A3E-4FD1 -41 98-8D41 -AF3B1 6C479BF

of yards, fields and landscaping, but not for other domestic uses. The City also agrees that if the City is
unable or unwilling to provide water to the Property, Owners, at their eperise, will be entitled to obtain
well permits as agents of the City and utilize those wells to provide that underground City water for use by
the Property.

B. Groundwater_Draijg. Owners shall also construct facilities, if determined necessary by
the City Engineer and/or Utilities, for the safe discharge of all subsurface water into a drainage
conveyance facility. Subsurface drainage conveyance facilities are not eligible for drainage basin credit or
reimbursement.

VIII.
PARKS

A. Platting. All land to be dedicated to the City for trail purposes will be platted by the
Owners prior to dedication to the City. All land to be used as parks shall be platted and dedicated to the
Special District or to another ownership entity such as the Woodmen Heights Property Owners
Association (the ‘Association”). In consideration of Owners agreeing to construct, own and operate the
parks within the Property, City agrees that the Property will not be required to pay any park fees at the
time of platting or otherwise.

B. Construction_of Parks. Owners agree to pay the costs of constructing all of the trails and
parks as shown on the Master Plan. Proposed Improvements to the trail and park sites shall be
submitted to the City Parks Department for review and approval in the City Parks Department’s
reasonable discretion to insure that all parks and trails meet current trail and park development standards
at the time of construction. The costs of such improvements shall not be subject to reimbursement by the
City. The Owners and the City shall also agree upon the timing and phasing of construction and
improvements. The City will not program recreational activities in the park sites within the Property unless
requested by the owner of the parks. Any request of the City by the owner of the parks to schedule the
Parks will be subject to the City’ review and approval, in the City’s sole discretion. Trails and parks must
remain accessible to the general public in perpetuity for parkiand credit to be retained.

C. Maintenance. The parkland ownership entity will be responsible for perpetual
maintenance of dedicated, constructed and improved parks to the standards developed by the Parks,
Recreation and Cultural Services Department for these types of publicly accessible facilities.

D. Streets. The Owners or deveioper will plat and build streets adjacent to trails and parks
without reimbursement by the City.

IX.
PUBLIC LAND DEDICATION

Owners agree that all land dedicated or deeded to the City for municipal or utility purposes
(including school sites) shall be free and clear of liens and encumbrances. All fees that would be
applicable to the platting of land that is to be dedicated to the City (including school land, but excluding
park land which will not be dedicated to the City) shall be paid by Owners. Fees will be required on the
gross acreage of land dedicated as of the date of the dedication in accord with the fee requirements in
effect as of the date of the dedication. All dedications shall be platted by the Owners prior to conveyance,
unless otherwise waived by the City.

X.
FIRE PROTECTION

The Owners acknowledge that the Property is located within the boundaries of tbe Black Forest Fire
Rescue Protection District (the “Fire District”) and is subject to property taxes payable to the Fire District
for its services. The Owners further acknowledge that, after annexation of the Property to the City, the
Property will continue to remain within the boundaries of the Fire District until such time as the Property is
excluded from the boundaries of the Fire District. After annexation of the Property to the City, fire
protection services will be provided by the City through its Fire Department and by the Fire District unless
and until the Property is excluded from the Fire District. After pnvtfrnn the Property will be assessed

6
RETURN TO LYDIA-WILL PICK UP

lIC 1378



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1A3E-4FD1 -41 98-8D41 -AF3B1 6C479BF

property taxes payable to both the City and the Fire District until such time as the Property is excluded
from the boundaries of the Fire District.

The Owners understand and acknowledge that the Property may be excluded from the
boundaries of the Fire District under the provisions applicable to special districts, Article 1 of Title 32
C.R.S., and as otherwise provided by law. Upon request by the City, the person who owns the Property at
the time of the City’s request agrees to apply to the Fire District for exclusion of the Property from the Fire
District.

XI.
FIRE PROTECTION FEE

The Owners agree to pay a fee of S863.OO per acre as their share of the capital cost of a new fire
station and the initial apparatus purchase required to service this annexation as well as adjacent areas of
future annexation. This fee is payable prior to the issuance of the initial subdivision plat within each
phase of development as identified in Exhibit B, attached and made a part of this Agreement. The fee
will be adjusted annually using the prior year Denver/Boulder Consumer Price Index (CPI) as stated by
the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS). The City agrees as future annexations
occur within the service area of the proposed fire station the owners of future annexations will be required
to pay a per-acre fee to the City for the capital improvements to the fire station.

XII
SPECIAL DISTRICT

The Owners are in the process of forming one or more special districts (collectively referred to as
the ‘District”) to assist in the engineering, planning, design, construction, operation and maintenance of
many of the improvements required by this Agreement or for the overall development of the Property.
The City acknowledges the Owners’ intent to form and utilize the District, and agrees that the District may
own and operate the parks required to be installed pursuant to this Agreement, and that the District may
participate in cost recovery ordinances of the City for improvements installed by the District.

XIII.
PHASING

The Owners have developed a conceptual phasing plan for the overall development of the
Property, Exhibit B (the Phasing Plan”). The Phasing Plan indicates the timing required for installation
of the various infrastructure to accommodate the progressive and orderly development of the Property.
The City accepts the Phasing Plan and agrees that the various items of infrastructure may be installed in
accord with that Phasing Plan and that infrastructure will not be required to be installed in advance of that
shown on the Phasing Plan.

XIV.
ORDINANCE COMPLIANCE

Owners will comply with all tariffs, policies, rules, regulations, ordinances, resolutions and codes of
the City which now exist or are amended or adopted in the future, including those related to the
subdivision and zoning of land, except as expressly modified by this Agreement. This Agreement shall
not be construed as a limitation upon the authority of the City to adopt different tariffs, policies, rules,
regulations, ordinances, resolutions and codes which change any of the provisions set forth in this
Agreement so long as these apply to the City generally.

XV.
ASSIGNS AND DEED OF TRUST HOLDERS

Where as used in this Agreement, the term ‘the Owners” or “Property Owners,” shall also mean
any of the heirs, executors, personal representatives, transferees, or assigns of the Owners and all these
parties shall have the right to enforce and be enforced under the terms of this Agreement as if they were
the original parties hereto. Rights to specific refunds or payments contained in this Agreement shall
always be to the Owners unless specifically assigned to another person.

7
RETURN TO LYDIA-WILL PICK UP

MC 1378



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1 A3E-4FD1 -41 98-8D41 -AF3B1 6C4798F

By executing this Agreement, the financial institution or deed of trust holder agrees that: (1) should
it become owner of the Property through foreclosure or otherwise that it will be bound by the terms and
conditions of this Agreement to the same extent as Owners; and (2) should it become owner of the
Property, any provisions in its deed of trust or other agreements pertaining to the Property in conflict with
this Agreement shall be subordinate to and superseded by the provisions of this Agreement.

XVI.
RECORDING

This Agreement shall be recorded with the Clerk and Recorder of El Paso County, Colorado, and
constitute a covenant running with the land. This Agreement shall be binding on future assigns of the
Owners and all other persons who may purchase any of the Property from the Owners or any persons
later acquiring an interest in the Property. Any refunds made under the terms of this Agreement shall be
made to the Owners and not subsequent purchasers or assigns of the Property unless the purchase or
assignment specifically provides for payment to the purchaser or assignee and a copy of that document is
filed with the City.

XVII.
AMENDMENTS

This Agreement may be amended by any party, including their respective successors, transferees,
or assigns, and the City without the consent of any other party or its successors, transferees, or assigns
so long as the amendment applies only to the property owned by the amending party. For the purposes
of this article, an amendment shall be deemed to apply only to the property owned by the amending party
if this Agreement remains in full force and effect as to the property owned by any non-amending party.

Any amendment shall be recorded in the records of El Paso County, shall be a covenant running
with the land, and shall be binding on all persons or entities presently possessing or later acquiring an
interest in the Property subject to the amendment unless otherwise specified in the amendment.

XVIII.
HEADINGS

The headings set forth in the Agreement for the different sections of the Agreement are for
reference only and shall not be construed as an enlargement or abridgment of the language of the
Agreement.

XIX.
DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

If either party fails to perform any material obligation under this Agreement, and fails to cure the
default within thirty (30) days following notice from the non-defaulting party of that breach, then a breach
of this Agreement will be deemed to have occurred and the non-defaulting party will be entitled, at its
election, to either cure tbe default and recover the cost thereof from the defaulting party, or pursue and
obtain against the defaulting party an order for specific performance of the obligations under this
Agreement and, in either instance, recover any actual damages incurred by the non-defaulting party as a
result of that breach, including recovery of its costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred in the
enforcement of this Agreement, as well as any other remedies provided by law. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the City agrees that Owners will have no responsibility for completing any on- or off-site
improvements or otherwise complying with any other construction or payment obligations contained in
this Agreement until such time as Owners actually commence development on or within the Property by
obtaining a building permit for construction within the Property, at which time all of the obligations upon
Owners contained herein will be fully enforceable by the City.

8 RETURN TO LYDIA-WILL PICK UP
MC 1378



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1 A3E-4FD1 -41 98-8D41 -AF3B1 6C479BF

xx.
GENER

Except as specifically provided herein, City agrees to treat Owners and the Property in a non
discriminatory manner relative to the rest of the City. in addition, any consent or approval required
hereunder from the City shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. City agrees not to
impose any fee, levy or tax or impose any conditions upon the approval of development requests,
platting, zoning or issuance of any building permits for the Property, or make any assessment on the
Property that is not uniformly applied throughout the City, except as specifically provided in this
Agreement or the City Code. If the annexation of the Property or any portion thereof is challenged by a
referendum all provisions of this Agreement, together with the duties and obligations of each party, shall
be suspended, pending the outcome of the referendum election. If the referendum challenge to the
annexation results in the disconnection of the Property from the City, then this Agreement and all
provisions contained herein shall be null and void and of no further effect. If the referendum challenge
fails, then Owners and City shall continue to be bound by all terms and provisions of this Agreement.

XXI.
SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this Agreement is for any reason and to any extent held to be invalid or
unenforceable, then neither the remainder of the document nor the application of the provisions to other
entities, persons, or circumstances, shall be affected thereby but instead shall be enforceable to the
maximum extent permitted by law, provided, however, that it would not be inequitable to the party against
whom the Agreement is being enforced under the facts and circumstances there pertaining.

XXII.
TERM

This Agreement shall be in force and effect for a period of twenty (20) years from the effective date
hereof or until all terms and conditions contained herein have been complied with, whichever occurs first.
Thereafter, so long as the Property is located within the municipal boundaries of the City, it shall be
subject to the uniform ordinances, rules and regulations of the City generally applicable throughout the
City on a non-discriminatory basis. Upon the request of Owners, the City agrees from time to time to
provide a statement upon which Owners or a purchaser of the Property can rely indicating whether there
are any known defaults under this Agreement and whether there remain any obligations of Owners for
installation or maintenance of any public improvements or any payment therefor.

SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW

RETURN TO LYDIA-WILL PICK UP
9 MC 1378



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1 A3E-4FD1 -41 98-8D41 -AF3B1 6C479BF

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands and seals the day and year first
written above.

CITY OF COLORADO SPRINGS

—,‘ f!/V’

BY:______________________

ATTEST:

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

BY]&€14
CITAT1CRNEY U

10
RETURN TO LYDIA.WILL PICJ( UP

MC 1378



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1A3E-4FD1 -4198-8041 -AF3BI6C479BF

Owners

The Robert W. Kinzler Revocable Living Trust

By:
Its: Trustee

STATE OF COLORADO

COUNTY OF EL PASO)

sionexPII
of Colorado

MyCornrns1On Dcrres Sept 30, 2006

The Evelyn M. Kinzler Revocable Living Trust

STATE OF COLORADO
)ss.

COUNTY OF EL PASO)

RETURN TO LYDIA-WILL PICK UP
MC 1378

)ss.

Acknowledged before me this ,1/iay of SLl 2004, by j’S\’2A .&). ñ \Z
as Trustee of The Robert W. Kinzler Revocable Living Trust. )

NITNESS nivhaod nd official seal.

s:

___________________

NotaqPublic

Acknowledged before me this ‘day of 2004, by J4— y7)
as Trustee of The Evelyn M. Kinzler Revocable Living

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

My commission expires: t1

PublicLlJENNiFSTEN
Notary PUbIIC

State of ColoradO

My Commission Expires Sept. 30. 2006

11



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1 A3E-4FD1 -41 98-8D41 -AF3B1 6C479BF

EXF-IIBIT A

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY

12



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1A3E-4FD1 -41 98-8D41-AF3B1 6C479BF

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

A PORTION OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 13 SOUTH, RANGE 65 WEST, OF THE SIXTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN,
EL PASO COUNTY, COLORADO;

BASIS OF BEARINGS:
THE EAST LINE OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP
13 SOUTH, RANGE 65 WEST, OF THE SIXTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, MONUMENTED AT THE NORTH END
BY A 325” ALUMINUM CAP STAMPED LS 17496, AND AT THE SOUTH END BY A NO. 5 REBAR WITH
ALUMINUM CAP STAMPED LS 7228, ASSUMED TO BEAR SOO’17’36”E, A DISTANCE OF 1327.58 FEET.

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST
QUARTER OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 13 SOUTH, RANGE 65 WEST, OF THE 6TH P.M., EL PASO COUNTY,
COLORADO, ALSO BEING THE POINT OF BEGINNING;
THENCE S8907’O7”W, ON THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST
QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 8, A DISTANCE OF 1321.52 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE
NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 8;
THENCE NOO’17’39”W, ON THE WEST LINE OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER
OF SAID SECTION 8, A DISTANCE OF 433.42 FEET;
THENCE N89’07’07”E, A DISTANCE OF 1321.52 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF THE
NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 8;
THENCE S0017’36”E, ON SAID EAST LINE, A DISTANCE OF 433.2 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING;

CONTAINING A CALCULATED AREA OF 13.149 ACRES MORE OR LESS.

RETURN TO LYDIA..WILL PICK UP
MC p378



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1 A3E-4FD1 -41 98-8D41 -AF3B1 6C479BF

EXHIBIT B

PHASING PLAN

RETURN TO LYDIA-WILL PICK UP
MC 1378

13



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1A3E-4FDI-41 98-8D41 -AF3B1 6C479BF

S

W000MEN HEIGHTS
nanun

RETURN TO LYDIA-WILL PICK UP
MC 1378



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1 A3E-4FD 1-41 98-8D41 -AF3B1 6C479BF

WOODMEN HEIGHTS NO. 2
ANNEXATiON AGREEMENT

THIS ANNEXATION AGREEMENT (this “Agreement’), dated this day of 2004. is between
the City of Colorado Springs, a home rule city and Colorado municipal corporation (the “City”), and The
Robert W. Kinzier Revocable Living Trust, The Evelyn M. Kinzier Revocable Living Trust, and SWAT X,
LLC, a Colorado limited liability company (collectively referred to as “Owners” or the ‘Property Owners”).

INTRODUCT1ON

The Owners own all of the real property located in El Paso County, Colorado, identified and
described in the legal description attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Property”).

The growth of the Colorado Springs metropolitan area makes it likely that the Property will
experience development in the future and the Property is identified in the City Annexation Plan as
recommended for annexation. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, both the City and the
Owners wish to annex the Property into the City to ensure its orderly development. In consideration of
the mutual covenants contained in this Agreement, (he receipt and sufficiency of which are acknowledged
by each of the parties, the City and the Owners agree as follows.

ANNEXATION

The Owners have petitioned the City for annexation of the Property as set forth in Exhibit A. The
annexation will become effective upon final approval by the City Council and the recording of the
annexation plat and annexation ordinance with the El Paso County Clerk and Recorder.

All references to the Property or to the Owners’ Property are to the Property described in Exhibit
A except as otherwise indicated. -. -

III.
LAND USE

A Master Plan for the Property, Woodmen Heights Master Plan, has been proposed and
submitted to the City for approval. Owners will comply with the approved Master Plan or an amended
Master Plan approved in accord with applicable provisions of the Code of the City of Colorado Springs
2001, as amended or recodified (“City Code”).

IV.
ZONING

A. Zoninci. The City Planning and Community Development Department of the City agrees
to recommend that the initial zone for the Owners’ Property shall be Agricultural (A) upon annexation.
While zoned A, a development plan shall be required for any use requiring a building permit except for
agricultural uses. Owners acknowledge and understand that the City Council determines what is an
appropriate zone for the Property, and this recommendation does not bind the Planning Commission or
City Council to adopt an Agricultural zone for the Property.

B. Rezonig. Rezonings shall conform to the Master Plan, as approved or as amended by
the City in the future. Rezoning in accord with the land uses reflected on the Master Plan will occur prior
to actual development of the site.

• V.
- PUBLIC FACtLlTES

A. Sire1Jjjffjc. The Owners agree to construct, at the Owners’ expense (unless provided
by the Woodmen Road Metropolitan District as defined below (V.1.b.)) those street andior traffic



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1A3E-4FD1-4198-8D41-AF3B16C479BF

improvements within the Prcperty and those street and/or traffic improvements adjacent to or within the
Property that are more particularly described below. All street and/or traffic improvements shalt be under
the provisions of the City Subdivision Ordinance, Chapter 7 of the City Code. These improvements shall
also include mutually acceptable dedications of right-of-way and easements, and extension of streets arid
right-of-way. The provisions of City Code § 7.7.706 (Reimbursements) are excluded. City participation
or reimbursement for Arterial Streets within the Property wilt not be allowed.

1. Woodmen Road.

a. General. Woocimen Road shall be designated, designed and
constructed to meet City of Colorado Springs Public Works design standards as identified and in accord
with the County Major Thoroughfare Plan and the City Intermodal Transportation Plan. In the future, it
may be necessary to improve Woodmen Road beyond the level contemplated by this Agreement at this
time. The specifications for future improvements for which Owners are ultimately responsible to the
extent they are not installed by the District will be determined at the time of development plan approval.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Owners’ responsibility is for the construction of Woodrnen Road where it is
adjacent to the Property and related turning movement lanes and acceleration and deceleration lanes for
access into the Property in order to meet City standards for those Improvements.

b. Woodmen Road Metropolitan District. The City has previously entered
into an Intergovernmental Agreement Concerning Woodmen Road with the Woodmen Road Metropolitan
District (the “District’) approved February 25, 2003 (the “IGA”). The IGA provides for construction by the
District of improvements required by the City. If the District does not complete all of the required
Improvements adjacent to the Property prior to the time that the Owners desire to commence construction
of Improvements on the Property, in order to satisfy the City that the additional Improvements where
adjacent to the Property will be constructed, Owners must either: (1) post reliable and approved surety
with the City in an amount and form approved by the City in order to assure the availability of funds to
construct said Improvements; or (2) arrange for a further or amended intergovernmental agreement

_(“Amended IGA”) between the District and the City whereby the District agrees to finance and construct
all of said Improvements according to a schedule agreed to by the City, which Amended IGA
contemplates a review by the City of the financial plan and related bond documents of the District.

c. RicTht-of y. The District has previously acquired the necessary right-
of-way for Woodmen Road where adjacent to the Property (total right-of-way of two hundred ten feet
(210’)) and the Owners agree to dedicate any additional right-of-way as may be required for the approach
to Black Forest Road or Marksheffel Road and the other access locations to accommodate projected
turn ing movements to meet City standards, as determined by the Woodmen Corridor design. Further, it is
understood that all current and future street and/or traffc improvements shall be pursuant to the
provisions of the City Subdivision Ordinance, Chapter 7 of the City Code. The City has no objections to
the right-in, right-out accesses from Woodmen Road into the Property as shown on the Master Plan.

2. Marksheffel Road. The Owners shall be responsible for all costs, including
design, right-of-way dedication and construction, associated with Marksheffel Road, as a principal arterial
street with one hundred sixty feet (160’) of total right-of-way and with on-street bike lanes and a raised
median, from the north end of the property and continuing south crossing Woodmen Road until it
intersects with the existing City limits. The Owners shall plat and dedicate the full right-of-way for
Marksheffei Road when requested by the City. Owners will be entitled to cost recovery for the extension
of Marksheffel Road south of \‘‘oodmen Road in accord with Section 7.7.705.B. of the City Code
(Subdivision Regulations).

3. Volimer_Road. Owners, at Owners’ expense, will dedicate all necessary right-of-
way needed for and construct Vollmer Road connecting with Black Forest Road as shown on the
approved Master Plan for the Property. Owners will be responsible for upgrading Vollmer Road to meet
City standards as a minor arterial road with a total of eighty feet (80’) to one hundred twenty feet (120’) of
right-of-way required to be dedicated by Owners. The reason for the varying right-of-way width is to
enable the proper transitiorn-of Vollmer Road from the jurisdiction of the City to El Paso County. The
parties acknowledge that El Paso County is currently studying Vollmer Road and may in the future
downgrade the classification of the road. Should that happen, the City agrees that the right-of-way for

2



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1 A3E-4FD1 -41 98-8D41 -AF3B1 6C479BF

Vollmer Road may be reduced to match the iltimate degn of Voilmer Road as determined by El Paso
County.

4. Black ForesL Road. The Owners will be responsible for dedicating one-half (1/2)
of the necessary right-of-way for, and constructing Black Forest Road so that Black Forest Road has four
(4) lanes and meets City standards for a principal arterial road with a total right-of-way of one hundred
twenty feet (120’) from its intersection with Woodmen Road north to the northern boundary of the
Property. Owners or the District (as defined in Section XII of this Agreement) will be entitled to cost
recovery for the costs to construct and improve the west one-half (1/2) of Black Forest Road from owners
having frontage on said road in accord with Section 7.7.705.B. of the City Code (Subdivision
Regulations).

5. Black Forestfaa Cottonod Creek Crossing. Owners acknowledge that there
is a need to construct the Black Forest Road bridge or box culvert, as applicable, across Cottonwood
Creek. The Owners, either directly or through the Districts, shall construct the bridge or box culvert over
Cottonwood Creek prior to the expiration of the second phase of the development but in any case prior to
December 31, 2011. The City commits to acquire the necessary right-of-way and easements necessary
for the construction of the bridge through the development process andlor through its powers of eminent
domain. The owners will be eligible for reimbursement as applicable, per Section 7.7.1001-1 006 (Arterial
Roadway Bridges) of the City Code. City participation or reimbursement for the costs of construction of
the bridge or box culvert for the Black Forest Road Cottonwood Creek crossing will not be allowed.

6. çastrj_pfjternal Public Street Network to Serve Property. It is recognized
that there may be a need for certain Owners to construct portions of the internal public street network, as
illustrated on the approved Woodmen Heights Master Plan, that are not adjacent to their property. In
order to accommodate this situation, Owners shall dedicate the full right-of-way for any internal public
streets, as illustrated on the approved Master Plan, and a temporary construction easement as
reasonably required to complete construction of those internal roads, at any time requested by the City or
by an Owner that intends to commence development. Additionally, Owners who incur costs associated
with the design and construction of internal public streets within the Property shall be eligible for Cost
Recovery from Owners having frontage on said street in accord with Section 7. 7.705.8. of the City Code
(Subdivision Regulations).

B. Marksheffel Road Sand Creek Cro.jg The Owners shall construct the Marksheffel
Roa& bridge or box culvert, as applicable, across Sand Creek at their expense. The owners will be
eligible for fifty percent (50%) reimbursement for the construction cost of the bridge or box culvert, as
applicable, per section 7.7.1001-1006 (Arterial Roadway Bridges) of the City Code.

C. Irfic Control Devices and Street Lights. As required herein, the Owners shall pay for
installation of traffic and street signs, striping, and traffic control devices, permanent barriers, and street
lights, together with all associated conduit for all streets within or contiguous to the Property as mutually
determined necessary by the parties, and in accord with uniformly applied criteria set forth by the City.
The City agrees that the traffic signal at the intersection of VVôodmen Road and Marksheffel Road may be
installed by the Woodmen Road Metro District rather than by Owners, but Owners will remain responsible
for that traffic signal if the District does not fund it. Streetlights w11’ be required on collector and larger
streets or at intersections for public safety as reasonably determined necessary by the City and Utilities.
Traffic signals will be installed only after the intersection warrants such signals, as outlined in the Manual
on Uniform Traffic Control Devices in use at the time or another nationally accepted standard. Once the
intersection meets the outlined criteria, the City will notify the Owners in writing and the Owners will install
the traffic signal within one hundred eighty (‘180) days after receipt of that notice. The Owners will be
responsible for all components of the traffic signal, except the City will supply the controller equipment
and cabinet (the reasonable costs therefor to be reimbursed by the Owners). If not provided by the
District, the Owners will be responsible for purchasing and installing Intelligent Transportation Systems
(ITS) for transit arid smart bus stops in the development and along adjacent arterials to the development.
This includes Woodmen:Road. The level of ITS intrasrtcture will be determined as the level of transit
service develops in the area; however, after the initial installation of the ITS, the Owners shall have no
obligation for operating, maintaining, repairing or upgrading such systems. The City shall be solely
responsible for further operating, maintenance, repair and upgrading of the ITS.

3



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1A3E-4FD1-41 98-8D41-AF3B1 6C479BF

D. PrIne. A Master Development Drainage Plan (“MDDP’) shaH be prepared and
submitted by the Owners to the City and approved by the City Engineer, prior to recording the annexation
plat. Final Drainage Reports and Plans shall be prepared and submitted by the Owners to the City and
approved by the City Engineer, prior to recording subdivision plats. Owners shall comply with all drainage
criteria, standards, policies and ordinances in effect at the time, including but not limited to the payment of
any drainage, arterial bridge and detention pond fees and the reimbursement for drainage facilities
constructed. Owners may in the future desire to have this property treated as a ‘closed” drainage basin
which does not require payment of drainage, bridge, or detention pond fees and there is no
reimbursement for drainage facilities constructed. This property may be treated as a ‘closed” basin
subject to approval by the City Engineer, the Colorado Springs/El Paso County Drainage Board, and City
Council of an amendment to the Sand Creek Drainage Basin Planning Study (SCDBPS”) that “closes”
this portion of the Sand Creek basin and demonstrates 1) no adverse impact on other properties in Sand
Creek and 2) no negative impact on the fiscal integrily of the Sand Creek Drainage Basin fee structure.
Owners shall be responsible for conformance with the SCDBPS except that no storm drainage flows shall
exit the property in excess of historic flow rates until the downstream drainage facilities on the main
channel of Sand Creek between Woodmen Road and Constitution AvenUe (to include Detention Pond
No. 2 which is south of Barnes Road) are either in place in accord with the SCDBPS or the facilities that
are in place are adequate to accept flows in excess of historic that Owners desire to release. In the
alternative and subject to approval by the City Engineer, the Owners may agree to participate on an
equitable basis in the construction of Detention Pond No. 2 in exchange for the approval to release Storm
flows at the flow rates specified in the SCDBPS.

VI.
UTILITIES

A. The City agrees that it will extend gas service for annexed properties
substantially within the existing Gas Service Area of the Colorado Springs Utilities (Utilities), as
designated by the Colorado Public Utilities Commission. Annexation of any lands not in the currently

-, existing Gas Service Area of the Utilities shall be added to the Gas Service Area of the Utilities, and
proper certification by the Colorado Public Utilities Commission shall be obtained.

Utibties agrees that it wilt extend gas service to annexed properties under its tariffs, ordinances,
and rules and regulations in effect at the time of any specific gas service request. Availability will be
covered by tariffs, ordinances and rules and regulations in effect at the time of the request. Annexation
does not imply supply guarantee. Gas service is also contingent upon the availability of public right-of-
way or private right-of-way provided by the Owners which will allow the extension of gas mains from
existing facilities.

Owners agree to dedicate or otherwise convey to the Utilities at the Owners’ expense, necessary
easements as determined by UtIlities for the installation of gas transmission and distribution facilities.
Conveyance shall be made at the time of platting or at such time prior to the development of the Property
as determined by Utilities.

Owners of annexed properties will agree to provide the appropriate number of gas regulation
sites. The number and location of these sites shall be determined by Utilities. These regulation sites are
not subject to reimbursement and will be deeded to Utilities.

B. Electric_Servic.. Litihties agrees that it will extend electric service to the Property in
accord with the rules and regulations established by the ordinances, resolutions, policies and safety
codes of the Regional Building Department and Utilities in effect at the time of development. Availability of
electric service will be covered by tariffs, ordinances and regulations in effect at the time that service is
requested. Owners may be required to enter into a Revenue Guarantee Contract for the extension of
electric service as determined by Utilities at the time of development. Annexation does not imply supply
guarantee. Owners agree to dedicate or otherwise convey to the City, at the Owners’ expense,
necessary easements as determined by the City for the installation of electric transmission and
distribution facilities. Conveyance shall be made at the time of platting or at such time prior to the
development of the Property as determined by Utilities. Any costs incurred in the acquisition of electric
service territory as a result of C.R.S. § 31-15-707 or § 40-9.5-201, et seq., shall be borne by the Owners.

4



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1 A3E-4FD 1-41 98-8D41 -AF3B1 6C479BF

C. gstewaLer Service. Owners will extend wastewater main line or service lines o the
Property and upon the Property at its expense in accord with the City’s ordinances and Utility regulations
in effect at the time of each specific wastewater request for service. Capacity of the system or treatment
faciht is not guaranteed by annexation, but by availability of service at the time of request.

Owners agree to dedicate or otherwise convey to Utilities at the Owners expense, necessary
easements as determined by Utilities for the installation of wastewater collection facilities. Conveyance
shall be made at the time of platting or at such time prior to the development of the Property as
determined by the Utilities.

Owners agree they wifl pay a pro rata share of the treatment plant facility costs through the
established wastewater system development charge. They will pay their pro rata share of existing trunk
sewer costs through established recovery agreement charges. Collection facilities required to serve the
Property must be designed and constructed at the Owners’ expense and will be required to be oversized
to serve adjacent undeveloped land within the basin planning area boundaries.

Owners agree they will be required to participate with other developments on a fair share pro rata
basis in the present and future off-site relief sewers. Owners will be entitled to enter into appropriate
recovery agreements and to recover in accord with ordinances and regulations then in effect by the City.

D. Wter Service. Owners or Utilities wilt extend water service to the Property in accord with
the ordinances and regulations in effect at the time of the specific water request. The first-come, first-
served policy will govern availability of supply. No guarantee of service is made by annexation. Owners
agree to dedicate or otherwise convey to Utilities, at the Owners’ expense, necessary easements as
determined by the City for the installation of water transmission and distribution facilities. Conveyance
shall be made at the time of platting or at such time prior to the development of the Property as
determined by the Utilities.

E. ç.cstRecove.ry. Utilities agrees to develop a map indicating the areas outside of the
Property that are serviced by utilities extended by the Property and develop a cost recovery agreement
and mechanism so that cost recovery to the Property or Special District is required of those benefited
areas.

F. Limftationofgjicabijy. The provisions of this Agreement set forth the requirements of
Utilities in effect at the time of the annexation of the Owners’ Property. These provisions shall not be
construed as a limitation upon the authority of the City or Utilities to adopt different ordinances, rules,
regulations, resolutions, policies or codes which change any of the provisions set forth in this Agreement
so long as these apply to the City generally.

VII.
GROUNDWATER CONSENT

A. Grant tgjhe City. Owners grant in perpetuity to the City the sole and exclusive right to
use any and all groundwater underlying or appurtenant to and used upon the Property. Owners
irrevocably consent, sell and convey to the City, in perpetuity, on behalf of themselves and any and all
successors in title, pursuant to C.R.S. § 379O-137(4), as now existing or later amended, all rights to the
withdrawal and use of all groundwater underlying the Property. The execution of this Agreement shall
constitute a conveyance of all groundwater rights to the City without the necessity of a separate deed.
However, if requested by the City, Owners agree to execute satisfactory deeds or other instruments
conveying ownership and the right to withdraw for beneficial use any and all groundwater underlying or
appurtenant to and used upon the Property. The City agrees that it shall obtain any and all easements
necessary before construction and operation of any well on Lhe Property. Wells constructed by the City
outside the Property may withdraw groundwater under Owners’ Property without additional consent.

The City agrees that any existing domestic or agricultural wells and other sources of water can
continue to be utilized by te Owners until such time as water service is extended by the City to the
Property and those Owners. This provision will include the temporary well constructed by Woodmen
Valley Chapel to service its church and related facilities. Additionally, once City water service is extended
to the Property, the City agrees that the existing welts can continue to be used by the owners for irrigation

5



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1 A3E-4FD 1-41 98-8D41 -AF3B1 6C479BF

of yards. fields and landscaping, but not for other domestic uses. The City also agrees that if the City is
unable or unwilling to provide water to the Property, Owners, at their expense, will be entitled to obtain
welt permits as agents of the City and utilize those wells to provide that underground City water for use by
the Property.

B. GroundwatLDrainaQe. Owners shalt also construct facilides, if determined necessary by
the City Engineer and/or Utilities, for the safe discharge of all subsurface water into a drainage
conveyance facility. Subsurface drainage conveyance facilities are not eligible for drainage basin credit or
reimbursement.

VIII.
PARKS

A. Iatting. All land to be dedicated to the City for trail purposes will be platted by the
Owners prior to dedication to the City. All land to be used as parks shall be platted and dedicated to the
Special District or to another ownership entity such as the Woodmen Heights Property Owners
Association (the Association”). In consideration of Owners agreeing to construct, own and operate the
parks within the Property, City agrees that the Property will not be required to pay any park fees at the
time of platting or otherwise.

B. Qistruction of Parks. Owners agree to pay the costs of constructing all of the trails and
parks as shown on the Master Plan. Proposed improvements to the trail and park sites shall be
submitted to the City Parlçs Department for review and approval in the City Parks Department’s
reasonable discretion to insure that all parks and trails meet current trail and park development standards
at the time of construction. The costs of such improvements shall not be subject to reimbursement by the
City. The Owners and the City shall also agree upon the timing and phasing of construction and
improvements. The City will not program recreational activities in the park sites within the Property unless
requested by the owner of the parks. Any request of the City by the owner of the parks to schedule the
Parks will be subject to the City’ review and approval, in the City’s sole discretion. Trails and parks must
remain accessible to the general public in perpetuity for parkland credit to be retained.

C. Mai(@nance. The parkland ownership entity will be responsible for perpetual
rnairitenancIof dedicated, constructed arid improved parks to the standards developed by the Parks,
Recreation and Cultural Services Department for these types of publicly accessible facilities.

D. Streets. The Owners or developer will plat and build streets adjacent tb trails and parks
without reimbursement by the City.

IX.
j/j..lC LAND DEDCATIDN

Owners agree that all land dedicated or deeded to the City for municipal or utility purposes
(including school sites) shall be free and clear of liens and encumbrances. All fees that would be
applicable to the platting of land that is to be dedicated to the City (including school land, but excluding
park land which will not be dedicated to the City) shall be paid by Owners. Fees will be required on the
gross acreage of land dedicated as of the date f the dedication in accord with the fee requirements in
effect as of the date of the dedicaton. All dedications shall be platted by the Owners prior to conveyance,
unless otherwise waived by the City.

x.
FIRE PROTECTION

The Owners acknowledge that the Property is located within the boundaries of the Black Forest Fire
Rescue Protection District (the ‘FEre District”) and is subject to property taxes payable to the Fire District
for its services. The Owners further acknowledge that, after annexation of the Property to the City, the
Property will continue to reriiain within the boundaries of the Fire District until such time as the Property is
excluded from the boundaries of the Fire District. After annexation of the Property to the City, fire
protection services will be provided by the City through its Fire Department and by the Fire District unless
and until the Property is excluded from the Fire District. After annexation, the Property will be assessed

6



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1 A3E-4FD1 -41 98-8D41 -AF3B1 6C479BF

proDerty taxes payable to both th City and the Fire District until such time as the Property s excluded
from the boundaries of the Fire District.

The Owners understand and ackrowledçe that the Property may be excluded from the
boundaries of the Fire District under the provisions applicable to special districts, Article 1 of Title 32
C.R S., and as otherwise proilded by law. Upon request by the City, the person who owns the Property at
the time of the Ciys request agrees to apply to the Fire District for exclusion of the Property from the Fire
District.

xl.
FIRE PROTECTION FEE

The Owners agree to pay a fee of $863.00 per acre as their share of the capital cost of a new fire
station and the initial apparatus purchase required to service this annexation as well as adjacent areas of
future annexation. This fee is payable prior to the issuance of the initial subdivision plat within each
phase of development as identified in Exhibit B, attached and made a part of this Agreement. The fee
will be adjusted annually using the prior year DenvenlBoulder Consumer Price Index (CPI) as stated by
the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS). The City agrees as future annexations
occur within the service area of the proposed fire staon the owners of future annexations will be required
to pay a per-acre fee to the City for the capital improvements to the fire station.

XII
SPECIAL DISTRICT

The Owners are in the process of forming one or more special districts (collectively referred to as
the District”) to assist in the engineering, planning, design, construction, operation and maintenance of
many of the improvements required by this Agreement or for the overall development of the Property.
The City acknowledges the Owners’ intent to form and utilize the District, and agrees that the District may

•.own a,d operate the parks required to be installed pursuant to this Agreement, and that the District may
participate in cost recovery ordinances of the City for improvements installed by the District.

XIII.
HASING

-The Owners have developed a conceptual phasng plan for the overall development of the
Property. Exhibit B (the Phasing Plan’). The Phasing Plan indicates the timing required for installation
of the various infrastructure to accommodate the progressive and orderly development of the Property.
The City accepts the Phasing Plan and agrees that the various items of infrastructure may be installed in
accord with that Phasing Plan and that infrastructure will not be required to be installed in advance of that
shown on the Phasing Plan.

XIV.
ORDINANCE COMPLIANCE

Owners will comply with all tariffs, policies, rules, regulations, ordinances, resolutions and codes of
the City which now exist or are amended or adopted in the future, including those related to the
subdivision and zoning of land, except as expressly modified by this Agreement. This Agreement shall
not be construed as a limitation upon the authority of the City to adopt different tariffs, policies, rules,
regulations, ordinances, resolutions and codes which change any of the provisions set forth in this
Agreement so long as these appiy to the City generally.

xv.
ASGNS AND DEED OF TRUST HQLDERS

Where as used in;this Agreement, the term “the Owners” or ‘Property Owners,” shall also mean
any of (he heirs, executors, .personai representatives, transferees, or assigns of the Owners and all these
partes shall have the right to enforce and be enforced under the terms of this Agreement as if they were
the original parties hereto. Rights to specific refunds or payments contained in this Agreement shall
always be to the Owners unless specifically assigned to another person.

7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1A3E-4FD1 -41 98-8D41 -AF3B1 6C479BF

By executing this Agreement. the financial institution or deed of trust holder aorees that. (1) should
it beccrrre owner of he Property through foreclosure or otherwise that it will be bound by the terms and
conditions of this Agreement to the same extent as Owners; and (2) should it become owner of the
Property, any provisions in its deed of trust or other agreements pertaining tc the Property in conflct with
this Agreement shall be subDrdinate to and superseded by the provisions of this Agreement.

XVI.
RECORDING

This Agreement shall be recorded with the Clerk and Recorder of El Paso County, Colorado, and
constitute a covenant running with the land. This Agreement shall be binding on future assigns of the
Owners and all other persons who may purchase any of the Property from the Owners or any persons
later acquiring an interest in the Property. Any refunds made under the terms of this Agreement shall be
made to the Owners and not subsequent purchasers or assigns of the Property unless the purchase or
assignment specifically provides for payment to the purchaser or assignee and a copy of that document is
fiied with the City.

XVII.
AMENDMENTS

This Agreement may be amended by any party, including their respective successors, trarisferees,
or assigns, and the City without the consent of any other party or its successors, transferees, or assigns
so long as the amendment applies only to the property owned by the amending party. For the purposes
of this article, an amendment shall be deemed to apply only to the property owned by the amending party
if this Agreement remains in full force and effect as to the property owned by any non-amending party.

Any amendment shall be recorded in the records of EL Paso Co. ty, shall be a covenant running
::wjth the land, and shall be binding on all persons or entities presently possessing or later acquiring an

interest in the Property subject to the amendment unless otherwise specified in the amendment.

Xviii.
HEADINGS

The headings set forth in the Agreement for the different sections of the Agreement are for
reference only and shall not be construed as an enlargement or abridgment of the language of the
Agreement.

XIX.
DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

if either party fails to perform any material obligation under this Agreement, and fails to cure the
default within thirty (30) days following notice from the non-defaulting party of that breach, then a breach
of this Agreement will be deemed to have occurred and the non-defaulting party will be entitled, at its
election, to either cure the default and recover the cost thereof from the defaulting party, or pursue and
obtain against the defaulting party an order for specific performance of the obligations under this
Agreement and, in either instance, recover any actual damages incurred by the non-defaulting party as a
result of that breach, including recovery of its costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred in the
enforcement of this Agreement, as well as any other remedies provided by law. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the City agrees that Owners will have no responsibility for completing any on- or off-site
improvements or otherwise complying with any other construction or payment obligations contained in
this Agreement until such time as Owners actually commence development on or within the Property by
ob!3iring a building permit for construction within the Property, at which time all of the obligations upon
Owners contained herein will be fully enforceable by the City.

8



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1A3E-4FD1 -4198-8041 -AF3B1 6C4798F

xx
CENEAL

Except as specifieily orovided herein, City agrees to teat Owners and the Property in a non
isciirnir.atory manner reiave to the rest of the City. In addition, any onserit or approval required
hereunder from the City shall not be unrcasonably withheld, conaitioned or delayed. City .grees not to
impose any fee, levy or tax or impose any conditions upon the approval of development requests,
platting, zoning or issuance of any building pacrnits ‘or the Property, or make any assessment on the
Propertj that is not uniformly applied throughout the City, except as specificay provided in this
Agreement or the City Code. If the annexation of the Property or any portion thereof is challenged by a
referendum all provisions of this Agreement, together with the duties and obligations of each party, shall
be suspended, pending the outcome of the referendum election. If the referendum challenge to the
annexation results in the disconnection of the Property from the City, then this Agreement and all
provis:ons contained herein shall be null and void and of no further effect. If the referendum challenge
fails, then Owners and City shall continue to be oourid by all terms and provisions of this Agreement.

XXI.
SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this Agreement is for ny reason and to any extent held to be invalid or
unenforceable, then neither the remainder of the document nor the application of the provisions to other
enitties, persons c.r circumstances, shall be affected thereby but instead shall be enforceable to the
maximum extent perrntted by law, provided, however, that it would not be inequitable to the party against
whom the Agreement s bein enforced under the facts and circumstances there pertaining.

XXII.
TERM

This Agreement shal be in force and effect for a period of twenty (2O years from the effective date
hereof or until al terms ana conditions contained herein have been complied with whichever occurs first.
Thereafter, so long as the Property is located within the municipal boundaries of the City, it shall be
subject to the uniform ordinances, rules and regulaUons of the City generally applicable throughout the
City on a nn-discrirnir.atory basis. Upon the request of Owners, the City agrees from time to time to
provide a statement upon which Owners or a purchaser of the Property can rely indicating whether there
are any known defaults under this Agreement and whether there remain any obligations of Owners for
installation or maintenance of any public improvements or any payment trierelor.

SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW

9



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1 A3E-4FDI-41 98-8D41 -AF3B 1 6C479BF

IN V!TESS VVHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands and seals the day and year first
written above.

CITY OF COLORADO Si RINGS

BY.

___________________

MAYOR

ATTEST:

BY:__________________
CITY CLERK

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

BY:1tfl iZ1io L
CITj ATTORNEY

10



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFDIA3E-4FD 1-41 98-8D41 -AF3B16C479BF

Qwnr

The Robert W. Kiner Revocable Living Trust

4)
STATE OF COLORADO

)ss.
COUNTY OF EL PASO)

Ackr.owledged before me this “day of ZLAA 1 2004, by V
as Trustee of The Robert W. Kinzlei Revocable Living Trust. -‘

WiTNESS my hand and official seal.

STEVEN
Notary Public

_____ ______________

[SEALPIOte of Colorado

My Commission Expires Sept. 30, 2006

The Evelyn M. Kinzer Revocable Living Trust

By: . &Y
Its:

STATE OF COLORADO
)ss.

COUNTY OF EL PASO)

Acknowledged before me this -_Z1day of 2004, by YYI. Vñ(
as Trustee of The Evelyn M. Kinzler Revocable Living Trust. -

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

. seirs: ‘-k/ C’./ti-’

___

My Commission ExpiIe.3 JO. 2OQ,

ry Public

11



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1 A3E-4FD1 -41 988D41 -AF3B1 6C479BF

Owcrs:

SWAT X, LLC, a Colorado imite i i!ity company

-

STATE OF COLORADO

)ss.
COUNTY OF EL PASO)

Acknowledged before me this

_____

day of

________

2004, by ‘h,h L.
as

________________________

ofSWAT X, LLC, a CoIora limited liability company.

WITNESS my hand and official

My commisson expires:

[SEAL]

My Commission EirBs 0W2712007

12



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1 A3E-4FD1 -41 98-8D41 -AF3B1 6C479BF

Deed of Trust Holders:

Marksheffel-Woodmen Investments, LLC, a Coorado rnited liability co fly

By:

________________________

By:
Lindsay J. Case Randle W. Case II

ts: Co-Manager Its: Co-Manager

STATE OF COLORADO

COUNTY OF EL PASO
)ss.

Acknowledged before me this day of LA.12 2004, by Lindsay J. Case and Randle
W. Case II, as Co-Managers of Marksheffel-Woodmen lnv(%tments, LLC, a Colorado limited liability
company.

STATE OF

_________

COUNTY OF

as

expires: £26 — .1— jtc’

)ss.
I

Acknowledged before me this
of Bank Midwest.

i)
Notari Public Cl

S€ MFACK AJ
/I,cJI(CrJTh

______

day of

_________

2004, by

[SEAL]

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

My commission expires:

___________

Notary Public

Bank Midwest

By:

______

Its:

_________

13



C
)

a 3 a

en -C a 3 -C r 0 9 C a a 3 C a a x a ‘1
: a

ID C C
,

C C
l)

CD D m D CD 0 0 CD ID a 11 ID m -T
,

ID CD ID -T
,

() 0
) 0 CD w

C
/C

L
i

n
j,

.1
Q

H
C

>

tL
m

n
-<

\
)
J
,-

-r
3

z
C

j r
E

j

1
D

—
.

‘•
.:

a_
_c N1 ©a -
p

;:
c
3
-

c
-

(D C
/)

I
-
, z -

I



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1 A3E-4F01 -41 98-8D41 -AF3B1 6C479BF

RATIFICATION OF ANNEXATION AGREEMENT

This Ratifleation of Annexation Agreement (the “Ratification”) is made this

_______

day
of

____________________________,

2004, by Bank Midwest, N.A. (‘Lender”), whose address is
1100 Main Sircet, Kansas City, Missouri 64105.

Recitals

WHEREAS, Lender is the holder of that certain Deed of Trust granted by SWAT X,
LLC, a Colorado limited liability company (“Borrower”) which was recorded in the real property
records of El Paso County, Colorado on June 17, 2004 at Reception No. 204100841 (the “Deed
of Trust”), which Deed of Trust encumbers that crtain property described therein as the “Real
Property.”

WHEREAS, a portion of the Real Property is currently in the process of being
annexed into the City of Colorado Springs (the “City”) pursuant to the terms of the Woodmen
Heights No. 2 Annexation Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Annexation
Agreement”).

WHEREAS, as a condition to the annexation and to the recordation of the Annexation
Plat and the Annexation Agreement for the Property, the City is requiring that Lender
acknowledge and ratify the Annexation Agreement and the Annexation Plat, and Borrower has
requested that Lender so acknowledge and ratify the Annexation Agreement and Annexation
Plat.

NOW, THEREFORE, Lender hereby acknowledges and consents to the annexation of the
Property into the City and ratifies and confirms the Annexation Agreement and consents to the
recording of the Annexation Agreement and the Annexation Plat, and further agrees that neither
the Annexation Agreement nor the Annexation Plat will be extinguished, revoked, rescinded or
otherwise adversely impacted by any foreclosure or other enforcement action that Lender, it
successors and assigns, may hereafter take under the Deed of Trust, and that the Property wiil at
all times remain within the City and will remain subject to the terms of the Annexation
Agreement notwithstanding any foreclosure or other enforcement action taken under the Deed of
Trust.

Executed this 3day of , 2004.

S (u,c,I CIinls C-l)Ca Lindsa J 2’)SO Vc’,d,,cn IIc.hi, Dc.curnnlsRJ,cL,on S’a X (ja,. Mid-s: F,I,n, xc.. 2.dc



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1A3E-4FD1-41 98-8D41 -AF3B16C479BF

EXHIBIT A

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY

14



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1 A3E-4FD1 -41 98-8D41 -AF3B1 6C479BF

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

A TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN PORTIONS OF SECTIONS 5 AND 8, TOWNSHLP 13 SOUTH, RANGE
65 SOUTH OF THE SIXTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, EL PASO COUNTY, COLORADO,

BASIS OF BEARINGS: THE SOUTH LINE OF SECTION 5, TOWNSHIP 13 SOUTH, RANGE 65 WEST OF THE
SIXTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, EL PASO COUNTY, COLORADO, MONUMENTED AT THE EAST END BY A 3.25”
ALUMINUM CAP STAMPED “LS 17496”, AND AT THE WEST END BY A 325” ALUMINUM CAP STAMPED
iS 17496” ASSUMED TO BEAR S89’23’04”W, A DISTANCE OF 5221.44 FEET;

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 13 SOUTH, RANGE 65 WEST
OF THE SIXTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, EL PASO COUNTY, COLORADO,

THENCE SOO’17’36”E, ON THE EAST LINE OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST
QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 8, A DISTANCE OF 30.00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTHERLY
RIGHT—OF—WAY LINE OF WOODMEN ROAD AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING;

THENCE SOO’17’36”E, ON SAID EAST LINE, A DISTANCE OF 864.15 FEET;
THENCE S89’O7’O7”W, A DISTANCE OF 1321.52 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF THE
NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 8;
THENCE NOO’17’39”W, ON SAID WEST LINE, A DISTANCE OF 870.28 FEET TO A POINT ON THE
SOUTHERLY RIGHT—OF—WAY OF WOODMEN ROAD;
THENCE N0O’17’39”W, A DISTANCE OF 220.73 FEET, T0A POINT ON THE NORTHERLY
RIGHT—OF—WAY LINE OF WOODMEN ROAD AS RECORDED UNDER RECEPTION NO. 202224865,
THENCE NOO’17’39”W, A DISTANCE OF 1551.62 FEET;
THENCE N89’07’07”E, A DISTANCE OF 1321.56 FEET;
THENCE S0017’36”E, A DISTANCE OF 1589.79 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTHERLY
RIGHT—OF—WAY LINE OF WOODMEN ROAD AS RECORDED UNDER RECEPTION NO. 202224865,
RECORDS OF EL PASO COUNTY, COLORADO,
THENCE SOO’17’36”E, A DISTANCE OF 188.70 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING;

CONTAINING A CALCULATED AREA OF 80.168 ACRES.



a C
) Cl
)

(a
—

I
D

l
I

—
J

I
I

I
I”

I
I

III
1

___
__

I
!i

j___
___

__

I
I

I
J
I

I
-H

:±
6
J
±

J
E

J
!
1
J

I
_
_
_

I
—

1

1
L

’
i®

1I
’n

i-
‘f-

__
—

i
ç
j
i

rj
i

L
i/

,
-

I I
j

I
111

111
1

Ii
I I

•i—
—

—
I

I

II
‘!1

4
L_

F
—

F
j

I
jj

(L
V

%
:®

!I
1’!

11
IL

l
I

1
I

I
II

I
I!

II
t

u
—

1-
-1

--
L

_
_
-r

I
II

i
P

1
I

Ill
Z

.
-
-
J
{
.’

•
•1

L
L

I.
LI

I
-

-
-

-
—

-
r

-
-
.

____
_

__
_ \

C
1

‘
‘

1
jn

Q
.

_
_
_

t
4
J

I

€;
ji

Ill
‘\

ihi
ll

.
-
-
.

9.
I.I

I
..
“

I
—

.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1 A3E-4FD1 -41 98-8D41 -AF3B1 6C479BF

EXHIBIT B

PHASING PLAN

15



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1 A3E-4FD 1-41 98-8D41 -AF3B1 6C479BF

EXHIBIT A

ANNEXATION AGREEMENT

(See attached)

S:CwwiCIients CD C.c L.indsayj OL’O Woodmn HihL D clop nLDØeamtS RaI,flcahon Sssa X Rank 1idcsi Pjirn Tc. .doc



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1A3E-4FD1 -41 98-8D41 -AF3B1 6C479BF

WOODME.N HEIGHTS NO. 3
ANNEXATION AGREEMENT

THIS ANNEXATION AGREEMENT (this ‘Agreement’), dated this 3day 2004, is between
toe City of Colorado Springs, a home rule city and Colorado municipal corporation (the “City”), and
Chades H. Caswell, Rose S. Caswell, Woodmen Valley Chapel, a Colorado non-profit corporation, and
S’A’AT X. LLC, a Colorado limited liability company (collectively referred to as “Owners” or the “Properly
Owners”).

Th4JRODUCTION

The Owners own all of the real property located in El Paso County, Colorado, identified and
described in the legal description attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Property”).

The growth of the Colorado Springs metropolitan area makes it likely that the Property will
experience development in the future and the Property is identified in the City Annexation Plan as
recommended for annexation. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, both the City and the
Owners wish to annex the Properiy into the City to ensure its orderly development. In consideration of
the mutual covenants contained in this Agreement, the receipt and sufficiency of which are acknowledged
by each of the parties, the City and the Owners agree as (ollows.

ANN EXATION

The Owners have petitioned the City for annexation of the Property as set forth in Exhibit A. The
annexation wilt become effective upon final approval by the City Council and the recording of the

annexation plat and annexation ordinance with the El Paso County Clerk and Recorder.

All references to the Property or to the Owners’ Property are to the Property described in Exhibit
A except as otherwise indicated.

Ill.
LAND USE

A Master P!an for the Property, Woodmen Heights Master Plan, has been proposed and
submitted to the City for approval. Owners will comply with the approved Master Plan or an amended
Master i)ta approved in accord with applicable provisions of the Code of the City of Colorado Springs
2001, as amended or recodifled (“City Code’).

lv.
ZONING

A. Zoning. The City Planning and Community Development Department of the City agrees
to recommend that the inihal zone for the Owners’ Property shall be Agricultural (A) upon annexation.
While zoned A, a development plan shall be required for any use requiring a building permit except for
agricultural uses. Owners acknowledge and understand that the City Council determines what is an
appropriate zone icr the Property, and this recommendation does not bind the Planning Commission or
City Council to adopt an Agricltrai zone for the Property.

B. Rezong. Rezonings shalt conform to the Master Plan, as approved or as amended by
the City in the fu!ure. Rezoning in accord with the land uses reflected on the Master Plan will occur prior
to actual development of the site.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFDIA3E-4FDI -41 98-8D41 -AF3B1 6C479BF

V.
PUBLIC FACILITIES

A. SIre c. The Owners agree to construct, al the Owners’ expense (urile3s provided
by the Woodmen Road Metropolitan District as defined below (V.1 h)) those street and/or traffic
improvements within the Property and those Street and/or traffic improvements adjacent to or within the
Property that are more particularly described below. All street and/or traffic improvements shall be under
the provisions of the City Subdivision Ordinance, Chapter 7 of the City Code. These improvements shall
also include mutually acceptable dedications of right-of-way and easements, and extension of streets and
rightpf-way. The—previsions of City .Cde § 7.7.706 (Reimbursements) are excluded. City participation
or reimbursement for Arterial Streets within the Property will not be allowed.

-

. 1. Woodmen Road.

a. 3eneL. Woodmen Road shall be designated, designed and
constructed to meet City of Colorado Springs Public Works design standards as identified and in accord
with the County Major Thoroughfare Plan and the City Intermodal Transportation Plan, ln the future, it
may be necessary to improve Woodmen Road beyond the level contemplated by this Agreement at this
time. The specifications for future improvements for which Owners are ultimately responsible to the
extent they are not installed by the District will be determined at the time of development plan approval.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Owners’ responsibility is for the construction of Woodmen Road where it is
adjacent to the Property and related turning movement lanes and acceleration and deceleration lanes for
access into the Property in order to meet City standards for those improvements.

b. WoodrnenRoadMetropolinDisik. The City has previously entered
into an Intergovernmental Agreement Concerning Woodmen Road with the Woodmen Road Metropolitan
District (the ‘District) approved February 25, 2003 (the “IGA’). The IGA provides for construction by the
District of improvements required by the City. If the District does not complete all of the required
.lmprovements adjacent to the Property prior to the time that the Owners desire to commence construction
of Improvements on the Property, in order to satisfy the City that the additional Improvements where
adjacent to the Property will be constructed, Owners must either: (1) post reliable and approved surety
with the City in an amount arid form approved by the City in order to assure the availability of funds to
construct said Improvements, or (2) arrange for a further or amended intergovernmental agreement
(‘Amended IGA”) between the District and the City whereby the District agrees to finance and construct
all of said Improvements according to a schedule agreed to by the City, which Amended IGA
contemplates a review by the City of the financial plan and related bond documents of the District.

c. jgffl-of_V’Iay. The District has previously acquired the necessary right-
of-way for Woocimeri Road where adjacent to the Property (total right-of-way of two hundred ten feet
(210’)) and the Owners agree to dedicate any additional right-of-way as may be required for the approach
to Black Forest Road or MarkshefIel Road and the other access locations to accommodate projected
turning movements to meet City standards, as determined by the Woodmen Corridor design. Further, it is
understood that all current and future street and/or traffic improvements shall be pursuant to the
provisions of the City Subdivision Ordinance, Chapter 7 of the City Code. The City has no objections to
the right-in, right-out accesses from Woodmeri Road into the Property as shown on the Master Plan.

2. ifel Road. The Owners shall be responsible for all costs, including
design, right-of-way dedication and construction, associated with Marksheffel Road, as a principal arterial
street with one hundred sixty feet (160’) of total right-of-way and with on-street bike lanes and a raised
median, from the north end of the property and continuing south crossing Woodmen Road until it
intersects with the existing City limits. The Owners shall plat and dedicate the full right-of-way for
Marksheffel Road when requested by the City.- Owners will be entitled to cost recovery for the extension
of Marksheffel Road south of Woocimen Road in accord with Section 7.7.705.B. of the City Code
(Subdivision Regulations).

3. Vollmer Road. Owners, at Owners’ expense, wilt dedicate all necessary right-of-
way needed for and construct Vollmer Road connecting with Black Forest Road as shown on the
approved Master Plan for the Property. Owners will be responsible for upgrading Volimer Road to meet
City standards as a minor arterial road with a total of eighty feet (80’) to one hundred twenty feet (120’) of

2 -



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1A3E-4FD1 -41 98-8D41 -AF3B1 6C479BF

righl-of.way required to he drdicated by Ow’icrs: The rea’-on for the ‘ar ng righl-o1-way dth !3 to
enable the proper trans:ticn of Voilmer Road from the )urisdictio of the City tO El Paso Cour.ty. The
parties acknowledge that El Paso County is currently studying Vollmer Read and may in the futue
downgrade the classification of the road. Should that hapoen, the City a’reus that thr’ right-ot-way for
Volimer Road may be reduced to match the u’limate design of Voilnier Road as determined by El Paso
County.

4. The Owners will be responsible for dedicating one-half (1/2)
of the necessary ri9hl-of-way for, and constructing Black Forest Road so that Black Fo’est Road has four
(4) lanes aIJ meets City standãs for a principal artenal road with a total right-of-way of one hundred
twenty feet (120’)jffom its intersection with Woodmen Road north to the northern boundary af the
Proper1y. Owners or the Distrir(as def.9ed in Section XII of this Agreement) will be entitled to cost
uecoery for the costs to construct J improve the west one-half (1/2) of Black Forest Road from owners
having frontage on said road in accord with Section 7.7.705.B. of the City Code (Subdivision
Regulations).

5. Black_Forest Road Cottonwood Cre j_Cjflg. Owners acknowledge that there
is a need to construct the Black Forest Road bridge or box culvert, as applicable, across Cottonwood
Creek. The Owners, eher chreotly or through the Districts, shall construct the bridge or box culvert over
Cottonwood Creek prior to the expiration ol the second phase of the development but in any case prior to
December 31, 2011. The City commits to acquire the necessary right-of-way and easements necessary
for the construction of the bridge through the development process and/or through its powers of eminent
domain, The owners will be eligible for reimbursement as applicable, per Section 7.7.1001-1006 (Arterial
Roadway Bridges) of the City Code. City participation or reimbursement for the costs of construction of
the bridge or box culvert for the Black Fores: Road Cottonwood Creek crossing will not be allowed.

6. Construction of Internal Pubhc Street Network to Serve Property. It is recognized
that there may be a need for certain Owners to construct portions of the in.ernal public street network, as
illustrated on the approved Woodmen Heights Master Plan, that are not adjacent to their property. In
order to accommodate this situation, Owners shall dedicate the full right-of-way for any internal public
streets, as illustrated on the approved Master Plan, and a temporary construction easement as
reasonably required to complete construction of those internal roads, at any time reques*ed by the City or
by an Owner that intends to commence deveioprnent. Additionally, Owners who incur costs associated
with the design and construction of internal public streets within the Property shall be eligible for Cost
Recevery from Owners having frontage or! said street in accord with Section 7 7.705.3. of the City Code
(Subdivision Regulations).

B. MarkshefI& Road Sand Creek Crossing. The Owners shall construct the Markshetiel
Road bridge or box cuvert, as applicable, across Sand Creek at their expense. The owners will be
eligible for fifty percent (50%) reimbursement for the construction cost of the bridge or box culvert, as
applicable, per section 7.7.1001-1006 (Arterial Roadway Bridges) of the City Code.

C. Trafntrolevices and StreLights. As required herein, the Owners shall pay for
installation of traffic and street signs, striping, and traffic control devices, permanent barriers, and street
ligh’s, together with all associated conduit for all streets within or contiguous to the Property as mutually
determined necessary by the parties, and in accord with uniformly applied criteria set forth by the City.
The City agrees that the traffic signal at the intersection of Woodmen Road and Marksheffel Road may be
installed by the Woodmen Road Metro District rather than by Owners, but Owners will remain responsible
for that traffic signal if the District does not fund it. Streetlights will be required on collector and larger
streets or at intersections for public safety as reasonably determined necessary by the City and Utilities.
Traffic signals will be installed only after the intersection warrants such Signals, as outlined in the Manual
on Uniform Traffic Control Devices in use at the time or another nationally accepted standard. Once the
intersection meets the outlined criteria, the Cily wilt notify the Owners in witing and the Owners will install
the traffic signal within one hundred eighty (180) days after receipt of that notice. The Owners will be
responsible for au components of the traffic signal, except the City will supply the controller equipment
and cabinet (the reasonable costs therefor to be reimbursed by the Owners). If not provided by the
Drict, the Owners will be responsible for purchasing and installing Intelligent Transportation Systems
(lTS for transit and smart bus stops in the development and along adjacent arterials to the development.

Rd:: be determined as the1v of transit::

3



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1 A3E-4FD1 -41 98-8D41 -AF3B1 6C479BF

service develops in the area; however, after the initial installation of the ITS, the Owners shall have no
ubigation (or operating, mantainmg, repairing or upgradi g such systems. The City shall be sole!y
responsible for further operating, maintenance, repair and upgrading of the ITS.

0. Drainage. A Master Development Drainage Plan (“MDDP”) shall be prepared and
submitted by the Owners to the City and approved by the City Engineer, prior to recording the annexation
plat. Final Drainage Reports and Plans shall be prepared and submitted by the Owners to the City and
approved by the City Engineer, prior to recording subdivision plats. Owners shall comply with all drainage
criteria, standards, policies and ordinances in effect at the time, including but not limited to the payment of
any drainage-arterial bridge and detention pond fees and the reimbursement for drainage facilities
constructed. Owner.smay in the future desire to have this property treated as a “closed’ drainage basin
which doe not re’uirë paymenLof drainage, bridge, or detention pond fees and there is no
reimbursement for drainage facilities constructed. This property may be treated as a ‘closed” basin
subject to approval by the City Engineer, the Colorado Springs/El Paso County Drainage Board, and Cily
Council of an amendment to the Sand Creek Drainage Basin Planning Study (“SCDBPS”) that “closes’
this portion of the Sand Creek basin and demonstrates 1) no adverse impact on other properties in Sand
Creek and 2) no negative impact on the fiscal integrity of the Sand Creek Drainage Basin fee structure.
Owners shall be responsible [or conformance with the SCDBPS except that no storm drainage flows shall
exit the property in excess of historic flow rates until the downstream drainage facilities on the main
channel of Sand Creek between Wood men Road and Constitution Avenue (to include Detention Pond
No. 2 which is south of Barnes Road) are either in place in accord with the SCDBPS or the facilities that
are in place are adequate to accept flows in excess of historic that Owners desire to release. In the

alternative and subject to approval by the City Engineer, the Owners may agree to participate on an

equitable basis in the construction of Detention Pond No. 2 in exchange for the approval to release storm

flows at the flow rates specified in the SCDBPS.

VI.
UTILITIES

A. QsSeryice. The City agrees that it will extend gas service for annexed properties
substantially within the existing Gas Service Area of the Colorado Springs Utilities (Utilities), as
designated by the Colorado Public Utilities Commission. Annexation of any lands not in the currently
existing Ga Service Area of the Utilities shall be added to the Gas Service Area of the Utilities, and
proper certification by the Colorado Public Utilities Commission shall be obtained.

Utilities agrees that it will extend gas service to annexed properties under its tariffs, ordinances,
and rules and regulations in effect at the time of any specific gas service request. Availability will be
covered by tariffs, ordinances and rules and regulations in effect at the time of the request. Annexation
does not imply supply guarantee. Gas service is also contingent upon the availability of public right-of-
way or private right-of-way provided by the Owners which will allow the extension of gas mains from
existing facilities.

Owners agree to dedicate or otherwise convey to the Utilities at the Owners’ expense, necessary
easements as determined by Utilities for the installation of gas transmission and distribution facilities.
Conveyànceshall be made at the time of platting or at such time prior to the development of the Properly
as determined by Utilities.

Owners of annexed properlies will agree to provide the appropriate number of gas regulation
sites. The number and location of these sites shall be determined by Utilities. These regulation sites are
not subject to reimbursement and will be deeded to Utilities.

B. ic1ric Service. Utilities agrees that it will extend electric service to the Property in
accord with the rules and regulations established by the ordinances, resolutions, policies and safety
codes of the Regional Building Department and Utilities in effect at the time of development. Availability of
electric service will be covered by tariffs, ordinances and regulations in effect at the time that service is
requested. Owners may be—required to enter into a Revenue Guarantee Contract for the extension of
electric service as determined by Utilities at the time of development. Annexation does not imply supply
guarantee. Owners agree to dedicate or otherwise convey to the City, at the Owners’ expense,
necessary easements as determined by the City for the installation of electric transmission and

4



A
1
0
4
1
0

la
O

IC
C

7
0
7
1
0
0

*
0

1
0

7
1

1
7

*
0

4
4

*
0

%
T

*
IS

0
1
1
*
7
,7

.7
1
0
*
0
0
T

O
1
7
1
*
7
*
7
1
7
7
0
0
0
.4

0
4
1
*
0

0
.7

1
1

*
0

1
1

4
7

1
.0

1
.0

1
*

0
0

*
1

*
*0

K
4
7
0

T
IE

7
0
1
1
4
0
*

*0
1
4
1
7
1
0
4
.

T
N

O
fl

7
3
0
A

m
.

7
1
4
4
*
0
0
1

0
4

0
7
7
(

51
10

44
41

*
T

IP
0
7
*
0
0
1
,3

1
*
0
0
.1

*
0
3
7
7
1
0
0
4
0
1
0
0
7
7
4
*

£
*
0

A
A

L
A

SI
IE

4
0
1
7
1
0
4

¶1
1

1
1
1
*
0
*
1
5
0
4
0
0
1
0
0
.4

0
0
7
7
0
1
7
7
.

A
0
0
7
0
0
1
0

7
,I

.4
4

70
11

0
0
4
0
0
1
1
7
0
1
.

II
O

f
0
0
7
1
0
7
7
1
0

0
7
1
.0

7
0
1
*
0
0
7
0
7
7
7
1
*
0

0
7

0
7

4.
A

*0
75

1*
01

3
’

*
0
0

N
S

A
3
0
1
7
1
0
*
0
1
7
7
0
0
1
0
1
1
4
0
0
0
7
0
*
0
0
*
7
1
0
*
0
0
0
4
1
0

0
0

4
0

*
*
4
0

17
0

X
1

I
*

1
1

1
0

0
1

7
7

0
7

C
7
1
*
.1

0
1

1
*

A
0

1
7

1
1

*
*0

7
1

0
7

1
0

1
0

1
‘
0

4
0
0
1
*
7
0
*
0
7
1
0
*
0
*
0
1
7

.0
0

1
1
0
’T

V
*
0
S

A
E

lI
M

*
0
T

n
Z

7
7
1
7
7
0
4
1
0
7
7
*
0

P
C

0
4
,
7
4
1
.
4
*
7
1
1

4
0
0

0
4

7
1

0
*

0
0

4
0

1
*

0
7
*
0
4
*

T
O

T
.

17
10

01
f
l
t

0
4

7
0

*0
7*

10
.1

04
74

1
7

0
*

0
4

0
1

0
4

1
0

0
1
4
0
0
7
4
3
0
.0

1
7
0
1
7
1
0
1
0

0
7

1
0

0
4

0
7

0
*0

7
7
0
0
)1

0
1
7
1

C
J
0
R

7
0
1
7
0
4
I0

4
A

.
7

,7
*

0
0

7
1

0
*

0
1

1
7

1
0

1
*

1
*

1
0

1
*
C

*0
T

IE
0
1
*
1

P
0

1
*

0
0

1
4

0
4

*
1

4
0.

*
0

7
7

4
0

0
.0

=
0

W
4
0
1
1

7
0
0
4
0
*
1
0
1
7
*
1
0

A
0

1
1

*
0

1
*

0
1

.0
7

0

0
0

1
A

*
0

1
*

0
*

7
4

1
4

0
0

*
0

IS
A

00
1%

0,
31

*0
7

*0
4*

01
1

A
0*

1
0
4
7
4

7
0
4
1
1

1
4
I5

0
1

0.
10

17
.0

1.
10

77
0

10
6
.1

1
.4

1*
0
1
7
4

0
0

0
4

1
0

4
0

4
*

0

*
0
1
0
.1

1

1
7

*
0

*
0

0
7

7
0

0
.0

1
0

1
1

0
1

*
1

S
T

4
3
1
7
*
0
1
0
1
*
1
7
7
.0

7
*
0
*

*0
0
4
0
1
0
1

*
1

*
0

&
A

1
0
*
0
0

*0
0
0
1
3
7
7
*
0
1
1
0
0
C

C
*0

1
0

*
0

0
0

*

0
0
4
7
*
0
.1

0
A

0
1
*
0
0
.0

7
0
1
0
*

*0
4
*
1
*
0
0
3
0
4

A
N

N
E

X
A

10
N

FL
A

T

W
O

O
D

M
EN

H
EI

G
H

TS
N

O
.

3
1-

Q
TH

E
C

IT
”

O
F

CO
LI

O
RA

D
O

SP
R

I’
IO

S,
E_

PA
SO

C
O

U
N

TY
,

C
O

LO
R

A
D

O

4
*
0
4
7
4
1
1
*
1
0
1
*

FL
A

T
1*

0*
07

1*
1.0

11
7*

1*
17

40
N

0
3

24
74

7.
00

.A
JY

21
.

20
03

I
C

2

—
—

—
7
1
—

N
.

D
oc

uS
ig

n
E

nv
el

op
e

ID
:

2O
FD

1
A

32
-4

FD
1

-4
1

98
-8

D
41

-A
F3

B
1

6C
47

9B
F

17
1.

7
0
*
0
1
1
0
4

0*
0

0
*
0
1
*
0
*
1
0
1
*
.

1
*

0
1

7
0

0
0

7
0

1
0

7
1

7
0

4
7

1
0

*0
C

*0
0

0
1

0
0

1
.

0
1

C >c z z S U 01*
1*

C =

1
1
1
.7

1
1
0
0
0
0
7
7
4
5
0
7
0
7
1
*
1
0
*
7

‘7
44

0
*4

*1
7

*
0
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

T
O

T
7.

11

*1
1
F

0
1

0
*

II
0

4
T

0
*
5
1
0
1
*
0
1
.0

4
0
7
*
0
7
7
0
4
4
,
4

3
’

0
4
0
1
*
0
4
.1

.0
0
4
1

1*
00

1.
1*

0
7

0
*

0
1

*
0

0
1

*
*
0
7
7
0
*
0
.0

..

1*
00

01
1*

T
T

*0
4*

0

0
4
*
1
7
7
4
0
*

*
0
1
1
*
0
7

0
.0

1
W
t

7
0
4

4
0
*
7
4
4
1

*0
0
4
0
4

*0
0
1
7
*
0
7
7
4
0
0
1
*
0
7
*
0
0
7
.3

3
0
0
0
0
4

0
7
7

0
0
*

0
0

0
*

7
*
0
0
0

0
4
7

1
0
0
1
*

0
7
4

0
0
.0

4
1
1

0
1

77
1*

7
*0

0
T

0
0

0
)7

0
4

0
*
1

.

0
.1

4

7
1
0
7

1
0
$
?

TO
0*

0
0
*

7
*

0
0
1

0
7

4
40

*1
70

IT
P

C
*7

?
4

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
7
*

0
0

.7
*
0

1
7
0

0
7
7

.
*
4

0
1
*

1
1

0
7
0
*
.

0
4
.
0

70
70

71
7

0
4
0

7
7
,3

0
*

0
0
4

0
0

*
1
1

*
7

4
*
0

0
7

0
0

7
0

7
1

*
*

O
0
*

0
7
.
1
4

.
7
0
..
,.
..
A

T
T

*
0
_
_

.
.
.
.
.
.

0
4
4
.3

.

*
0
4
7
1
1
_
M

O
.

0
4

1
0

3
0

1
(
7

3
.4

1
0
0
7

0
7

1
E

0
7

*
0

7
1
*

0
1

_
M

t
*0

A
L

A
L

_
C

O
O

07
0
1

1
0
_
O

L
lO

0
4

0
7
7

0
*
0
4
1

7
3
3
..
..
..
..

0
0

0
7
0
4

_
.
_

*0
*

0
7

4
.0

4
0

4
*
0

71
31

0
0

0
*

4
1

(0
?

‘7
*1

4
0
7

0
4

*
/

11
4.1

*7
7
1
0

0
4
0

1

3
0
4
7
1
0
,1

0
4
1
0
0
7
0

7
0

1
1

0
1

*
1

0
4

.7
4

0
0

0
1

*
0

4
7

7
0

4
1*

40
44

47
lI

t
0

4
.1

0
0

4
0

3
’

7
7
1
1
*
4
0
1
0
*
4
1
1
,1

0
1
0
4
0
4
.0

1
7
4
7
)7

0
.1

4
1
1
4
1
*
3
0
1
0
4
*
5
1
*
7
1
0
1
0
7

0
0
0
.5

4
7
.

0
1
0
fl

0
7
.3

*
%

*
0
*
0
0
1
4
0
*
0

4.
01

0
1
0
0
4
*
1
0
0
*
1
0
1
0

0
1

0
4

7
4

*
0

0
4

0
0

6
5

3
1

*
1

1
0

0
0

0
=

0
1

*
0

7
0

1
7

1
*

1
7

0
1

4
4

0
1

0
*

1
*

0
0

*
1

*
0

0
7
0
7
0
0
4
7
1
0
7
0
7
0
.0

7
0
0
0
0
1
0
1
7
0
7
1
*
0
0
4
1
0
0
4
0
7
0
1
0
1
7
,

0
0
4
7
0
7
0
4
1
*
?

47
*0

*
0
*
1
1
0
1
0
0
7
*
0
4
1
*
0
7
4
0
1
0
0
4
7
1

5
0
.0

7
0

1
0
7

0
1

1
1
0

.0
4

.0
4

0
0
1

0
1

%

1
4
7
,0

7
1
0
3
4
*
.

1
0

0
7
0

0



1DocuSignEnvelopelD:2OFD1A3E*4FD141988D41F3B16C479 - -
— --

-

‘ -

RQ8ERT C, DBOBhl 8LIK El Paso County CO
9I23I204 11:13:47 (l
oc $ø.@ Page
Rec $l86. 1 ci 37 204160920 /0 ‘7 L.

WOODMEN HEIGHTS NO.4
ANNEXATION AGREEMENT

- 4- /7THS ANNEXATION ACREEMENT (this Agreement) cated this i day of ‘i,t,,_i?,cc/2oo is betweentie City of Colorado Springs a home rule city and Colorado municipal coroo atiol (the City) andSWAT X, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company, Gelles Family Trust, Gail Gelles, JayJen. LLC, aColorado limited liability company, BertaS: Waisky (alk’a Berta Walsky), Tam Watsky Bean as Trustee ofthe Tax Credit Trust under the Will of Herman Wa’skv dated January 29 1991 Schmermn BuildingsLtd., a Colorado limited partnership, Thomas D. Pfost, Julie R. Chase, David A. Zallar a id Sharal A.,Zallar (collectively referred to as “Owners” or the “Property .Qwners”).

INTRODUCTION V

The Owners own all of the real property located in El Paso County, Colorado, k entified anddescribd in the legal description attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Property”).

The growth of the Colorado Spflngs metropolitan area makes it likely that the Property willexperience development in the future and the Property ‘s identified in the City Annexation Plan asrecommended or annexation Subject to the terms and conditions set forLh herein botn the pity arid theOwners wish to annex the Property into the City to ensure its orderly development In conideration ofthe mutual covenants contained in this Agreement the receipt and sufnciency of vhicf’ are ac novbledgedby each of the parties, the City and the Owners agree as follows.

ANNEXATION

The. Owners have petitioned the City for annexation of the Property as set forth in ExI ibit A. Theannexation will become effective upon final approval by tne City Council and the reco fiing of theannexation plat’ and annexation ordinance with the El Paso County Clerk and Recorder:
Au rererences to the Property or to the Owners Property are to the Proper y describecJ in ExhibitA except as otherwise indicated.

Ill.
LAND USE•

V

A Master Plan for the Property, Woddmen Height Master Plan, has been p,r uosed andsubmitted to the City for approval Owners will comply with the approved Master Plan or ap amendedMaster Plan approved in accord with applicable provisions of the Code of the City of Colorado Springs2001, as amended or recodified (“City Code”).
V

iv.
ZONING

A. Zoning. The City Planning and Community Development Department of the ity agreesto recommend that the initial zone for the Owners Property shell be Agricultural (A) upon annexationWhile zoned A a development plan shall be required for any use requiring a building permi except foragricultural uses Owners acknowledge and understand that the City Council determines hat is anappropriate zone for the Property and this recommendation does no4 bind the Planning Conimission orCity Council to adopt an Agricultural zonC for the Property.

B. zoning. Rézonings shall conform to the Master Plan, as approved or as áinended bythe City in the future Rezonng in accord with the land uses reflected on the Master Plan will bccur priorto actual development of the site.

RETURN TO LThIA-V1LL PICK UP
MCI3



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1 A3E-4FD1 -41 98-8D41 -AF3B1 6C479BF

V.
PUBLIC FACILITIES

A. tLIric. The Owners agree to construct, at the Owners’ expense (unlss provided
by the Woodmen Road Metropolitan District as defined below (V 1 b)) those street apd/or traffic
improvemerns within the Property and those street anc/or traftc improvements adjacent to or within the
Property that are more paricularIy described below All street and/or traffic improvements shIl be under
the provisions or the City Subdivision Ordinance Chapter 7 of the City Code These mprovments shall
also incluoe mutually acceptable dedications of right or way and easements and extension o streets and
right of-way The provisions of City Code § 7 7 706 (Reimbursemenz.s) are excluded City articipation
or reimbursement for Arterial Streets within the Property will not be allowed.

1. Woodmen Road.

a General Woodmen Road shall be designated de igned and
constructed to meet City of Colorado Springs Public Works design standards as identified ariid in accord
with the County Major Thoroughfare Plan and the City Intermodal Transportation Plan ln he future ii

may be necessary to improve Woodmen Road beyond the level contemplated by this Agreement at this
time The specifications for future improvements for which Owners are ultimately resporsible to tne
extent they are not installed by the District will be determined at the time of development plan approval
Notwithstanding the foregoing Owners responsibility is for the construction of Woodmen Roa$J where it is
adjacent to the Property and related turning movement lanes and acceleration and deceleratin lanes for
access into the Property in order to meet Citystandards for those Improvements.

b Woodmen Road. Metrooolitan District The City has previously entered
into an Intergovernmental Agreement Concerning Woodmen Road with the Woodmen Road 4etropolitan
District (the District ) approved February 25 2003 (the IGA ) The IGA provides for constriction by the
District of improvements required by the City If the District does not complete all of t,e required
Improvements adjacent to the Property prior to the time that the Owners desire to commence onstruction
or lmprovemens on the Prope ty in order to satisfy the City that the additional lmprove9ents where
adjacent to the Property will be constructed Owners must either (1) post reliable and approved surety
with the City in an amount and form approved by the City in order to assure the avaiIability of funds to
construct said Improvemerns or (2) arrange ror a further or amended intergovernmentalj agreement
(Amended IGA) between the District and the City whereby the District agrees to finance ad construct
all of said Improvements according to a schedule agreed to by the City which Ar9ended IGA
contemplates a review by the City of the financial plan and related bond documents of the District.

c. Riciht-of Way. The District has previously acquired the. hecssary right-
of way ror Woodmen Road where adjacent to the Property (total right of way of two hundred ten feet
(210)) and the Owners agree to dedicate any additional right of-way as may be requhed for tilie approach
to Black Forest Road or Marksheffel Road and the other access locations to accommodate projected
turning movements to meet City standards as determined by the Woodmen Corridor design urther, it is
understood that all current and future street andlor traffic improvements shall be pur4iant to the
provisions of the City Subdivision Ordinance Chapter 7 of the City Code The City has no objections to
the right in right out accesses from Woodmen Road into the Property as shown on the Master Plan

2. Markshéffel Road. Th Owners shall be responsible for all costs, including
design right of way dedication and construction associated with Marksheffel Road as a priniPal arterial
street with one hundred sixty feet (160) of total right of way and with on street bike lanes nd a raised
median from the nortn end of the property and continuing south crossing Woodmen oad until it

intersects with the existing City limits The Owners shall plat and dedicate the full right of way for /
Marksheffel Road when requested by the City Owners will be entitled to cost recovery for tie extension / d

of Marksheffel Road south or Woodmen Road in accord with Section 7 7 705 B of the City Code / a

(Subdivision Regulations).

3. Vollmer Road. Owners, at Owners’ expense, will dedicate all neces ary riht-of
way needed for and construct Vollmer Road connecting with Black Forest Road as shown on the
approved Master Plan for the Property Owners will be responsible for upgrading Voilmer Rad to meet
City standards as a minor arterial road with a total of eighty feet (80) tO one hundred twenty fret (12Q) of

2



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1A3E-4FD1-4198-8D41-AF3B16C479BF

right-of-way required to be dedicated by Owners. The reason for the varying right-of-wa’ width is to
enable the proper transition of Vollmer Road from the jurisdiction of the City to El Paso qounty. The
parties acknowledge that El Paso County is currently studying Volimer Road and may the future
downgrade the classification of the road. Should that happen, the City agrees that the rigit-of-way for
Vollmer Road may be reduced to match the ultimate design of Vollrner Road as determined by El Paso
County.

4. Black Forest Road. The Owners will be responsible for dedicating cne-half (112)
of the necessaty right of way for and constructing Black Forest Road so that Black Forest Rpad has four
(4) lanes and meets City standards for a principal arterial road with a total right of way of ?ne hundred
twenty feet (120) worn its intersection with Woodmen Road north to the northern bou dary of the
Property Owners or the District (as defined in Section XII a this Agreement) will be en tied to cost
recovery tor the costs to construct and improve the west one half (1/2) oi Black Forest Road rem owners
having Trontage on said road in accord with Section 7 7 705 B of the City Code (Subdivision
Regulations).

5. Black Forest Road Cottonwood Creek Crossing. Owners. acknowledge that there
is a need to construct the Black Forest Road bridge or box culvert as applicable across Cottonwood
Creek The Owners either directly or through the Distric s shall construct the bridge or boxiculvert over
Cottonwood Creek pno to the expiration of the second phase of the development but in any iDase prior to
December 31 2011 The City commits to acquire the necessary right of way and easemens necessary
for the construction of the bridge through the development process and/or through its power of eminent
domain The owners will be eligible for reimbursement as applicable per Section 7 7 1001 106 (Arterial
Roadway Bridges) of the City Code City participation or reimbursement for the costs of construction of
the bridge or box culvert for the Black Forest Road Cottonwood Creek crossing will not be alIoed.

6. Construction of Internal Public Street Network to Serve Property, It I recognized
that there may be a need forcertain Owners to coristrucl portions of the internal public street network, as
illustrated on the approved Woodmen Heigbs Master Plan that are nor adjacent to their property In
order to accommodate this situation Owners shall dedicate the full right of way for any in ernal pubhc
streets as illustrated on the approved Master Plan and a temporary construction e sement as
reasonably required to complete construction of those internal roads at any time requested b’ the City or
by an Owner that intends to commence development Additionally Owners who incur costa associated
with the design and construction of internal public streets within the Property shall be eligible for Cost
Recovery from Owners having frontage on said street in accord with Section 7.7.705.B. of te City Code
(Subdivision Regulations).

B. Marksheffel Road Sand Creek Crosing. The Owners shall construct the Marksheffel
Road bridge or box culvert, as applicable, across Sand Creek at their expense. The owpers will be
eligible for fifty percent (50%) reimbursement for the construction cost of the bridge or bo culvert as
applicable, per section 7.7.1001-1006 (Arterial Roadway Bridges) ofthe City Code.

C. Traffic Control Devices and Street Ligh. As required herein, the Owners hall pay for
installation of traffic and street signs, striping, and traffic control devices, permanent barrier arid street
lights, together with all associated conduit for all streets within or contiguous to the Property as mutually
determined necessary by the parties, and in accord with uniformly applied criteria set forth by the City. r)

The City agrees that the traffic signal at the interseôtion of Woodmen Road and Marksheffel oad may be
installed by the Woodmen Road Metro District rather than by Owners, but Owners will remain responsible
for that traffic signal if ihe District does not furd it. Streetlights will be required on collecto1 and larger
streets or at intersections for public safety as reasonably deLern’ined necessary by the City and Utilities
Traffic signals will be installed only after the inLersection warrants such signals as outlined ir the Manual
on Uniform Traffic Control Devices in use at the time or another nationally accepted standard Once the
intersection meets the outlined criteria the City will notiry the Owners in writing and the Ownes will install
the traffic signal within one hundred eighty (180) days after receipt of that notice The Oners will be
responsible tor all components of the traffic signal except the City will supply the controller equipment
arid cabinet (the reasonable costs therefor to be reimbursed by the Owners). If not provided by the
District the Owners will be responsible for purchasing and installing Intelligent Trarisportatin Systems
(ITS) for transit and smart bus stops in the development and along adjacent arterials to the development.
This includes Woodmen Road. The level of ITS infrastructure will be determined as the leel of transit

3



DocuSign Envelope ID: 20F01 A3E-4FD1 -41 98-8D41 -AF3B1 6C479BF

service develops in the area: however, after the initial installation of the ITS, the Owners sljall have no

obligation for operating, maintaining, repairing or upgrading such systems. The City shll be solely

responsible for further operating, maintenance, repair and upgrading of the ITS.

D. Drainaae. A Master Development Drainage Plan (“MDDP’) shall be prpared and

submitted by the Owners to the City and approved by the City Engineer, prior to recording the annexation

plat. Final Drainage Reports and Plans shall be prepared and submitted by the Owners to the City and

approved by the City Engineer prior to recording subdivision p’ats Owners shall comply with all d1ainage

criteria standards policies and ordinances in effect at the time including but not limited to the payment of

any drainage arterial bridge and detention pond fees and the reimbursement for drainage facilities

constructed Owners may in the future desire to have this property treated as a closed drnage basin

which does not require payment of drainage bridge or detention pond fees and t{iere is no

reimbursement for drainage facilities constructed This property may be treated as a ‘cl?sed basin

subject to approval by the City Engineer the Colorado Springs/El Paso County Drainage Boa1d and City

Council of an amendment to the Sand Creek Drainage Basin Planning Study ( SCDBPS’) tiat ‘closes

this portion of the Sand Creek basin and demonstrates 1) no aoverse impact on other properties in Sand

Creek and 2) no negative impact on the fiscal integrity of the Sand Creek Drainage Basin fle structure.

Owners shall be responsible for conrormance with the SCDBPS except that no sLorm drainage flows shall

exit the property in excess of historic f1o rates until the downstream drainage racilities cn the main

channel of Sand Creek between Woodmen Road and Constitution Avenue (to include Detention Pond

No. 2 which is south of Barnes Road) are either in place in accord with the SCDBPS or thefacilities that
are in place are adequate to accept flows in excess of historic that OWners desire to relase. In the
alternative arid subject to approval by the City Engineer, the Owners may agree to participate on an

equitable basis in the construction of Detention Pond No. 2 in exchange fOr the aproal to re ease storm
flows at the flow rates specified in the SCDBPS.

Vi.
UTILITIES

A. Gas Service. The City agrees that it Will extend gas service for nhexe properties

substantially within the existing Gas Service Area of the Colorado Springs Utilities (Utilities) as

designated by the Colorado Public Utilities Commission Annexation of any lands not in tlie currently

existing Gas Service Area of the Utilities shall be added to t’ie Gas Service Area of the Utilities and

proper certification by the Coloràdô Public Utilities Commission shall be obtained.

Utilities agrees that it will extend gas service to annexed propeties under its tarifrs, prdinances

and rules and regulations in effect at the time of any specific gas service request Availa6ility will be

covered by tarifrs ordinances and rules and regulations in effect at the time or the request Annexation

does not imply supply guarantee Gas service is also contingent upon the availability of pul?lic right of

way or private right of way provided by the Owners whicn will allow the extension of gas nains from
existing facilities.

Owners agree to dedicate or otherwise convey to the Utilities at the Owners expense necessary Z

easements as determined by Utilities for the installation of gas transmission and distribution facilities

Conveyance shall be made at the time of platting or at such time prior to the development of the Property

as determined by Utilities.

Owners of annexed properties will agree to provide The appropriate number of ga regulation

sites The number and location of these sites shall be determined by Utiiities These regulatitn sites are

not subject to reimbursement and will be deeded to Utilities

B. Electric Service. Utilities agrees that it will extend electric service to the Property in
accord with the rules and regulations established by the ordinances resolutions policies and safety

codes of the Regional Building Department and Utilities in efrect at the time of development A ailability of

electric service will be coveed by tariffs, ordinances and regulations in effect at the time tht service is
requested Owners may be required to enter into a Revenue Guarantee Contract for the Ejxtension of

electric service as determined by Utilities at the time of development. Annexation does not imply supply

guarantee. Owners agree to dedicate or otherwise convey to the City, at the Cwner’ expense,
necessary easements as determLned by the City for the installation of electric trahsrrission and

4 I



DocuSign Envelope iD: 2OFD1A3E-4FDI -4198-8041 -AF3B1 6C4798F

distribution facilities. Conveyance shall be made at the time of platting or at such time prior to the

development of the Property as determined by Utilities. Any costs incurred in the acquisitio of electric

service territory as a result of C.R.S.. 31-15-707 or § 40-9.5-201, et seq., shall be borne by th Owners.

C. Wastewater Service. Owners will extend wastewater main line or service I nes to the

Property and upon the Property at its expense in accord with the City s ordinances and Utility regulations

in effect at the time of each specific wastewater request for service Capacity of the system r treatment

facility is not guaranteed by annexation, but by availability of service at the time of request.

Owners agree to dedicate or otherwise convey to Utilities at the Owners expense, necessary

easements as determined by Utilities for the installation of wastewater collection facilities qonveyance

shall be made at the time of platting or at such time prior to the development of the Property as

determined by the Utilities.

Owners agree they will pay a pro rata share of the treatment plant facility costs through the

established wastewater system oeveloprnent charge They will pay their pro rate share or e>listing trunk

sewer costs through established recovery agreement charges Collection racilities required to serve the

Property must be designed and constructed at the Owners expense ano will be required to be oversized

to serve adjacent undeveloped land within the basin planning area boUndaries.

Owners agree they will be required to participate with other developments on a fair share pro rata

basis in the present and future off site relief sewers Owners will be entitled to enter into ppropriate

recovery agreements and to recover in accord with ordinances and regulations then in effect b the City.

D Water Service Owners or Utilities will extend water service to the Property in ccord with

the ordinances and regulations in efrect at the tme OT the specific water request The first ome first

served policy will govern availability of supply No guarantee of service is made by annexati n Owners

agree to dedicate or otherwise convey to Utilities at the Owners expense necessary eaements as

determined by the City for the installation of water transmission and distribution facilities qonveyance

shall be made at the time of platting or at such time prior to the development of the Property as

determined by the Utilities.

E. st Rècoverv. Utilities agrees to develop a map indicating the areas outside of the

Property that are serviced by utilities extended by the Property and develop a cost recovery agreement

and mechanism so that cost recovery to the P,operty or Special District is required of those benefited

areas.

F. Limitation of Aonlicjljjy. The provisions of this Agreement set forth the req9irements of

Utilities in erfect at the time of the annexation of the Owners Property These provisions hall not be

construed as a limitation upon the authority of the City or Utilities to adopt different ordina ces rules

regulations resolutions policies or codes which change any of the provisions set forth in this Agreement

so long as these Opply to the City generally.

VII,
GROUNDWATER CONSENT

A. Grant to the city: Owners gran.t in perpetuity to the City the sole. and exclusive right to

use any and all groundwater underlying or appurtenant to and used upon the Propert’ Owners

irrevocably consent sell and convey to the City in perpetuity on behalf or themselves and jany and all

successors in title pursuant to C R S § 37 90 137(4> as now existing or later amended all tights to the

withdrawal end use of all groundwater underlying the Property The execution of this Agrepment shall

constitute a conveyance of all groundwater rights to the City without the necessity of a sepprate deed

However if requested by the City Owners agree to execute satisractory deeds or other jnstruments

conveying ownership and the right to withdraw for beneficial use any and all groundwater upderlying or

appurtenant to and used upon the Property The City agrees that it shall obtain an and all easements

necessary before construction and operation of any well on the Property. Wells constructed by the City

outside the Property may withdraw groundwater under Owners’ Property without additional cc sent.

-

5
RETtJRN TO LYD1A..wIL PICK up



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1A3E-4F01 -41 98-8D41 -AF3B1 6C479BF

The. City agrees that any existing domestic or agricultural wells and other sources f water can
continue to be utilized by the Owners until such time as water service is extended by th City to the
Property and those Owners. This provision will include the temporary well constructed b’ Woodmen
Valley Chapel to service its church and related facilities Additionally once City water service s extenced
to the Property, the City agrees that the existing wells can continue to be used by the owners for irrigation
of yards fields and landscaping but not for other domestic uses The City also agrees that if the City is
unable or unwilling to provide water to the Property, Owners, at their expense, will be entited to obtain
well permits as agents ot the City and utilize those wells to provioe that underground City water tor use cy
the Property.

B. Groundwater Drainacie. Owners shall also construct fabifities, if determined rtecessary by
the City Engineer andlor Utilities or the safe discharge or all subsurface water into a drainage
conveyance racility Suosurrace drainage conveyance facilities are not eligible for drainage basin credit or
reimbursement.

VIII.
PARKS

A. Plattin. All land to be dedicated to the City for trail purposes will be pItted by the
Owners prior to deaication to the City All land to be used as parks shall be platted and dedcated to the
Special District or to another ownership entity such as the Woodmen Heights Property Owners
Association (the “Association”). In consideration of Owners agreeing to construct, own and operate the
parks within the Property, City agrees that the Property will not be required to pay any par fees at the
time of platting or otherwise.

B. Construction of Parks. Owners agree to pay the costs of constructing all of tlie trails and
parks as shown on the Master Plan. Proposed improvements to the trail and park sitps shall be
submitted tO the City Parks Déartthent for review and approval in the City Parks 9epartment’s
reasonable discretiOn to insure that all parks and trails meet current trail ahd park developmeijit standards
at the time of construction The costs of such improvements shall not be subject to reimbursepnent by the
Citc The OWnrs and the City shall also agree upon the timing and phasin of conruction. and
improvements. The City will not program recreational activities in the park sites within the Property unles
requested by the owner of the parks Any request of the City by the owner of the parks to &cheoule the
Parks will be ubject to the City’ revieW and apprOval, in the City’s sole discretion. Trails and parks must
remain accessible tO the neral public in perpetUity for parklOnd credit tO be etained.

C Maintenance The parkland ownership entity will be responsible for perpetual
maintenance of dedicated constructed ard imp oved parks to the standards developed b die Parks
RecreatiOn and Cultural Services Department for these tyes of pUblicly accessible facilities.

D. Streets. The Owners or developer will plat and bUild streets adjacentto trails and parks
without reimbursement by the City.

PUBLIC LAND DEDICATION

Owners agree that all land dedicated or deeded tO the City for municipal or ulility purpOses 2
(including school sites) shall be free and clear of liens and encumbrances All fees tht would be
applicable to the platting of land that is to be dedicaLed to the City (including school land bt!it excluding
park land which will not be dedicated to the City) shall be paid by Owners Fees will be reqiiiired on the
gross acreage of land dedicated as of the date of the dedication in accord with the fee reqLIrements in
effect as of the date of the dedication. All dedications shall be platted by the Owners prior to nveyance,
unless otherwise waived by the City.

x.
FIRE PROTECTION

The Owners aãknowledge that the Property is located within the boundaries of the Black Forest Fire
RescUe PrOtection District (the “Fire District”) and is subject to prOperty taxes payable to the ire District

6



DocuSign Envelope ID: 20FD1A3E.4FD14j988D41AF3B16C47gBF -—
- -

- — -

for its services. The Owners further acknowledge that, after anne:ation of the Property to t e City, the

Property will continue to remain within the boundaries oi the Fire D strict until such time a. the Property is

excluded from the boundaries of the Fire District. After annexation of the Property La ti e City, fire

protection services will be orovided by the City throLgh its Fire Department and by the Fire Distr Ct uniess

and until the Property is excluded from the Fire District After annexation the Property will be assessea

property taxes payable to both the City and the Fire District until such time as the Property s excluded

from the boundaries of the Fire District.

The Owners understand and aôknowledge that the Property may be excluded from the

boundaries of the Fire District under the provisions applicable to special districts Article 1 of Title 32

C R S and as otherwise provided by law Upon request by the City the person who owns the Property at

the time of the City s request agrees to apply to the Fire District for exclusion of the Property ir m the Fire

District.

xl.
FIRE PROTECTION FEE

The Owners agree to pay a fee of $86300 per acre as their share of the capital cost o a new fire

station and the initial apparatus pu chase required to seivice this annexation as well as adjacent areas of

future annexation This fee is payable prior to the issuance o’ the initial subdivision plat ‘‘vithin each

phase of development as idenLrfied in Exhibit B attached and made a part of this Agreemeij,it The fee

will be adjusted annually using the prior year DenverlBoulder Consumer Price Index (CPI) a stated by

the U S Department of Labor Bureau of Labor Statistics (ELS) The City agrees as future annexations

occur within the service area of the proposed fire station the owners of future annexations will e required

to pay a per-acre fee to the City for the capital improvements to the fire station.

Xl!
SPECIAL DISTRICT

The Owners are in the process of forming one or more special districts (collectively reerred to as

the District ) to assist in the engineering planning design construction operation and mairitenance of

many of the improvements required by this Agreement or for the overall development of th Property

The City acknowledges the Owners intent to form and utilize the District and agrees that the District may

own and operate the parks req.iired to he installed pursLant to this Agreement and thai the LDistrict may

partibipate in cost recovery ordinanes of the City for inprovementS installed by The District.

XIII.
PHASING

The Owners have developed a conceptual phasing plan for the overall developient of the

Property Exhibit B (tne Phasing Plan ) The Phasing Plan indicates the timing required fol installation

of the various infrastructure to accommodate the progressive and orderly development OT tle Property

The City accepts the Phasing Plan and agrees that the various items of infrastructure may bel installed in

accord with that Phasing Plan and that infrastructure will not be required to be installed in advance of that

shown on the Phasing Plan.

XIV.
ORDINANCE COMPLIANCE

Owners will corñply with all tariffs, policies, rules, regulations, ordinances, resolutions and codes of

the City which now exist or are amended or adopted in the future including those related to the

subdivision and zoning of land except as expressly modified by this Agreement This Agrement shall

not be construed as a limitation upon the autnority of the City to adopt differenL tariffs policies rules

regulations ordinances resolutions and codes which change any of the provisions set forth in this

Agreement so long as these apply to the City generally.

RETURN TO LYDIA-)JLL PICK UP
IVJC 1378



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1 A3E-4FD1 -41 98-8D41 -AF3B1 6C479BF

xv.
ASSIGNS AND DEED OF TRUST HOLDERS

Where as used in this Agreement, the term the Owners” or Property Owners,” sha1l also mean
any of the heirs, executors, personal representatives, transferees, or assigns of the Owners and all these

parties shall have the right to enforce and be enforced under the terms of this Agreement as if they were

the original parties hereto Rights to specific refunds or payments contained in this Agr ement shall
always be to the Owners unless specifically assigned to another person.

By executing this Agreement the financial institution or deed or trust holder agrees tha (1) should

it become owner of the Property through foreclosure or otherwise that it will be bound by th terms and
conditions of this Agreement to the same extent as Owners and (2) should it become wner of the
Property any provisions in its deed of trust or other agreements pertaining to the Property in conflict with
this Agreement shall be subordinate to and superseded by the provisions of this Agreement.

XVI.
RECORDING

This Agreement shall be recorded with the Clerk, and Recorder of El Paso County, Celorado, and
constitute a covenant running with the land This Agreement shall be binding on future asigns of the
Owners and all other persons who may purchase any of the Property from the Owners or ny persons
later acquiring an interest in the Property Any refunds made under the terms of this Agree ‘ent shall be
made to the Owners and not subsequent purchasers or assigns of the Property unless the urchase or
assignment specifically provides or payment to the purchaser or assignee and a copy of that ocument is
filed with the City.

XVII..
AMENDMENTS

This Agreement may be amended by any party, including their respective successors, ransferees,

or assigns, and the City without the consent of any other party or its successors, transferee, or assigns

so long as the amendment applies only to the property Owned by the amending party. For tljie purposes
of this article, an amendment shall be deemed to apply only lb the property owned by the amnding party
if this Agreement remains in full force and effect as to the property owned by any non amendin party

Any amendment snail be recordeo in the records of El Paso Coun shall be a coverant running
with the land and shall be binding on all persons o entities presently possessing or later acquiring an
interest in the Property subject to the amendment unless otherwise ‘specified in the amendment.

XVIII. I
HEADINGS JThe headings set forth in the Agreement for the different sections of the Agree ent are for

reference only and shall not be construed as an enlargement or abridgment of the langiliage of the
Agreement. .

XIX.
DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

r
If either party fails to perform any material obligation under this Agreement and fails to cure the

default within thirty (30) days following notice Trom the non defaulting party of that breach th1 n a breacn
of this Agreement will be deemed to have occurred and the non aefaulting party will be e titled at its
election, to either cure the default and recover the cost thereof from the defaulting party, or pursue and
obtain against the oefaulting party an order for specific pertormance of the obligations under this
Agreement and, in either instance, recover any actual damages incurred by the non-defaulting party as a
result of that breach, including recovery of its costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees incUrred in the
enforcement of this Agreement, as well as any other remedies provided by law. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the City agreeC ‘that Owner will hve no responsibility for completing any on- or off-site

8



DocuSign Envelope iD:2OFD1A3E.4FD141988D41AF3B16C479BF

improvements or otherwise compying with any other construction or payment obligations contained in

this Agreemert until such time as Owners actually commence development on or within the Property by

obtaining a building permit for construction within the Property, at which time all of the oblig lions upon

Owners contained herein will be fully enforceable by the City.

XX.
GENERAL

Except as specifically provided herein, City agrees to treat Owners and the .Propert’ in a non

discriminatory manner relative to the rest of the City In addition any consent or appro’al required

hereunder from the City shall not be unreasonably withheld conditioned or delayed City agrees not to

impose any iee levy or tax or impose any conaitions upon the approval of development requests

platting zoning or issuance of any building permits for the Property or make any assessrpent on the

Property that is not uniformly aeplied throughout the City except as specificafly proviied in this

Agreement or the City Code Ir the annexation o the Property or any portion thereof is chal’enged by a

referendum all provisions or this Agreement together with the outies and obligations of eachj party, shall

be suspended pending ihe outcome of the referendum election If the re,erendum challenge to the

annexauon results in the disconnection of the Property from the City then this Agreerrjent and alT

provisions contained herein shall be null and void and or no rurther effect If he referendum challenge

fails, then Owners and City halI continue to be bound by BlI terms and provisions of this. Agreement.

XXI.
SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this Agreement is for any reason and to any extent held to be invalid or

unenforceable then neither the remainder of the document nor the aoplication of the provisiins to other

entities persons or circumstances shall be affected thereby but instead shall be enforcable to tie

maximum extent permitted by ‘aw provided hov,ever that it would not be inequitable to the arty against

Whoin the Agreement is being enforced Under the facts and circumstances there pertaihing.

XXII.
TERM

This Agreement shall be in force ahd effect fora period of twenty (20) years from the eVective date

hereof or until all terms and conditions con4ainad heren have been complied with whichever occurs flrst

Thereafter so long as ihe Property is locatea within the municipal boundaries of the City it shall be

subject to the unirorm ordinances rules and regulatiors of the City generally applicable thràughout the

City on a non discriminatory basis Upon the request a Owners the City agrees from tim to time to

provide a statement upon which Owners or a purchaser of the Property can rely indicating w ether there

are any known defaults under this Agreement and whether there remain any obligations of Owners for

installation or maintenance of any public improvements or any payment therefor.

SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW

RETURN TO LYDIA-WILL PICK UP

MC 1378

9



0

m c-f
l

I
C

,

0
C

)
• • a; a—

i rn c-
fl Ci-
)

ci,
:i

:

-o
i-)

-)

—
m

2
:

0
0

-i
i

Co
- CD V B) CD Cl

)

:3
-

CD a 0 :3
-

B
) CD Cl
,

CD CD B
)

Cl
)

B
) a Cl
)

CD B
)

Cl
) a a B) a B
)

if



q

STATE OF COLORADO
) ss.

COUNTY OF EL PASO)

A knowledged before me this day of

_________

2004, by thLLL
as

________________________

of SWAT X, LLC, a CoIorad limited liability company.

WITNESS my hand an official seal.

My
commissIon epires:

_______________________

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1 A3E-4FD1 -41 98-8D41 -AF3B1 6C479BF

Owner:

SWAT X, LLC, a Colorado limit lie lily company

By:

_
_
_
_
_

[SEAL).

Cf

tary Public

--

- RETURN TO LYDIA-WILL PICK UP

MC 1378

11



DocuSigri Envelope ID: 2OFDIA3E-4FD1 -41 98-8D4 I -AF3BI 6C479BF

Deed of Trust Holders:

Linasay J. Case
Its: Co-Manager

STATE OF COLORADO

COUNTY OF EL PASO

andleW. CaseJl
Its: Co-Manager

Marksheffel-Woodmen Investments, LLC, a ColOrado limited liabilityc pany

By:

______________________

By:

___________________

) ss.

AcnowIedged before me this dayoftLT2004 by Lindsay J Case a

W Case II as Co Managers of Markshefrel VVoodmen Instments LLC a Colorado limited hG

company.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

commission expires:

cK J)AP7 /11

d Randle
bility

Midwest

Nqtry Pöblic

E A7TAC

STATE OF.________
)ss.

COUNTY OF

_______

Acknowledged before me this

______

day of

__________

2004, by

______________

as

________________

of Bank Midwest.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

My commission expires:

______________________________

[SEAL] Notary Public

— RETU TO LYDIAWILL
MC 1378

PICK Up

12



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1 A3L-4FD1 -41 98-8D41 -AF3B1 6C4798F

Owners;

STATE OFt4,

QOUNTYOF4r
SS

CRYSTAL. FEM
I ‘•j Commission 1323235

Moury Public- Oalifornia
z

Santa B bsra County -.

My Comm. Expfres d 1, 2005

Acknowledged before me this 24 day bf________ 2004, by fi /c/

____________________________

of Gelles Family TrUst.

WiTNESS my hand and-official seal.

[SEAL]

My commission expires:

A)
Gail GeHes1’ (
STATE OF

_________

COUNTY

______

Acknowledged before me this

______

day of______ 2004, by Gail Gelles.

47 /‘ ‘
/

+ä4ay Pubc • CiomIa
K VY1 Sema 8tbta Co

By:
Its:

Gelles Family
Tt

11 / I/ .C

WITNESS my hahd ahdôfuiial seal.

My commission expires:

[SEAL] tyublic

RETURN TO LYDIA-W LL PICKUP
MC 1378

13



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFDIA3E-4FD1 -41 98-8D41 -AF3B1 6C4798F

Owner:

Jayden, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company

By: 0 C
Its:

___________________________________

STATE OF COLORADO
) ss.

COUNTYOFELPASO

AcknoWledged before me this 1ay 2004, by

____________ _______

as

______________________

of Jayden, LLC, a Coloro limited hability company.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Mycommission expires: ,‘/çf -

Public
NO1RY PUBLIC

STATE OF COLORADO

My Commlsslçn Expires Juiy28 2007

RETU TO LThJAWILL PICK UP
MC 1378

14



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1A3E-4FD1-41938D41.AF3B160479BF

Deed of Trust Holder:

Pueblo Bank & Trust Company

__________________

SL
cP ArNo.’

By:
Its:

________________________________

STATE OF )
) ss.

COUNTY OF________

Acknowledged before me this

______

day of

__________

2004. by

________________

as

_______________

of Pueblo Bank & Trust Company.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

My commission expires:.

(SEALI Notary Public

RETURN TO LYDIA-WILL PTC (UP

MC 1378

15



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1A3E-4FD1 -41 98-8D41 -AF3816C4798F

Owners:

Berta S. Waisky

STATE OF_______

COUNTY OF_____
) ss

Acknowledged before me this i day of by Berta S. Walsky.

L

JENNIFER STEVEN

. d official seal.

olorad

expir : 7 I9/O(.o

MyCorior Eires Sept30, 2006

Tam Walsky Bean as Trustee of the Tax Credit Trust under the WIll of Herman Walsky dat

January 29, 1991

By: -Th/7/ //46
Tam Waisky Bean, ustee

STATE

________

)ss.
COUNTY OF C N ?OLc

Acknowledged before me this i. day of ,&LZt 2004, by Tam Waisky Bean,.

Trustee of the Tax Credit rust uncter the Will of He man Wlsky dated January 29 1991

WITNESS my hand and officialseal.

expires

[SEAL1 Notary Public
jofColorOdo

My C partnership

By: i&

Jerry Schmna5 en7fal Partner

STATEOF

________

)
)ss.

COUNTY OF Y1—€zr’i c3’

Acknowledged, before me this

_____

day of a12004, by Jerry Schrnerman,

General Partner of Schmerman Bulldings Ltd., a Colorado liif(iLed partnership.

WITNESS my hand andofflóial seal.

My cbmmission expires: S 1)

LORENACHANT1
NOTARY PUBLIC —ARONA

MAtCOPA coUrfry
My Commission Expires

September 16,2007 16

Nbtarublic

-.

NdIar’y Public

[SEAL] No’ Public

RETURN TO LYDIA..cYrLL PICK UP
MC 137:8



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1A3E-4FD1-41 98-8D41 -AF3B1 6C479BF

1’.e(ary Public

Notary Public
h-

David A.. Zallar

Sharal A. Zallar

STATE OF COLORADO
) ss.

COUNTY OF EL PASO)

Zallar.

Sharal A.

‘rcK- up

Qn

Thomas D. Pfost

STATE OF COLORADO
)ss.

COUNTY OF EL PASO)

Acknowledged heforeme this 91EL day 2004, by Thomas D. Pfost.

V1lTNt my nano ari official seal.
JENNIFER STEVEN

onexpiret/O)i
---J’[.-L, --c2__

R. Cl

STATEOFCOLORADO. )
)ss.

COUNTY OF EL PASO)

Acknowledged before me this ,/day 2004, by Julie R. Chase.

nd ard official seal.

5mmIssIo xpires L4ZI/’t/ QO 7

‘y CornmsjoFJuy 28, 2007

Acknowledged befo?e me this

_____

day of4), 2004, by David A. Zallar and

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

My commission expires: c2) 7 f
1

[SEAL]
6” c7 Notary Puli

RETURN TO LYDIAWTLL
MC 1378

17



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1A3E-4FD1.41988D41AFB16C47gBF
——

Owners:

Thomas D. Pfost

STATE OF COLORADO
) ss.

COUNTY OF EL PASO)

Acknowledged before me this

______

day of , 2004, by Thomas D. Pfost.

WITNESS my hand and offiàial seal.

My commissiofl expires:.______________________________

[SEAL) Notary Public
V

.7ZQ

STATE OF COLORADO )
)ss.

COUNTY OF EL PASO.)
V

Acknowledged before me this‘da 2OO4 by Julie R. Chase

and Official seal.

mmissiorLpires ZZ/ g
-

cc..) 7 C V

STATE OF COLORQ (/ ‘ /
V_________________

V

Notary Public V

Y Comrnsslon Ex, JUly 28,

David A. Zallar

iz
Q

Sharal A. Zallar

STATE OF COLORADO )
)ss.

COUNTY OF EL PASO ) V

Acknowledged before me this

_____

day of4iq, 2004, 1.. Zclr id SharalA.

Zallar. c-i

WiTNESS my hand and official seal.

My commission expires: ‘ c.N
) 7

[SEAL] Notary Pu lic

LYDIA V

MC1378 LLpIcK

17



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1 A3E-4FD1 -41 98-8D41 -AF3B16C479BF

Owners:

Thomas D. Pfost

STATE OF COLORADO
ss.

COUNTY OF EL PASO)

Acknowledged before me this

______

day of

__________

2004, by Thomas D. Pfost,

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

My commission expires:

______________________________

(SEAL] NotaryPublic

Julie R. Chase

STATE OF COLORADO
)ss.

COUNTY OF EL PASO)

Acknowledged before me this _‘dayof04, by.Juli R. Chase.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

My commission expires: -,-?‘‘

— 6’ ‘

/L —---

____

[SEAL] . Notary Public

David A. Zlla’r (J

STATE OF COLORADO
) ss.

COUNTY OF EL PASO)

Acknowledged before me this

_____

day by David A. Zalla.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

My commission xpirës:

[SEAL) Notary Public

rTQcOLDO

My CommIssion EXpIt35 July28, 2007

17
KET1Jt° ‘j37



L1C
)

F—

jc-)CC02n
•

L
I

cf0CCGDC
)

‘9.

:
0L

I
00a)aa)>CL

uCC
)

LIDDC
,

C0

‘a0
.

C4
,

>
,

:4

kP

in0IC0U
,

It.
0



DocuSign Envelope ID: 20FD1A3E-4FD1-4198-8D41AF3BjC47g

Deed of Trust HoJder:

Kelly Leopard

STATE OF

______

) ss.
COUNTY OF

______

Acknowledged before me this

______

day of

__________

2004, by Kelly Leopard.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

My commission expires: V

[SEAL] Notary Public

Better o es Co. Profit Sharing Plan

STATE OFt .,d4 ?
7) )ss.

COUNTY OF

_____

Acknowledged before me this 9 cay 2004

_____________

JJ(pi of Better Homes Co. 4t Sharin Plan. /

WITNESS my hand and official sea!.

My commission expires -

[SEAL] Notary Public

James C. Berger V

iEE. flT(ACiEb TIFlc:rnc4 q

STATEOF

_____

) V V

—

) ss. 91(Kt I’IX-tT
COUNTY OF

______

) O

Acknowledged before me this

______

day of

__________

2004, by James C. Berger.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

My commission expires:

____________________________

[SEAL] Notary Public

18



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1 A3E-4FD1 -41 98-8D41 -AF3B1 6C479BF

Regional Transactions of.Coloràdo, a Colorado general parthership

By:

___________________________

Its:

____________________________

‘3ETI e7!) 2i97F/Ct)TiO’-
STATE OF c fJ&,4T/O/q ,q/2744 IT
COUNTY OF

______

Acknowledged before me this

______

day of

__________,2004,

by

_______________________________________

of Regional Transactions of Colorado a Colorado general partne ship

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

My ãommissiOn xpires

___________________________

[SEAL) Notary Public

RETURN TO LYDIAWILL PICIC TIP
MC 1378

19



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1A3E-4FD1-41 98-8D41 -AF3B1 6C479BF

EXHIBIT A

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY

RETURN TO LYDIA-WILL PICK JP
MC 1378

20



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1 A3E-4FD1-41 98-8D41 -AF3B1 6C479BF

LEGAL DESCRIPTION.

LOT 1 AS PLATTED IN HORSESHOE RANCHEROS RECORDED IN PLAT 800K E—2 AT PAGE 6, RECORDS
OF EL PASO COUNTY, COLORADO, AND

LOTS 1. 2, AND 3, FALCON ROAD AND THAT PORTION OF TEMPLET0N GAP ROAD LYING EASTERLY OF
THE NORTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE WESTERLY LOT LINE OF LOT 3, ALL AS PLATTED IN GIL0VER
SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN PLAT 8001< F—3 AT PAGE 51, RECORDS OF EL PASO COUNTY, OLORADO,
AND

A PORTION OF SECTION 5, TOWNSHIP 13 SOUTH, RANGE 65 WEST OF ITHE SIXTH PRINCIPAl1 MERIDIAN,
ALL BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: I
COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 5, TOWNSHIP 13 SOUTH, RANGC 851 WEST OF
THE SIXTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, THENCE S33’25’44”W A DISTANCE OFj 111.11 FEET TO A PINT ON THE
SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF W000MEN ROAD, BEING THE POINT OF INTERSECTION o) THE
SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE EASTERLY BOUNDARY LINE OF LOT 1 ‘V000MEN FOREST SUPDIVISION
NO 1 WITH THE SOUTHERLY RiGHT OF WAY OF W000MEN ROAD SAIDI SOUTHERLY 9IGHT O WAY
BEING THE NORThERLY BOUNDARY LINE OF LOT 1 SAID GLOVER SUBDIV1SION,SAIO POINT BEJNG THE
POINT OF BEGINNiNG;

THENCE N0O44’45”E, ON SAID SOUTHERLY EXTENSION AND THE EASTERLY BOUNDARY OF SAID LOT 1
W000MEN FOREST SUBDIVISION NO. 1, BEING ALSO THE RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF BLACK FOREST ROAD,
A DISTANCE OF 58724 FEET;
THENCE N87 17 4 E ON SAID RIGHT OF WAY LINE A DISTANCE O 3005 FEET
THENCE N0O44’46’E, ON SAID RIGHT OF WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 2047.50 FEET;
THENCE NOD 4 2 E ON SAID WESTERLY RIGHT—OF—WAY LINE A DISTANCE OF 2528 85 FET
THENCE N0D11’33’W, ON SAID WESTERLY RIGHT—OF—WAY LINE, A DiSTANCE OF 350.00 FEE
THENCE N8948’27”E, CROSSING BLACK FOREST ROAD. A DISTANCE OFI 60.00 FEET;
THENCE SOD 11 33 E ON THE EASTERLY RIGHT—OF —WAY LINE OF SAID BLACK FOPEST ROAD A
DISTANCE OF 350.00 FEET,

‘ ITHENCE N89 1456 E ON THE NORTHERLY LINE OF THE NORTHWEST O.JARTEP OF SAID SECTION 5 A
DISTANCE OF 262101 FEET TO THE NORTH QUARTER CORNER OF SAID SEC11OI’J 5;
THENCE SB9 55 43 £ ON THE NORTi-IEPLY LINE OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTEP OF SAID SEC1ION S A
DISTANCE OF 818 63 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTHERLY RIGHT—OF—WAY LINE OF VOILMER ROAD
THENCE S51O2’52E, CROSSING VOLLMER ROAD, A DISTANCE OF 60.00 FEET,
HENCE 3385708 W ON SAID SOUTHEPLY RIGHT—OF—WAY LINE A DISTANCE OF 1535 52 FEET
THENCE N88’48’O2”E, A DISTANCE OF 30 29 FEET;
THENCE SOO32’11”W, A DISTANCE OF 2155.89 FEET,
THENCE N89 2749W A DISTANCE OF 150032 FEET
THENCE 3003211 W A DISTANCE OF 1601 11 FEET TO A PONT ON CUPVE ON THE NORTHERLY
RIGHT—OF—WAY LINE OF WOODMEN ROAD AS DESCRIBED IN A DOCUMENT RECORDED UNDER RECEPTION
NO. 202224865,
THENCE ON SAID NORTI-’ERLY PIG1-IT—OF—WAY LINE ON THE ARC OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT, WHOSE
CENTER BEARS N0355 42 W HAVING A DELTA OF 011.345 A PADIUS O’ 99’2 00 A DISTANCE OF
212.66 FEET;
THENCE SO038’38”W, A DISTANCE OF 79.54 FEET,
THENCE S8923O4’W, A DISTANCE OF 298.12 FEET;
THENCE S0O08’lO”E, CROSSING WOODMEN ROAD AND ON THE EASTER[Y BOUNDARY OF SAl LOT 1,
HORSESHOE RANCHEROS, A DISTANCE OF 404.83 FEET TO THE SOUTHEASTERLY CORNER OF[SAID LOT

THENCE S89’22’59’W ON THE SOUTHERLY BOUNDARY OF SAID LOT 1, A DISTANCE OF 600.1 FEET; TO
A POINT ON THE EASTERLY BOUNDARY OF SAID LOT 1, CLOVER SUBDIVISION;
THENCE SOO’O7’48’E, ON THE EASTERLY BOUNDARY OF SAID LOT 1, CLOVER SUBDIVISION, A DISTANCE
OF 268 53 FEET TO THE SOUTHEASTERLY CORNER THEREOF, I
THENCE S8T31’39W, ON THE SOUTHERLY BOUNDARY OF LOTS 1, 2, 4ID -3 OF SAID GLOVE
SUBDIVISION, A DISTANCE OF 1209.67 FEET TO THE SOUTHWESTERLY OORNER OF SAID LOT 3:
THENCE NOO’18’13”W, ON THE WESTERLY BOUNDARY OF SAID LOT 3 AIID ITS NORTHERLY EXtENSION, A
DISTANCE OF 510.75 FEET TO A POINT ON CURVE ON THE NORTHERL’? BOUNDARY OF SAID CLOVER
SUBDIVISION; I
THENCE ON THE ARC OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT WHOSE CENTER BEAPS S37 55 46 E HAVII’G A
DELTA OF 04’4745’, A RADIUS OF 930.00 FEET, A DISTANCE OF 77 8 FEET TO A POINT ON CURVE
ON SAID NORTHERLY BOUNDARY,
THENCE N87’31’39’E, ON THE WESTERLY EXTENSION OF THE NORTHERL’ BOUNDARY OF LOTS 1 THRU 3
OF SAID GLOVER SUBDIVISION AND SAID NORTHERLY BOUNDARIES, A DISTANCE OF 1086 21 FET TO
THE POINT OF BEGINNING; I

CONTAINING A CALCULATED AREA OF 282 631 ACRES.
RET1jRL’ TO LYDT4.WILL ICK UP

MC 1378



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1A3E-4FD1-41 98-8D41 -AF3B1 6C479BF

EXHIBIT B

PHASING PLAN

RETUIjSq0
LYDIA4L PICK tip

21



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1A3E-4FD1-4198-8D41-AF3B16C4798F

RETURN TO LYDIA-WILL PICK UP
MC1378



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1A3E-4FD1-4198-8D41-AF3B16C4798F

R4TIF1CATION OF ANNEXATION AGREEMENT

This Ratification of Annexahon Agreement (the “Ratification”) is made this O day
of , 2004, by Bank Midwest, N.A. (“Lender”), vhos address is
1100 Main Stre&’ Kansas City, Missouri 641 05

Recitals

WHEREAS Lendei is the holder of thai certain Deed of Tmst granted bySWAT X
LLC, r Colorado limited liability company (“Borrower”) hich was recorded in the rdal property
records of El Paso County, Colorado on Jünè 17, 2004 at Rebèption No. 204100841 the”Deed
of Trust’), which Deed of Trust encumbers that certain property described therein as the “Real
Property”

WHEREAS, a portion of the Real Property is currently in the procs of being
annexed into the City of Colorado Spnngs (the “City”) puisuant to the terms of theI\ oodmen
Heights No 4 Anncxation Agreement attathed hereto as Exhibit A (the “4nnexation
Agreement”). I

WHEREAS, s a condition to the annexatiOn and to the recordation of the nhexation
Plat arid the Anriexation AgreemenL for the Property, the City is requmng tiLt Lender
acknowleage and ratify the Annexation Agreement and the Annexation Plat, and Boiower has
requested that Ler’aer so acknowk.dge and ratify the Annexation Agreement and Annexation
Plat.

NOW THEREFORE, Lender hereby acknowledges and consents to the annexation of the
Pioperty into the Ciiy and ratifies and confirms the AnnexaLion Agreement and consnts to the
recording of the Annexation greemeni. and the Annexation Plat and further agrees tiat neither
the Annexation Agreement nor the. Annexation Plat will be extinguished, revoked, rescinded or
otl’erwise adversely impacted by any foreclosure or other enforcement action that it

successors and assigns, may hereafter take under the Deed of Trust, and that the ProprtY will at
all times remain within the City and ill remain subject to the terms of the nnexation
Agreement notwithstanding any foieclosure or other enforcement action ta1en under the Deed of
Tr’ust.

Executed this day of , 2004.

RETURN TO LYDIA-WILL PICK UP
MC 1378

5: Cuc,,m CIic, CD C,s Lc,dn) 23O Wc,ccdmc,n Ib,icih, Dvi1pmc,c flc,,mc,c,I RcIik inn Swj.c X - flanl Midw,,filjn Xn. 4.dnc



C
)

0
-
.

•cr)

z

‘C
,

L
I

C
)

CoC
.,

UC
o

C
o

C
)

UL
J

LuC
.,

UU0c’UC)00>uJC
,

C
,)C-,
CU

4:
IDI

A
tp‘2-CC-,‘2CAC
-.

L
0



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1A3E-4FD1 -41 98-8D41 -AF3B16C479BF

RATIFICATION OF ANNEXATION AGREEMENT I
k Thjs Ratification of Annexation Agreement (the “Ratification”) is made this

_______

day
of ( ,2004, by Pueblo Bank and Trust Company (“Lender”) hos& address is
Cascade Branch, 101 North Cascade, Colorado Springs, CO 80903.

Recitals

WHEREAS, Lender is the holder of that certain Deed of Trust granted by Ja31deh, LLC,

a Colotado limited liability company (“Borrowei’) which was recorded in the real property
records of El Paso County, Colorado on Novembei 27, 2002 at Reception No 202l 0393 (the
‘Deed of Trust , Lenders Loan No 6670354674), which Deed of Trust encumbers hat certain

propeity defined theein s the ‘Rea1 Propertyi’

WHEREAS, the Real Pioperty is currently in the process of being a nexed into
the City of Colorado Springs (the ‘City’) pursuant to the terms of the Woodmen Heights No 4
Annexation Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Annexation Agreement”).

WHEREAS, as a condition to the annexation, and to th.e recordatiori of the .nnexation
Pint and the Annexation Agreement foi the Real Property, the City is requiring tiat Lender
acknowledge and rattf’ the Annexation Agreement and the Annexation Plat, and Bcnower has
requsted that Lender so acknowledge and ratify the Annexation Agreement and nnexation
Plat.

NOW, THEFORE, Lender heieby acknowledges and consents to the annexLion of the
Real Property into the City and ratifies and confirms’ the Annexatiofl Agreement and onsents to
the recording of the Annexation Agreemeni. and the Annexation Plat, and further agrees that
neither the Annexation Agreement nor the Annexation Plat will be extinguishe4, revoked,
rescinded or otherwise adversely impacted by any foieciosure or other enfoicement laction that
Lender, it successors and assigns, may hereafter take under the Deed of Trust, and that the Real
Property will at all times remain within the City and will remain subject to the terms of the
Annexation Agreement notwithstanding afly foieclosure or othei enforcerrent action aken iiridar
the Deed of Trust.

Executed thisLday of ,2004.
(1 /

RETURN TO LYDIA-WILL P CK liP
rvrc 1378

S:Curr,,n CIknts C.I) Cs Li,,dovj ZOi3QWodrn,, lie hLs’Dce1pinrnD,ciimcnIsR,iiflca,ionJavden. P,ebIo Bank anITcnsLdoc



4

C)
tf

l

o
d

•
r

•7
-3

,<
o

0 t
i
j

C
,

C
,

C
,

C C
, r a C 9- a a C a a 6 a 1- a 6

tl
lc

< C
)

:r
2 Cd

,

.0 CD CD U
)

a, U
)

S
I

c
,

Cd
)

C
,)

(

2: 0 a) -U
i

C-
)

-
d r
+

W
CD CD

.

C r a,

t
C C

d, C)

fr
i CD f-n I
-
,



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1A3E-4FD1-4198-8D41AF3B16c4798F — -

RATIFICATION OF ANNEXATION AGREEMENT

This Ratification of Annexation Agreement (the “Ratification”) is made this

______

day

of 17L ,2004, by Better Homes Co. Profit Sharing Plan (“Lender”), whos address is

4390 NoiTh Academy Boulevard, Colorado Springs, CO 80918.

Recitals

WHEREAS, Lender is the holder of that certain Deed of Trust granted by Juli R. Chase

(“Borrower”) which was recoided in the real property records of El Paso County, C1orado on

August 2 2002 at Reception No 202127215 (the “Deed of irust’), which Dee of Trust

encumbers that certain property described as Lot 1, 2, 3 Glover Subdivision, El Pao. County,

Colorado (the “Property”).

WHEREAS, the Property is currently in thç process of being, annexed into tie City of

Colorado Springs (the “City’) pursuant to the terms of the Woodmen Heights No 4 Annexation

Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Annexation Agreement”).

WHEREAS, as a condition to the annexatiØn and to the. recordation of the 4nnexation

Plat and the Annexation Agreement foi the Property, the City is requiring tijat Lender

acknowledge and ratify the Annexation Agreement and the Annexation Plat, and Bopower has

requested that Lender so acknowledge and ratify the Annexation Agreement and Annexation

Plat. I
NOW, THEREFORE, Lendei hereby acknowledges and consents to the annexAtion ofthe

Pioperty into the City and ratifies and confirms the Annexation Agieement and consents to the

recording of the Annexation Agi eement and the Annexation Plat, and further agrees that neither

the Annexation Agreement nor the Annexation Plat vi1l be extinguished, revoked, rescinded or

otherwise adversely impacted by any foreclosure or other enforcement action that Lender, it

successois and assigns, may hereaflcr take under the Deed of Trust, and that the Propfrty will at

all times remain within the City and will remain subject to the terms of the 4nnexation

Agreement notwithstanding any foreclosure or other enforcement action taken under the Deed of

Trust.

Executed this .1ay of , 2004.

RETURN TO LYDIAW1LL PiCK UP

MC i378

Uurr,,, CIkrns C-D Cn, LindsvJ 2OSQVovdn,’,, k,,h,s Cb,,s, - Bcnc HGm,C{’ I’nfi, PI,n.doc



0 0 C c
l

(0 D m D CD 0 CD C -n m -1
,

0 CD 0 m C.
)

C
, C)

o

t
i

c-
i

C C 1 C

Cf
2

I

i

C
,)

0

II



;..

C

)

.2

C.)

h0
.

L
I

C
D

•
I

•
0C

D

:•
a)CDCDa)

•
0uJ‘CQC’4

Ua)C>a
)

DC.)
CU

Ea1
.

CaC
.)

CH

CC0C
,)

C
l)

>
Cx)

C
,)



DocuSign Lnvelope ID: 2OFD1 A3E-4FD1 -41 98-8D41 -AF3B1 6C479BF

RATIFICATION OF ANNEXATION AGREEMENT
‘Li

/ This Ratification of Annexation Agreement (the “Ratification”) is made this f’ day

of ‘JO ILl, , 2004, by James C. Berger (BLender”), whose addresá is do Diane Githens, 411

South Tejn Street, COlorado Springs, CO 80903.

Recital&

WHEREAS, Lender is the holder of that certain Deed of Trust granted by Juli R Chase

(‘Borrower”) which was recorded in the real property records of El Paso County, Clorado on

March 13, 2002 at Reception No 202041 176 (the “Deed of Trust”), which Dec1 of Trust

encumbers that certain property defined therein as the “Property.”

WHEREAS, the Property is currently in the process Of being annexed into the City of

Colorado Springs (the “City”) pursuant to the terms of the Woodmen Heights No 4 4nnexation

Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Annexation Agreement”). I
WHEREAS, as a condition to the annexation and to the reordation of the innexation

Plat and the Annexation Agicement for the Property, the City is requiring tHat Lender

acknowledge and ratify the Annexation Agreement and, the Annexation Plat, and BoFower has

iequested that Lender so acknowledge and ratify the Annexation Agieement and Annexation

Plat.

NOW, THEREFORE, Lender hereby acknowledges and consents to the annexation of the

Property into the City and ratifies and confimis the Annexation Agreement and cons!ents to the

recording of the Annexation Agreement and the Annexation Plat and further agrees that neither

the Annexation Agreement nor the Annexation Plat will be extinguished, revoked, rscinded or

otherwise adversely impacted by any foieclosure or other enforcement action that Lender, it

successors and assigns, may hereafter take undet the Deed of Trust, and that the Property will at

all times remain within the City and will remain subject to the terms of the Annexation

Agreement notwithstanding any foreclosure or other enforcement action taken under the Deed of

Trust.

Executed this 2’? day of J(I , 2004.

RETURN TO LYDIA-WrLL PICK UP
MC 1378

S:Cu,,’v,,I’CIkmis C.O’CsLindyJ 2OSO Woodnin lJhis iIiciio(hasc. Iker.dc



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1A3E-4FD1-4198-8D41-AF3B16C479BF

AUG—05—04 10:54AM FROM-IAULLIKEN WEINER T19 635—8106 T-343 P.dO3IOI4 F—5T5

RATIFICATION OF ANNEXATION AGREEMENT

This aification of Annexation Agreement (the “Ratification”) is made this

_______

day
of

__________________________

2004, by Kelly Leopard (“Lender”) whose address is

7 t I jj g.J

Recitals

WHEREAS, Lender is the holder of that certain Deed of Trust granted by Julie .. Chase
(ItBorrow&I) which was recorded in the real property records of El Paso County, Co1nrdo on
December20, 2000 at Reception No. 200152392 (the “Deed of Trust”), which Deed of ii’rust
encumbers that certarn property described as Lots 2 and 3 in Giover Subdivision El Paso
County, Colorado (the ‘Ptoperty”). I

WHEREAS, the Property is currently in the process of being annexed into the 9ty of
Colorado Springs (the “City”) pursuant to the terms of the Woodmen Heights No. 4 A9iexation
Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Annexation Agreement”).

W1-IEREAS, as a condition to the annexation and to the recordation of the Annexation
Pint and the Annexation Agreement for the Property, the City is requiring that Lender
acknowledge and ratify the Annexation Agreement and the Annexation P1st, and Borroier has
requested that Lender so acknowledge and ratify the Annexation Agreement and Annexation
Plat.

NOW, THEREFORE, Lender hereby acknowledges and consents to the annexat1on of the
Property into the City and ratifies and confirms the Annexation Agreement and consents to the
recording of the Annexation Aeerncnt and the Annexation Pint, and further agrees tha neither
the Annexation Agreement nor the Annexation Plat will oe extinguished, revoked resciided or
otherwise adversely impacted by any foreclosure or other enfon.ernent action that Lendr, it

successors and assigns, may hereafter take under the Deed of Trust, and that the Propert’ will at
all times remain within the City and wfll remain subject to the terms of r.he Annexation IAgreement notwithstanding any foreclosure or other enforcement action taken under the Deed of
Trust.

Executed as of the date fIrst written above.

RETURN TO LYD1A-WIT-- P19( UP

MC1378 I



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1 A3E-4FDI -41 98-8D41-AF3BI6C479BF

RATIFICATION OF ANNEXATION AGREEMENT

This Ratification of Annexation Agreement (the “Ratification”) is made this 7 day
of , 2004, by Regional Transactions of Colorado, a Colorado general parersbip
(“Lendêr”), whose address is 631 Ford Street, Colorado Springs, CO 80915.

Recitals

WHEREAS, Lender is the holder of that certain Deed of Trust granted by Ju1e R. Chase
and David A Zallar (collectively, “Borrower”) winch was recorded in the real property records
ofEl Paso County, Colorado on May 4, 2001 at Reception No 201058146 (the “Deed of Trust”),
which Deed of Trust encumbers that certain property defined therein as• the “Propertyi”

WHEREAS, the Property is currently iii the process of being anneed into the
City of Colorado Springs (the “City”) pursuant to the terms of the Woodmeh Heights No. 4
Annexation Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Annexation Agreement”).

WHEREAS, as a condition to the annexation. and to the recordation of the Annexation
Plat and the Annexation Agreement for the Property, the City is requiring that Lender
acknowledge and ratify the Annexation Agreement and the Anne’cation Plat, and B4rrower has
requested that Lender so acknowledge and ratify the Annexation Agreement and Annexation
Plat.

NOW, THEREFORE, Lender hereby acknàwledges and consents to the annextion of the
Property into the City and ratifies and confirms the Annexation Agreement and conents to the
recordmg of the Annexation Agreement and the Annexation Plat, and further agrees 1hat neither
the Annexation Agreerrient nor the nnexation Plat will be extmguished, revoked, rescmded or
otherwise adversely impacted by any foreclosure or other enforcement action that Lender, it
successors and assigns, may hereafier take under the Deed of Trust, and that the Prop,erty will at
all times remain within the City and will remam subject to the terms of the Annexation
Agreement notwithstanding any foreclosure or other enforcement action taken under the Deed of
Trust

Executed this j aay f ,2004.

RETURN TO LYDIA- L PICK TiP

MC 1378

S:C,r,,,1\CInLs C.DCa, .indsyJ 20B30\W,odm,ri HeghLs DcvcpmcLDocun is\Rati&to, Chase. Rgna Tr nsaons of CaT,rd.dac



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OFD1A3E-4FD1-4198-8D41-AF3B16C479BF

AUG—05—04 10:54AM FROM-MULLIKEN WEINER

STATE OF 4JQa

COUNTYOF_____________ )

T19 635—STOB T—343 P.004/014 P—5T5

Acknowledged to me this

_____

day of , 2004, by Kcfly Leo1

Ntary Public
/Oc

NOTARY PUUC ‘

STATE OF NEVADA
County of Clarl

1’o OU-4 J• 2. LORAINEZECKLERMy Appcptment Expire Sept 15 2004

RETUPJ’1 TO LYDIA-WILL P
MC 1378

My conmission expires:
SEAL

ard.

-,

CK UP





 



After Recording, Return to: 
WSDM 
614 N. Tejon Street 
Colorado Springs, Colorado 80903 
 

Resolution Concerning Imposition of Bridge Obligation and Marksheffel Road Extension Platting Fee 

 
AMENDED AND RESTATED JOINT RESOLUTION 

OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
OF THE WOODMEN HEIGHTS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 2 and 3 

 
CONCERNING THE IMPOSITION OF THE $500.00/Acre  

BRIDGE OBLIGATION AND MARKSHEFFEL ROAD EXTENSION PLATTING FEE 
____________________________________ 

      
WHEREAS, the Woodmen Heights Metropolitan District No. 2 (“District No. 2”), along 

with Woodmen Heights Metropolitan District No. 3 (“District No. 3”) (District Nos. 2 and 3 
collectively the “Districts”) were formed pursuant to §§ 32-1-101, et seq., C.R.S., as amended, by 
order of the District Court for El Paso County (“County”), Colorado, and after approval of the 
Districts’ eligible electors at an election; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to § 32-1-1001(1)(h), C.R.S., the Boards of Directors of the Districts 

(the “Boards”) shall have the management, control and supervision of all the business and affairs 
of the Districts; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Boards have determined it to be in the best interests of the Districts, and 

the property owners, taxpayers, and residents of the Districts, to finance, acquire, construct, install, 
repair, replace, improve, reconstruct, operate and maintain certain public improvements, amenities 
and facilities within or otherwise serving and benefitting the property owners, taxpayers and 
residents of the Districts, which public improvements, amenities and facilities generally include, 
but are not limited to, the crossing over Sand Creek at Marksheffel Road and the extension of 
Marksheffel Road generally from Kenosha Drive to ______, appurtenances and rights-of-way 
related thereto (collectively, the “Facilities”); and  

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to § 32-1-1001(1)(j)(I), C.R.S., the Districts are authorized to fix 

and impose fees, rates, tolls, penalties and charges for services, programs or facilities furnished by 
the Districts which, until such fees, rates, tolls, penalties and charges are paid, shall constitute a 
perpetual lien on and against the property served; and 

 
WHEREAS, District No. 2 incurs or will incur certain direct and indirect costs associated 

with the financing, acquisition, construction, installation, repair, replacement, improvement, 
reconstruction, operation and maintenance of the Facilities, as necessary, inclusive of the costs of 
utilities and capital replacement costs (collectively, the “Capital Facilities Costs”) in order that 
the Facilities may be properly provided and maintained; and  

 
WHEREAS, the establishment of a fair and equitable park obligation fee (the “Facility 

Platting Fee”) to provide a source of funding to pay for the Capital Facilities Costs, which are 
generally attributable to each Acre (defined below), is necessary to provide for the common good 
and for the prosperity and general welfare of the Districts and their inhabitants; and 

 



WHEREAS, the Districts find that the Facility Platting Fee, as set forth in Exhibit A, 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, as may be amended from time to time 
by the District No. 2 Board, is reasonably related to the overall cost of providing the Facilities and 
paying the Capital Facilities Costs, and that imposition thereof is necessary and appropriate; and 

 
WHEREAS, on August 7, 2013, the Board of Woodmen Heights Metropolitan District No. 

1 along with the Boards, adopted the original Resolution Concerning the Bridge Obligation and 
Marksheffel Road Extension Platting Fee, (the “Prior Fee Resolution”), and the Boards desire to 
adopt this Amended and Restated Resolution to amend and restate the Prior Fee Resolution in its 
entirety. Any fees, rates, tolls, penalties or charges due under the Prior Fee Resolution, to the extent 
outstanding and unpaid, shall remain in effect until fully paid and shall not be eliminated hereby; and 

 
WHEREAS, Woodmen Heights Metropolitan District No. 1 intends to dissolve, and since 

January 1, 2023 the Facility Platting Fee has been paid to, budgeted and administered by District 
No. 2 in anticipation of said dissolution. 

  
NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Boards as follows: 
 

1. DEFINITIONS.  Except as otherwise expressly provided or where the context indicates 
otherwise, the following capitalized terms shall have the respective meanings set forth below: 

 
“Acre” means each remaining un-platted acre located within the Districts Boundaries and 
any unplatted acre that includes into the Districts unless otherwise exempted for reasonable 
cause and circumstances as determined by District No. 2 (by example, and not by 
limitation, ground utilized for detention ponds, parks and schools). 
 
“Districts Boundaries” means the legal boundaries of the Districts, as the same are 
established and amended from time to time pursuant to §§32-1-101, et seq., C.R.S., as more 
particularly set forth in the map and legal description attached hereto as Exhibit B and 
incorporated herein by this reference.  
 
“Due Date” means the date by which each Facility Platting Fee is due, which Due Date is 
reflected on the Fee Schedule. 
 
“Fee Schedule” means the schedule of fees set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference, until and unless otherwise amended and/or repealed. 
 
“Responsible Party” means the owner or owners of an un-platted Acre, and if the 
Responsible Party consists of more than one party, then the obligation to pay the Facility 
Platting Fee is the joint and several obligation of all of the parties constituting the 
Responsible Party. 

 
 

2. FACILITY PLATTING FEE.   
 



a. A one-time Facility Platting Fee is hereby established and imposed upon each 
un-platted Acre within the Districts Boundaries.  

  
b. The Facility Platting Fee shall be in the amount, and due and owing as 

outlined in Exhibit A. The amount of each Facility Platting Fee due under this Resolution 
may be adjusted from time to time in the District No. 2’s Board discretion and shall be at the 
rate in effect at the time of payment.   
 

c. The Boards hereby determine that the Facility Platting Fee is reasonably 
related to the overall cost of providing the Facilities, and is imposed on those who are 
reasonably likely to benefit from or use the Facilities. 

 
d. The revenues generated by the Facility Platting Fee will be accounted for 

separately from other revenues of the Districts.  The Facility Platting Fee revenue will be 
used solely for the purpose of paying Capital Facilities Costs (including the repayment of 
any indebtedness of the Districts used to pay Capital Facilities Costs), and may not be used 
by the Districts to pay for general administrative costs.  This restriction on the use of the 
Facility Platting Fee revenue shall be absolute and without qualification.   
 

 
3. LATE FEES AND INTEREST.  Pursuant to § 29-1-1102(3), C.R.S., any Facility 

Platting Fee not paid in full within fifteen (15) days after the scheduled due date will be assessed 
a late fee in the amount of Fifteen Dollars ($15.00) or up to five percent (5%) per month, or fraction 
thereof, not to exceed a total of twenty-five percent (25%) of the amount due.  Interest will also 
accrue on any outstanding Facility Platting Fee, exclusive of assessed late fees, penalties, interest 
and any other costs of collection, specially including, but not limited, to attorney fees, at the rate 
of 18% per annum, pursuant to § 29-1-1102(7), C.R.S. The District may institute such remedies 
and collection procedures as authorized under Colorado law, including, but not limited to, 
foreclosure of its perpetual lien.  The defaulting Responsible Party shall pay all fees and costs, 
specifically including, but not limited to, attorneys’ fees and costs and costs associated with the 
collection of delinquent fees, incurred by the District and/or its consultants in connection with the 
foregoing. 

 
4. PAYMENT.  Payment for all fees, rates, tolls, penalties, charges, interest and 

attorney fees imposed pursuant to this Resolution shall be made by check or equivalent form 
acceptable to District No. 2, made payable to the “Woodmen Heights Metropolitan District No. 2” 
and sent to the address indicated on the Fee Schedule.  The Board may change the payment address 
from time to time and such change shall not require an amendment to this Resolution. 

 
5. LIEN.  The fees imposed pursuant to this Resolution, together with any and all late 

fees, interest, penalties and costs of collection, shall, until paid, constitute a statutory, perpetual lien 
on and against the property served, and any such lien may be foreclosed in the manner provided 
by the laws of the State of Colorado for the foreclosure of mechanic’s liens, pursuant to § 32-1-
1001(1)(j)(I), C.R.S.  Said lien may be foreclosed at such time as District No. 2, in its sole 
discretion, may determine. The lien shall be perpetual in nature (as defined by the laws of the State 
of Colorado) on the property and shall run with the land.  This Resolution shall be recorded in the 
offices of the Clerk and Recorder of the County. 



 
6. SEVERABILITY.  If any portion of this Resolution is declared by any court of 

competent jurisdiction to be void or unenforceable, such decision shall not affect the validity of 
any remaining portion of this Resolution, which shall remain in full force and effect.  In addition, 
in lieu of such void or unenforceable provision, there shall automatically be added as part of this 
Resolution a provision similar in terms to such illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision so that 
the resulting reformed provision is legal, valid and enforceable. 

 
7. PREPAYMENT OF FEES.  District No. 2 may enter into agreements for the 

prepayment of Facility Platting Fees, in its sole and absolute discretion.  
 
8. THE PROPERTY.  This Resolution shall apply to each Acrea within the Districts 

Boundaries, and any additional Acre included into the Districts after the date of this Resolution. 
 
9. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall become effective June _____, 2024. 

 
 
 

[signature page follows] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
ADOPTED this ____ day of June, 2024.  

 
WOODMEN HEIGHTS METROPOLITAN 
DISTRICT NOS. 2 AND 3, each a quasi-municipal 
corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado 
 
_____________________________ 
Officer of the Districts 

ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________ 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON  
Attorneys At Law 
 
       
General Counsel to the Districts 

 
Acknowledgement: 

WOODMEN HEIGHTS METROPOLITAN 
DISTRICT NO. 1, a quasi-municipal corporation and political 
subdivision of the State of Colorado 
 
_____________________________ 
Officer of the District 

 
 

ATTEST: 
 

_____________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[Signature Page to Resolution Concerning the Imposition of Park Obligation Platting Fee]



After Recording, Return to: 
WSDM 
614 N. Tejon Street 
Colorado Springs, Colorado 80903 
 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

WOODMEN HEIGHTS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 2 AND 3 
Fee Schedule 

Effective June 1, 2024__ 
 

 
Fee Schedule 

Fee Type Classifications Rate 

  

Facility Platting Fee 

Un-platted Acre $500.00/Acre 

  

  

  

  

 

 
The Due Date for each Facility Platting Fee is  on or before recordation of the final plat containing an Acre. 
 
The Facility Platting Fee shall be due and payable by the Responsible Party, in full, to District No. 2, on the Due Date. 
 
 
 

 
PAYMENTS:  Payment for each fee shall be made payable to the Woodmen Heights 
Metropolitan District No. 2 and sent to the following address for receipt by the Due Date: 
 
District Manager: 
 
WSDM - District Manager 
614 N. Tejon St.  
Colorado Springs, CO 80903  
 
[ONLINE PAYMENT ADDRESS as may be provided by Manager] 



EXHIBIT B 
 

WOODMEN HEIGHTS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 2 AND 3 
 

Districts Boundaries 
 



 



After Recording, Return to: 
WSDM 
614 N. Tejon Street 
Colorado Springs, Colorado 80903 
 

Resolution Concerning Imposition of Park Obligation Facility Platting Fee 

 
AMENDED AND RESTATED JOINT RESOLUTION 

OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
OF THE WOODMEN HEIGHTS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 2 and 3 

 
CONCERNING THE IMPOSITION OF THE $1,700/Acre  

PARK OBLIGATION PLATTING FEE 
____________________________________ 

      
WHEREAS, the Woodmen Heights Metropolitan District No. 2 (“District No. 2”), along 

with Woodmen Heights Metropolitan District No. 3 (“District No. 3”) (District Nos. 2 and 3 
collectively the “Districts”) were formed pursuant to §§ 32-1-101, et seq., C.R.S., as amended, by 
order of the District Court for El Paso County (“County”), Colorado, and after approval of the 
Districts’ eligible electors at an election; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to § 32-1-1001(1)(h), C.R.S., the Boards of Directors of the Districts 

(the “Boards”) shall have the management, control and supervision of all the business and affairs 
of the Districts; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Boards have determined it to be in the best interests of the Districts, and 

the property owners, taxpayers, and residents of the Districts, to finance, acquire, construct, install, 
repair, replace, improve, reconstruct, operate and maintain certain public improvements, amenities 
and facilities within or otherwise serving and benefitting the property owners, taxpayers and 
residents of the Districts, which public improvements, amenities and facilities generally include, 
but are not limited to, park and recreation improvements, facilities, appurtenances and rights-of-
way related to ________________________________ Park (collectively, the “Facilities”); and  

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to § 32-1-1001(1)(j)(I), C.R.S., the Districts are authorized to fix 

and impose fees, rates, tolls, penalties and charges for services, programs or facilities furnished by 
the Districts which, until such fees, rates, tolls, penalties and charges are paid, shall constitute a 
perpetual lien on and against the property served; and 

 
WHEREAS, District No. 2 incurs or will incur certain direct and indirect costs associated 

with the financing, acquisition, construction, installation, repair, replacement, improvement, 
reconstruction, operation and maintenance of the Facilities, as necessary, inclusive of the costs of 
utilities and capital replacement costs (collectively, the “Capital Facilities Costs”) in order that 
the Facilities may be properly provided and maintained; and  

 
WHEREAS, the establishment of a fair and equitable park obligation fee (the “Facility 

Platting Fee”) to provide a source of funding to pay for the Capital Facilities Costs, which are 
generally attributable to each Acre (defined below), is necessary to provide for the common good 
and for the prosperity and general welfare of the Districts and their inhabitants; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Districts find that the Facility Platting Fee, as set forth in Exhibit A, 

attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, as may be amended from time to time 



by the District No. 2 Board, is reasonably related to the overall cost of providing the Facilities and 
paying the Capital Facilities Costs, and that imposition thereof is necessary and appropriate; and 

 
WHEREAS, on August 7, 2013, the Board of Woodmen Heights Metropolitan District No. 

1 along with the Boards, adopted the original Resolution Concerning the Park Obligation Platting 
Fee, (the “Prior Fee Resolution”), and the Boards desire to adopt this Amended and Restated 
Resolution to amend and restate the Prior Fee Resolution in its entirety. Any fees, rates, tolls, penalties 
or charges due under the Prior Fee Resolution, to the extent outstanding and unpaid, shall remain in 
effect until fully paid and shall not be eliminated hereby; and 

 
WHEREAS, Woodmen Heights Metropolitan District No. 1 intends to dissolve, and since 

January 1, 2023 the Facility Platting Fee has been paid to, budgeted and administered by District 
No. 2 in anticipation of said dissolution. 

  
NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Boards as follows: 
 

1. DEFINITIONS.  Except as otherwise expressly provided or where the context indicates 
otherwise, the following capitalized terms shall have the respective meanings set forth below: 

 
“Acre” means each remaining un-platted acre located within the Districts Boundaries and 
any unplatted acre that includes into the Districts unless otherwise exempted for reasonable 
cause and circumstances as determined by District No. 2 (by example, and not by 
limitation, ground utilized for detention ponds, parks and schools). 
 
“Districts Boundaries” means the legal boundaries of the Districts, as the same are 
established and amended from time to time pursuant to §§32-1-101, et seq., C.R.S., as more 
particularly set forth in the map and legal description attached hereto as Exhibit B and 
incorporated herein by this reference.  
 
“Due Date” means the date by which each Facility Platting Fee is due, which Due Date is 
reflected on the Fee Schedule. 
 
“Fee Schedule” means the schedule of fees set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference, until and unless otherwise amended and/or repealed. 
 
“Responsible Party” means the owner or owners of an un-platted Acre, and if the 
Responsible Party consists of more than one party, then the obligation to pay the Facility 
Platting Fee is the joint and several obligation of all of the parties constituting the 
Responsible Party. 

 
 

2. FACILITY PLATTING FEE.   
 

a. A one-time Facility Platting Fee is hereby established and imposed upon each 
un-platted Acre within the Districts Boundaries.  

  



b. The Facility Platting Fee shall be in the amount, and due and owing as 
outlined in Exhibit A. The amount of each Facility Platting Fee due under this Resolution 
may be adjusted from time to time in the District No. 2’s Board discretion and shall be at the 
rate in effect at the time of payment.   
 

c. The Boards hereby determine that the Facility Platting Fee is reasonably 
related to the overall cost of providing the Facilities, and is imposed on those who are 
reasonably likely to benefit from or use the Facilities. 

 
d. The revenues generated by the Facility Platting Fee will be accounted for 

separately from other revenues of the Districts.  The Facility Platting Fee revenue will be 
used solely for the purpose of paying Capital Facilities Costs (including the repayment of 
any indebtedness of the Districts used to pay Capital Facilities Costs), and may not be used 
by the Districts to pay for general administrative costs.  This restriction on the use of the 
Facility Platting Fee revenue shall be absolute and without qualification.   
 

 
3. LATE FEES AND INTEREST.  Pursuant to § 29-1-1102(3), C.R.S., any Facility 

Platting Fee not paid in full within fifteen (15) days after the scheduled due date will be assessed 
a late fee in the amount of Fifteen Dollars ($15.00) or up to five percent (5%) per month, or fraction 
thereof, not to exceed a total of twenty-five percent (25%) of the amount due.  Interest will also 
accrue on any outstanding Facility Platting Fee, exclusive of assessed late fees, penalties, interest 
and any other costs of collection, specially including, but not limited, to attorney fees, at the rate 
of 18% per annum, pursuant to § 29-1-1102(7), C.R.S. The District may institute such remedies 
and collection procedures as authorized under Colorado law, including, but not limited to, 
foreclosure of its perpetual lien.  The defaulting Responsible Party shall pay all fees and costs, 
specifically including, but not limited to, attorneys’ fees and costs and costs associated with the 
collection of delinquent fees, incurred by the District and/or its consultants in connection with the 
foregoing. 

 
4. PAYMENT.  Payment for all fees, rates, tolls, penalties, charges, interest and 

attorney fees imposed pursuant to this Resolution shall be made by check or equivalent form 
acceptable to District No. 2, made payable to the “Woodmen Heights Metropolitan District No. 2” 
and sent to the address indicated on the Fee Schedule.  The Board may change the payment address 
from time to time and such change shall not require an amendment to this Resolution. 

 
5. LIEN.  The fees imposed pursuant to this Resolution, together with any and all late 

fees, interest, penalties and costs of collection, shall, until paid, constitute a statutory, perpetual lien 
on and against the property served, and any such lien may be foreclosed in the manner provided 
by the laws of the State of Colorado for the foreclosure of mechanic’s liens, pursuant to § 32-1-
1001(1)(j)(I), C.R.S.  Said lien may be foreclosed at such time as District No. 2, in its sole 
discretion, may determine. The lien shall be perpetual in nature (as defined by the laws of the State 
of Colorado) on the property and shall run with the land.  This Resolution shall be recorded in the 
offices of the Clerk and Recorder of the County. 
 

6. SEVERABILITY.  If any portion of this Resolution is declared by any court of 
competent jurisdiction to be void or unenforceable, such decision shall not affect the validity of 



any remaining portion of this Resolution, which shall remain in full force and effect.  In addition, 
in lieu of such void or unenforceable provision, there shall automatically be added as part of this 
Resolution a provision similar in terms to such illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision so that 
the resulting reformed provision is legal, valid and enforceable. 

 
7. PREPAYMENT OF FEES.  District No. 2 may enter into agreements for the 

prepayment of Facility Platting Fees, in its sole and absolute discretion.  
 
8. THE PROPERTY.  This Resolution shall apply to each Acrea within the Districts 

Boundaries, and any additional Acre included into the Districts after the date of this Resolution. 
 
9. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall become effective June _____, 2024. 

 
 
 

[signature page follows] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



ADOPTED this ____ day of June, 2024.  
 

WOODMEN HEIGHTS METROPOLITAN 
DISTRICT NOS. 2 AND 3, each a quasi-municipal 
corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado 
 
_____________________________ 
Officer of the Districts 

ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________ 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON  
Attorneys At Law 
 
       
General Counsel to the Districts 

 
Acknowledgement: 

WOODMEN HEIGHTS METROPOLITAN 
DISTRICT NO. 1, a quasi-municipal corporation and political 
subdivision of the State of Colorado 
 
_____________________________ 
Officer of the District 

 
 

ATTEST: 
 

_____________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[Signature Page to Resolution Concerning the Imposition of Park Obligation Platting Fee]



After Recording, Return to: 
WSDM 
614 N. Tejon Street 
Colorado Springs, Colorado 80903 
 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

WOODMEN HEIGHTS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 2 AND 3 
Fee Schedule 

Effective June 1, 2024__ 
 

 
Fee Schedule 

Fee Type Classifications Rate 

  

Facility Platting Fee 

Un-platted Acre $5,500/Acre 

  

  

  

  

 

 
The Due Date for each Facility Platting Fee is  on or before recordation of the final plat containing an Acre. 
 
The Facility Platting Fee shall be due and payable by the Responsible Party, in full, to District No. 2, on the Due Date. 
 
 
 

 
PAYMENTS:  Payment for each fee shall be made payable to the Woodmen Heights 
Metropolitan District No. 2 and sent to the following address for receipt by the Due Date: 
 
District Manager: 
 
WSDM - District Manager 
614 N. Tejon St.  
Colorado Springs, CO 80903  
 
[ONLINE PAYMENT ADDRESS as may be provided by Manager] 



EXHIBIT B 
 

WOODMEN HEIGHTS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 2 AND 3 
 

Districts Boundaries 
 



 



After Recording, Return to: 
WSDM 
614 N. Tejon Street 
Colorado Springs, Colorado 80903 
 

Resolution Concerning Imposition of Facility Platting Fee 

 
THIRD AMENDED AND RESTATED JOINT RESOLUTION 

OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
OF THE WOODMEN HEIGHTS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 2 and 3 

 
CONCERNING THE IMPOSITION OF THE FACILITY PLATTING FEE 

____________________________________ 
      
WHEREAS, the Woodmen Heights Metropolitan District No. 2 (“District No. 2”), along 

with Woodmen Heights Metropolitan District No. 3 (“District No. 3”) (District Nos. 2 and 3 
collectively the “Districts”) were formed pursuant to §§ 32-1-101, et seq., C.R.S., as amended, by 
order of the District Court for El Paso County (“County”), Colorado, and after approval of the 
Districts’ eligible electors at an election; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to § 32-1-1001(1)(h), C.R.S., the Boards of Directors of the Districts 

(the “Boards”) shall have the management, control and supervision of all the business and affairs 
of the Districts; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Boards have determined it to be in the best interests of the Districts, and 

the property owners, taxpayers, and residents of the Districts, to finance, acquire, construct, install, 
repair, replace, improve, reconstruct, operate and maintain certain public improvements, amenities 
and facilities within or otherwise serving and benefitting the property owners, taxpayers and 
residents of the Districts, which public improvements, amenities and facilities generally include 
storm water detention, park and recreation, and bridge improvements, facilities, appurtenances and 
rights-of-way (collectively, the “Facilities”); and  

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to § 32-1-1001(1)(j)(I), C.R.S., the Districts are authorized to fix 

and impose fees, rates, tolls, penalties and charges for services, programs or facilities furnished by 
the Districts which, until such fees, rates, tolls, penalties and charges are paid, shall constitute a 
perpetual lien on and against the property served; and 

 
WHEREAS, District No. 2 incurs or will incur certain direct and indirect costs associated 

with the financing, acquisition, construction, installation, repair, replacement, improvement, 
reconstruction, operation and maintenance of the Facilities, as necessary, inclusive of the costs of 
utilities and capital replacement costs (collectively, the “Capital Facility Costs”) in order that the 
Facilities may be properly provided and maintained; and  

 
WHEREAS, the establishment of a fair and equitable fee (the “Facility Platting Fee”) to 

provide a source of funding to pay for the Capital Facilities Costs, which are generally attributable 
to each Acre (defined below), is necessary to provide for the common good and for the prosperity 
and general welfare of the Districts and their inhabitants; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Districts find that the Facility Platting Fee, as set forth in Exhibit A, 

attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, as may be amended from time to time 



by the District No. 2 Board, is reasonably related to the overall cost of providing the Facilities and 
paying the Capital Facilities Costs, and that imposition thereof is necessary and appropriate; and 

 
WHEREAS, on July 11, 2012, the Boards, along with the Board of Woodmen Heights 

Metropolitan District No. 1, adopted the Second Amended and Restated Resolution Concerning the 
Facility Platting Fee, which was recorded in the real property records of the El Paso County Clerk 
and Recorder’s Office on November 19, 2013, at Reception No. 213140364 (the “Prior Fee 
Resolution”), and the Boards desire to adopt this Resolution to amend and restate the Prior Fee 
Resolution in its entirety. Any fees, rates, tolls, penalties or charges due under the Prior Fee 
Resolution, to the extent outstanding and unpaid, shall remain in effect until fully paid and shall not 
be eliminated hereby; and 

 
WHEREAS, Woodmen Heights Metropolitan District No. 1 intends to dissolve, and since 

2021 the Facility Platting Fee has been paid to, budgeted and administered by District No. 2. 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Boards as follows: 
 

1. DEFINITIONS.  Except as otherwise expressly provided or where the context indicates 
otherwise, the following capitalized terms shall have the respective meanings set forth below: 

 
“Acre” means each remaining un-platted acre located within the Districts Boundaries and 
any unplatted acre that includes into the Districts unless otherwise exempted for reasonable 
cause and circumstances as determined by District No. 2 (by example, and not by 
limitation, ground utilized for detention ponds, parks and schools). 
 
“Districts Boundaries” means the legal boundaries of the Districts, as the same are 
established and amended from time to time pursuant to §§32-1-101, et seq., C.R.S., as more 
particularly set forth in the map and legal description attached hereto as Exhibit B and 
incorporated herein by this reference.  
 
“Due Date” means the date by which each Facility Platting Fee is due, which Due Date is 
reflected on the Fee Schedule. 
 
“Fee Schedule” means the schedule of fees set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference, until and unless otherwise amended and/or repealed. 
 
“Responsible Party” means the owner or owners of an un-platted Acre, and if the 
Responsible Party consists of more than one party, then the obligation to pay the Facility 
Platting Fee is the joint and several obligation of all of the parties constituting the 
Responsible Party. 

 
 

2. FACILITY PLATTING FEE.   
 

a. A one-time Facility Platting Fee is hereby established and imposed upon each 
unplatted Acre within the Districts Boundaries.  



  
b. The Facility Platting Fee shall be in the amount, and due and owing as 

outlined in Exhibit A. The amount of each Facility Platting Fee due under this Resolution 
may be adjusted from time to time in the District No. 2’s Board discretion and shall be at the 
rate in effect at the time of payment.   
 

c. The Boards hereby determine that the Facility Platting Fee is reasonably 
related to the overall cost of providing the Facilities, and is imposed on those who are 
reasonably likely to benefit from or use the Facilities. 

 
d. The revenues generated by the Facility Platting Fee will be accounted for 

separately from other revenues of the Districts.  The Facility Platting Fee revenue will be 
used solely for the purpose of paying Capital Facilities Costs (including the repayment of 
any indebtedness of the Districts used to pay Capital Facilities Costs), and may not be used 
by the Districts to pay for general administrative costs.  This restriction on the use of the 
Facility Platting Fee revenue shall be absolute and without qualification.   
 

e. $500.00 out of each Facility Platting Fee is allocated and pledged in an 
aggregate amount not to exceed $370,000 toward the construction costs of the five (5) acre 
park located northwest of the Vollmer and Cowpoke intersection. 

 
3. LATE FEES AND INTEREST.  Pursuant to § 29-1-1102(3), C.R.S., any Facility 

Platting Fee not paid in full within fifteen (15) days after the scheduled due date will be assessed 
a late fee in the amount of Fifteen Dollars ($15.00) or up to five percent (5%) per month, or fraction 
thereof, not to exceed a total of twenty-five percent (25%) of the amount due.  Interest will also 
accrue on any outstanding Facility Platting Fee, exclusive of assessed late fees, penalties, interest 
and any other costs of collection, specially including, but not limited, to attorney fees, at the rate 
of 18% per annum, pursuant to § 29-1-1102(7), C.R.S. The District may institute such remedies 
and collection procedures as authorized under Colorado law, including, but not limited to, 
foreclosure of its perpetual lien.  The defaulting Responsible Party shall pay all fees and costs, 
specifically including, but not limited to, attorneys’ fees and costs and costs associated with the 
collection of delinquent fees, incurred by the District and/or its consultants in connection with the 
foregoing. 

 
4. PAYMENT.  Payment for all fees, rates, tolls, penalties, charges, interest and 

attorney fees imposed pursuant to this Resolution shall be made by check or equivalent form 
acceptable to District No. 2, made payable to the “Woodmen Heights Metropolitan District No. 2” 
and sent to the address indicated on the Fee Schedule.  The Board may change the payment address 
from time to time and such change shall not require an amendment to this Resolution. 

 
5. LIEN.  The fees imposed pursuant to this Resolution, together with any and all late 

fees, interest, penalties and costs of collection, shall, until paid, constitute a statutory, perpetual lien 
on and against the property served, and any such lien may be foreclosed in the manner provided 
by the laws of the State of Colorado for the foreclosure of mechanic’s liens, pursuant to § 32-1-
1001(1)(j)(I), C.R.S.  Said lien may be foreclosed at such time as District No. 2, in its sole 
discretion, may determine. The lien shall be perpetual in nature (as defined by the laws of the State 



of Colorado) on the property and shall run with the land.  This Resolution shall be recorded in the 
offices of the Clerk and Recorder of the County. 
 

6. SEVERABILITY.  If any portion of this Resolution is declared by any court of 
competent jurisdiction to be void or unenforceable, such decision shall not affect the validity of 
any remaining portion of this Resolution, which shall remain in full force and effect.  In addition, 
in lieu of such void or unenforceable provision, there shall automatically be added as part of this 
Resolution a provision similar in terms to such illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision so that 
the resulting reformed provision is legal, valid and enforceable. 

 
7. PREPAYMENT OF FEES.  District No. 2 may enter into agreements for the 

prepayment of Facility Platting Fees, in its sole and absolute discretion.  
 
8. THE PROPERTY.  This Resolution shall apply to each Acrea within the Districts 

Boundaries, and any additional Acre included into the Districts after the date of this Resolution. 
 
9. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall become effective June _____, 2024. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
ADOPTED this ____ day of June, 2024.  
 
 

 
WOODMEN HEIGHTS METROPOLITAN 
DISTRICT NOS. 2 AND 3, a quasi-municipal 
corporation and political subdivision of the State of 
Colorado 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Officer of the Districts 

 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 

_____________________________ 
 

 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 



WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON  
Attorneys At Law 
 
 
       
General Counsel to the Districts 

 
 
Acknowledgement: 

WOODMEN HEIGHTS METROPOLITAN 
DISTRICT NO. 1, a quasi-municipal corporation 
and political subdivision of the State of Colorado 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Officer of the District 

 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 

_____________________________   
 
 
 
 
 
 

[Signature Page to Resolution Concerning the Imposition of Facility Platting Fee]



After Recording, Return to: 
WSDM 
614 N. Tejon Street 
Colorado Springs, Colorado 80903 
 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

______ WOODMEN HEIGHTS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 2 AND 3 
Fee Schedule 

Effective June 1, 2024__ 
 

 
Fee Schedule 

Fee Type Classifications Rate 

  

Facility Platting Fee 

Un-platted Acre $5,500/Acre 

  

  

  

  

 

 
The Due Date for each Facility Platting Fee is  on or before recordation of the final plat containing an Acre. 
 
The Facility Platting Fee shall be due and payable by the Responsible Party, in full, to District No. 2, on the Due Date. 
 
 
 

 
PAYMENTS:  Payment for each fee shall be made payable to the Woodmen Heights 
Metropolitan District No. 2 and sent to the following address for receipt by the Due Date: 
 
District Manager: 
 
WSDM - District Manager 
614 N. Tejon St.  
Colorado Springs, CO 80903  
 
[ONLINE PAYMENT ADDRESS as may be provided by Manager] 



EXHIBIT B 
 

WOODMEN HEIGHTS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 2 AND 3 
 

Districts Boundaries 
 


	WHMD 1-3 Joint Meeting Agenda 6-5-2024 
	AGENDA

	Page Divider
	WHMD 2024 04 03 Minutes RH draft
	Page Divider
	WHMD #1 052924 Financials
	BS
	BVA
	IEG

	WHMD #2 052924 Financials
	BS
	BVA
	IG
	IEG

	WHMD #3 052924 Financials
	BS
	BVA
	IEG
	IG

	Page Divider
	WHMD #1 041724 Payables
	WHMD #1 051524 Payables
	WHMD #2 041824 Payables
	WHMD #2 051524 Payables
	WHMD #3 041724 Payables
	WHMD #3 051524 Payables
	Page Divider
	Banyan Spring 2024
	Page Divider
	Agreement with City for Marksheffel Bridge w Attachments_FINAL
	Page Divider
	Amended and Restated Resolution Concerning the $500 Bridge Fee
	Page Divider
	Amended and Restated Resolution Concerning the $1,700 Aspen Meadow Park, 
	Page Divider
	Third Amended and Restated Resolution Concerning the Facility Platting Fee $5500 



